
 
 
 

Hermantown City Council Meeting – August 2, 2021 
 
Because of attendance considerations at the regular meeting location due to the 
health pandemic, Hermantown’s August 2, 2021, City Council Meeting will be 
conducted both remotely and with in-person access to Council Chambers.  
 
The City Council meeting will utilize the platform “Zoom,” which allows the public to 
view and/or hear the meeting from their phone or computer. Interested parties can 
also choose to attend the City Council Meeting in person at City Hall. Current 
Minnesota Department of Health guidelines regarding the health pandemic will be 
observed during this meeting. 
 
The 6:30 p.m. City Council Meeting will be available at: 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83816111121?pwd=d0NyVmhXMHRFVmRIYVI5S25zeThOUT09 
 
and/or by calling the number (312) 626-6799 and utilizing the meeting ID number of 
838-1611-1121 and the passcode of 223673. 
 
Public comment may be possible, but difficult, during the meeting, but any public 
comments, questions, or concerns can be e-mailed to Community Engagement 
Manager, Joe Wicklund, at jwicklund@hermantownmn.com up to 3:30 p.m. the day of 
the meeting with the e-mail title “August 2, 2021, Meeting.” It is important to note that 
all comments regarding the August 2, 2021, meeting are public data.  
 
A few important tips regarding the Zoom platform: 

• If your computer does not support audio, you can still watch the meeting on 
your computer and call in on your phone to hear the meeting 

• It is a challenging situation for all of us, so grace and understanding are 
appreciated 

 
The 4:30 p.m. Pre-Agenda Meeting will be available in-person only at City Hall. Public 
comment is not a factor in the pre-agenda meeting, but the meeting is open and 
members of the public are invited and welcome to attend to this meeting. Attendees 
of the Pre-Agenda Meeting should expect to follow the current social distancing and 
mask guidelines. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83816111121?pwd=d0NyVmhXMHRFVmRIYVI5S25zeThOUT09


 

This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Hermantown City Council. This document does not 
claim to be complete and is subject to change at any time. 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Pre-Agenda Meeting Monday, August 2, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

 
Pre-agenda:  The Pre-agenda meeting is a work session between the City Council 
and City staff to review the upcoming City Council meeting and future meetings.  
The agenda is the same document as the upcoming City Council meeting, but does 
not follow the same format as the City Council meeting.  It is a time for the City 
Council and City staff to have discussions about the agenda items, and asking and 
answering questions.  Traditionally it is not a time for public comment on the 
agenda items, as the public can listen to the conversation and ask questions or 
provide input at the upcoming City Council meeting.   

 
 

City Council Meeting August 2, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

City Hall - Hermantown Governmental Services Building 
 

Invitation to participate: 
The Hermantown City Council welcomes your thoughts, input and opinions to this 
meeting. The agenda for this meeting contains a brief description of each item to 
be considered, and the City Council encourages your participation. If you wish to 
speak on an item contained in the agenda, you will be allowed to address the 
Council when a motion is on the floor. If you wish to speak on a matter that does 
not appear on the agenda, you may do so during the public comment period 
regularly scheduled and set for the beginning of the meeting.  
 
When addressing the City Council, please state your name and address for the 
record. Please address the City Council as a whole through the Mayor. Comments 
to individual Council Members or staff are not permitted. Speakers will be limited to 
three (3) minutes. 
 
Order of discussion 

1. Reading of the resolution title by Mayor 
2. Motion/Second 
3. Staff Explanation 
4. Initial Discussion by City Council 
5. Mayor invites public to speak to the motion (3 minute rule) 
6. Follow up staff explanation and/or discussion by City Council 
7. Call of the vote 



This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Hermantown City Council. This document does not 
claim to be complete and is subject to change at any time. 

CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
AGENDA 

Pre-Agenda Meeting Monday, August 2, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

City Council Meeting August 2, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS (Council Members may make announcements as needed.)

5. PUBLIC HEARING – (Only when necessary. The rule adopted three minutes per person if
necessary. Any action required after the public hearing will be taken immediately following the
closing of the public hearing.)

A. Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard Avenue, Lindgren Road, Evee Drive
& A Frontage Road

Resolution Ordering Improvement & Directing Preparation Of Final 
        Plans And Specifications For Road Improvement District No. 538 

         (Richard Avenue, Lindgren Road, Evee Drive & A Frontage Road) 

Resolution Authorizing And Directing Mayor And City Clerk To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Engineering Services With A  
Total Not To Exceed Contract Amount Of $180,385.00 Road 

        Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard Avenue, Lindgren Road, 
Evee Drive & A Frontage Road With Northland Consulting Engineers 

B. 2021-87

(motion, roll call) 

C. 2021-88

(motion, roll call) 

6. COMMUNICATIONS

7. PRESENTATIONS (Department Heads may give reports if necessary.)

8. PUBLIC DISCUSSION (This is the time for individuals to address the Council about any item
not on the agenda. The time limit is three minutes per person.)



9. CONSENT AGENDA (All items on the Consent Agenda are items which are considered routine
by the City Council and will be approved by one motion via voice vote. There will be no
discussion of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event the item
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered at the end of the Consent Agenda.)

A. Minutes - Approval or correction of July 19, 2021 City Council Continuation Minutes

B. Accounts Payable – Approve general city warrants from July 16, 2021 through July 31,
2021 in the amount of $767,317.66

(motion, roll call) 

10. MOTIONS

A. Motion to approve the following Councilors as representatives to negotiate with the
following Unions:

IUOE Local #49 Councilors 
LELS Local #47 Councilors 
AFSCME Local #66 Councilors 

(motion, roll call) 

11. ORDINANCES

A. 2021-04 An Ordinance Amending Section 1000, State Building Code, Of The 
Hermantown Code Of Ordinances 

Second Reading 

(motion, roll call) 

An Ordinance Amending Chapter 9, Utilities And Services, Of The Hermantown 
City Code 

B. 2021-05

        First Reading 

C. 2021-06 An Ordinance Amending Section 230.02, Utility Commission, Of The
Hermantown City Code 

First Reading 

12. RESOLUTIONS (Roll call will be taken only on items required by law and items requiring 4/5’s
votes, all others can be done by voice vote.)

A. 2021-89 Resolution Of The City Of Hermantown, Minnesota Approving Session Laws 
2021 First Special Session, Chapter 14, Article 8, Section 8 

(motion, roll call) 



B. 2021-90 Resolution Approving A Special Use Permit For A Greenhouse/Nursery, Sales 
And Production At 4168 Lindahl Road 

(motion, roll call) 

C. 2021-91 Resolution Approving Final Plat Of Peyton Acres Phase 1B And Imposing 
Conditions On The Final Plat 

(motion, roll call) 

D. 2021-92 Resolution Accepting Quote From HMI Duluth For Repairs On Arrowhead Road 
In The Amount Of $55,400.00 

(motion, roll call) 

E. 2021-93 Resolution Approving Change Order Number 1 For Road Improvement District 
No. 537 (Lavaque Junction Road) 

(motion, roll call) 

F. 2021-94 Resolution Approving Pay Request Number 4 For Road Improvement District 
No. 537 (Lavaque Junction Road) To Ulland Brothers, Inc. In The Amount Of 
$387,914.09  

(motion, roll call) 

13. RECESS



y:\city clerk\2022 road imp dist 538 (richard & lindgren)\notice of public hearing.docx 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
ROAD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 538  

(RICHARD AVENUE, LINDGREN ROAD, EVEE DRIVE & A FRONTAGE ROAD) 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Hermantown will meet in the Council 
Chambers of Governmental Services Building, 5105 Maple Grove Road, Hermantown, Minnesota, at 
6:30 p.m. on Monday, August 2, 2021 to consider the Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard 
Avenue, Lindgren Road, Evee Drive & a Frontage Road). 
 
The improvement is the construction of extensions of Richard Avenue and Lindgren Road and 
improvements to Evee Drive and a Frontage Road. 
 
The City Council proposes to proceed in accordance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes Chapter 
429.011 to 429.111 of the Minnesota Statutes. 
 
The area proposed to be assessed for such improvement is every piece and parcel of property benefited by 
such improvement, whether abutting thereon or not, based upon the benefits received by each piece and 
parcel. 
 
A reasonable estimate of the impact of the improvement will be available at the hearing. 
 
Such persons as desire to be heard with reference to the proposed improvements will be heard at this 
meeting. Written or oral comments are encouraged and will be considered at this hearing. 
Authorized by the City Council. 
 
      Bonnie Engseth, City Clerk 
      City of Hermantown 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2021-87 
 
RESOLUTION ORDERING IMPROVEMENT AND DIRECTING PREPARATION OF FINAL 

PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 538 (RICHARD 
AVENUE, LINDGREN ROAD, EVEE DRIVE & A FRONTAGE ROAD) 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has received and approved a preliminary engineering report for the 

project (“Project”) known as Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard Avenue, Lindgren Road, Evee 
Drive & A Frontage Road); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ten days’ mailed notice and two weeks’ published notice of the hearing was given, 
and the hearing was held on the 2nd day of August, 2021 at which all persons desiring to be heard were 
given an opportunity to be heard thereon; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after due consideration the Council believes it is in the best interests of the City of 
Hermantown to proceed further with the Project subject to receiving commitments from the benefitted 
property owners to pay the entire cost of the project without regard to benefits received; and 
 

WHEREAS, the next step in the process is to prepare final plans and specifications for such 
project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to proceed to prepare such plans and specifications. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota, as follows: 

 
1. Such improvement is necessary, cost-effective, and feasible as detailed in the feasibility 

report. 
 
2. Such improvement is hereby ordered as proposed. 

 
3. The City Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to have a project engineer complete 

final plans and specifications in the project known as Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard 
Avenue, Lindgren Road, Evee Drive & A Frontage Road). 
 

4. Upon completion of such final plans and specifications, the project engineer is requested 
to present them to the City Council for approval and authorization for bidding. 

 
5. The City reasonably expects to finance the Project from an issue of tax-exempt bonds.  In 

advance of issuance of the bonds it will be necessary for the City to temporarily finance certain costs of 
the Project by using either working capital or cash reserves, which are needed for other purposes.  The 
City reasonably expects to reimburse itself from the proceeds of the bonds within eighteen (18) months 
after the date the Project is paid from such working capital or cash reserves. 
 
 6. The approval hereby given is subject to the City receiving written commitments in form 
and substance acceptable to the City Attorney and City Administrator from all of the benefitted property 
owners to the effect that they will pay the entire cost of the Project without regard to benefits received. 

 
Councilor ______ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 



 
The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor _______ and, upon a 

vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
Councilors  

 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 
WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted August 2, 2021.  
 

 

 

 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-88 
August 2, 2021  Agenda Item: 5-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: July 28, 2021 Meeting Date:  8/2/21 
 

SUBJECT: Engineering Services – Road 
Imp. Proj. 538  

Agenda Item: 5-C Resolution 2021-88 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve the resolution authorizing the Mayor and Clerk to sign and enter an agreement for 
Engineering services for Road Imp. District No. 538 (Richard Ave, Lindgren Rd, Evee Dr. and a 
Frontage Rd. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The City received a Local Road Improvement Grant for road improvements on Richard & Lindgren 
Roads in the Hermantown Marketplace in June of this year. Per the City’s policy on City Engineer 
Services, “the City Council may contract directly with the City Engineer for projects over 
$500,000 when it believes it is in the best interest of the City that the City Engineer provide the 
service.” 
 
Because the City hopes to make the road improvements on these roads in 2022, and we didn’t 
receive notice of the grant until June, the City Council requested a proposal directly from the 
City Engineer.  
 
Because there is state grant money involved the City will have to follow the state aid process. This proposal 
reflects that additional administrative costs.   
  

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
475-431150-305 Proj. 538 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
NCE Cost Proposal  



 

Z:\Shared\CITY COUNCIL\RESOLUTIONS\2021\2021-88 Engineering Agmt  Richard-Lindgren.docx 

Resolution No. 2021-88 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING MAYOR AND CITY 
CLERK TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

WITH A TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $180,385.00 FOR ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 538 (RICHARD AVENUE, LINDGREN ROAD, EVEE DRIVE 

& A FRONTAGE ROAD WITH NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown (“City”) desires to obtain design and construction 
engineering services with respect to Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard Avenue, Lindgren Road, 
Evee Drive & A Frontage Road) (“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Northland Consulting Engineers (“Engineer”) submitted a proposal to the City to 
provide such services and 
 
 WHEREAS, City and Engineer desire to enter into an Agreement for Engineering Services for 
Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard Avenue, Lindgren Road, Evee Drive & A Frontage Road) 
(“Agreement”) as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto in which Engineer provides engineering to City 
pursuant to these terms of the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council believes that it is in the best interests of the City of Hermantown to 
approve the Agreement of and authorize and direct the Mayor and City Clerk to execute and deliver it on 
behalf of the City of Hermantown. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 

 
1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to 

Engineer the Agreement for Consulting Services for Road Improvement District No. 538 (Richard Avenue, 
Lindgren Road, Evee Drive & A Frontage Road) substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
2. The source of payment for the consultant services will be City Fund No. __________. 

 
 Councilor _____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor _____ and upon a 
vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted August 2, 2021.  



Work Plan and Costs

Project Tasks
Project

Manager

Project

Engineer
Technician

Estimated

Fee

Task 1 - Preliminary Engineering (0-30% Plans) (August 2021 - September 25, 2021)

1.1 Field Review of Project with City of Hermantown Staff 4 4 $ 1,160.00

1.2 Review Survey and Geotechnical Report 2 6 8 $ 1,740.00

1.3 Utility Coordination Meeting (Preparation, Meeting & Meeting Summary) 2 2 16 $ 1,860.00

1.4 Preliminary Roadway Plan, Typical Sections & Storm Sewer Layout 4 8 60 $ 6,480.00

1.5 Identify Areas of needed Permanent & Temporary Easement Acquisition and meeting 6 6 4 $ 2,060.00

1.6   City Council Meeting & Preparation 2 4 $ 840.00

1.7 30% Engineers Estimate 1 1 $ 290.00

30% Design Review (September 27, 2021)

NCE Task 1 Design Hours & Fee: 21 31 88 $ 14,430.00

Task 2 - Design Engineering (30-60% Plans) (September 27, 2021 - November 20, 2021)

2.1   Utility Coordination Meeting (Preparation, Meeting & Meeting Summary) 1 1 $ 290.00

2.2   Identify Design Criteria (Pavement, Hydraulics, Utilities) 4 4 $ 1,160.00

2.3   Roadway Plan & Profile Sheets 4 6 24 $ 3,340.00

2.4   Preliminary SEQ, Schedules, Standard Plates, Details, Typical Sections 2 6 16 $ 2,380.00

2.5   Hydraulic Analysis & Culvert Sizing 2 24 $ 3,440.00

2.6   Preliminary Sheet Development (Title Sheet, Schedule, Details, Cross Sections, SWPPP, etc.) 2 8 60 $ 6,160.00

2.7   Preliminary Bidding Document Development 2 6 $ 1,100.00

2.8   Meet with MNDOT District 1 Office 4 4 $ 1,160.00

2.9   City Council Meeting & Preparation 1 1 $ 290.00

2.10   60% Engineers Estimate 1 1 $ 290.00

2.11   Public Meeting & Preparation (1 Assumed Meeting, November 2021) 1 1 $ 290.00

60% Design Review (November 22, 2021)

NCE Task 2 Design Hours & Fee: 24 62 100 $ 19,900.00

Task 3 - Design Engineering (60-90% Plans) (November 22, 2021 - December 18, 2021)

3.1 Field Review with City of Hermantown Staff 2 2 $ 580.00

3.2 Coordination with County - Connection to Haines Road 1 1 $ 290.00

3.3 Utility Coordination Meeting (Preparation, Meeting & Meeting Summary) 2 2 $ 580.00

3.4 Roadway Plan and Profile Sheets 2 10 40 $ 4,820.00

3.5 SEQ, Schedules, Standard Plates, Details, Typical Sections 4 12 8 $ 2,840.00

3.6 Watermain Plan and Profiles & MDH Permit Application 1 8 16 $ 2,480.00

3.7 Provide Easement Data to ALTA for Exhibit Preparation 2 2 4 $ 900.00

3.8 Sheet Development (Title Sheet, Schedule, Details, Cross Sections, SWPPP, etc.) 2 12 64 $ 7,000.00

3.9 Bidding Documents 4 14 $ 2,460.00

3.10 City Council Meeting & Preparation 4 8 $ 1,680.00

3.11 90% Engineers Estimate 1 2 $ 420.00

3.12 Preparation of Wetland Exhibits 2 4 $ 580.00

90% Design Review (December 20, 2021)

NCE Task 3 Design Hours & Fee: 25 75 136 $ 24,630.00

Task 4 - Design Engineering (90-100% Plans) (December 20, 2021 - January 15, 2022)

4.1 Coordination with County - Connection to HainesRoad 1 1 $ 290.00

4.2 Final Utility Coordination Meeting 2 2 $ 580.00

4.3 Roadway Plan and Profile Sheets 4 4 12 $ 2,120.00

4.4 SEQ, Schedules, Standard Plates, Details, Typical Sections 2 8 12 $ 2,320.00

4.5 Watermain Plan and Profiles 2 4 8 $ 1,480.00

4.6 Final Sheet Development (Title Sheet, Schedule, Details, Cross Sections, SWPPP, etc.) 2 24 60 $ 8,240.00

4.7 Final Bidding Documents and Special Provisions 4 8 $ 1,680.00

4.8 Final Engineers Estimate 1 1 $ 290.00

4.9 Meeting with MNDOT District 1 2 2 $ 580.00

100% Plans, Specifications & Estimate Submitted to City of Hermantown (January 15, 2022)

NCE Task 4 Design Hours & Fee: 20 54 92 $ 17,580.00

Task 5 - Construction Engineering (May 9, 2022 - August 13, 2022)

5.1 Project Management 40 60 $ 14,200.00

5.2 Preconstruction Conference & Bidding Assistance 2 2 $ 580.00

5.3 Weekly Construction Meetings & Summary 15 15 $ 4,350.00

5.4 Shop Drawing Review 1 4 $ 680.00

5.5 Construction Inspection (15 weeks @ 40 hrs/week) 600 $ 48,000.00

5.6 Materials Testing Coordination 8 $ 1,040.00

5.7 Review and Prepare Payment Applications 4 12 12 $ 3,160.00

5.8 Record Drawing Preparation 1 8 8 $ 1,840.00

Completion of Construction (September 12th, 2022)

NCE Task 5 Construction Hours & Fee: 63 109 620 $ 73,850.00

NCE TOTAL (TASKS 1-4) DESIGN ENGINEERING HOURS & FEE: 90 222 416 $ 76,540.00

NCE TOTAL (TASK 5) CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING HOURS & FEE: 63 109 620 $ 73,850.00

Sub-Consultants

ONE - Electrical Lighting Design Lump Sum $ 9,245.00

Alta Land Survey Company - Topographic Mapping and Data Processing Lump Sum $ 5,000.00

Alta Land Survey Company - Right of Way Base Mapping, Staking and Easement Exhibits Lump Sum $ 3,250.00

Alta Land Survey Company - Construction Staking Lump Sum $ 12,500.00

Sub-Consultant Fee: $ 29,995.00

NCE Hourly Rates NCE Fee Breakdown

Project Manager $160.00 NCE Design Fee: $ 76,540.00

Project Engineer $130.00 NCE Construction Fee: $ 73,850.00

Civil Technician $80.00 Subconsultant Fee: $ 29,995.00

Total NCE Fee: $ 180,385.00

Notes & Assumptions:

1) The City of Hermantown will be providing wetland delineation and permitting.

2) The City of Hermantown will be providing geotechnical recommendations.

3) The City of Hermantown will be providing materials testing.

David Bolf, P.E. - Principal Partner - Lic. No. 40926 Date: 7/27/21

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Page 1 of 7 

OBERNEL PROJECT PROPOSAL 

David Bolf 
NCE 
 
Hermantown Street Improvements to Richard Ave and Lindgren Road. 
 
Dear David, 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

Add necessary street lighting and lighting controls to the areas of road improvement on 
Richard Ave and Lindgren road.  Work with Minnesota Power to coordinate power for the new 
lighting and controls cabinet.

PERSONNEL: 

Electrical Engineer: Nathan Eisenbarth 
  

SCHEDULE: 

Construction Documents Due Date or Duration: End of 2021\Early 2022 
Bid Date or Duration: January 2022 
Construction Completion Date or Duration: Fall 2022 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

1. Division 26 – Electrical 
a. Power Distribution: Power new street lighting and controls from either existing 

electrical or coordinate with Minnesota Power for a new service to the lighting control 
cabinet.  

b. Exterior Illumination: Provide street lighting and controls along streets as identified in 
the project description.  

PROPOSED STANDARD ENGINEERING SERVICES INCLUDE: 

1. Preparation of construction documents plans using latest version of AutoCAD.  
2. Attending (virtual or live) (4) design and coordination meetings. 
3. Coordination of work with civil and any other general construction. 
4. Preparation of construction documents plans. 
5. Preparation of addenda. 
6. Shop drawing review. 
7. Three (3) construction site observations, (2) during construction and (1) for punch list 
8. Preparation of proposal requests, including drawings and specifications requested for 

construction contract change orders. 

ADDITIONAL SERVICE FEES (NOT INCLUDED IN SERVICES ABOVE): 

1. Electrical Specification documents. 
2. Construction cost estimates at the following phase of design: 

a. Schematic Design 
b. Design Development 
c. Construction Documents 

3. Update AutoCAD/Revit for as-built purposes. 



 
 
 

Page 2 of 7 

FEES:  

This fee is based on an approximate construction budget of $1.925MM and the Project 
Description and Scope outlined in this document. 

Phase    Obernel Fee 

Design and Bidding    $7,185 

Construction 
Administration 

   $2,060 

Total    $9,245 

THE FOLLOWING EXPENSES WILL BE REIMBURSED AT COST + 10% MARKUP: 

1. Code Review submittal costs. 
2. Printing costs for check sets and document coordination. 
3. Shipping charges. 
4. Drawing building backgrounds if building AutoCAD and/or Revit is not available: $0.40/sf 
5. Specification reproduction: $0.10/face B&W, $0.25/face color. 
6. Electronic drawing transfer: $100/file. 
7. Sub consultants. 
8. Travel costs to any site more than 100 miles from a branch office.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  We look forward to working with you 
on this project. Please feel free to give us a call if you have any further questions. 

ACCEPTED BY: 

Obernel 
Signature: ________________________________________ Date: _______7-26-2021__________ 
 
Printed Name: ____Nathan Eisenbarth, PE________________________ 
 
 
Client 
Signature: ________________________________________ Date: _______________________ 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
  



DATE:  2021 
 
TO:   City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator 
 
RE:   Correspondence 
 
In your packet is a correspondence summary log.  
This briefly summarizes and assigns a log number 
for written correspondence received at City Hall.  
You are provided with the summary so that you may 
request a full copy of any correspondence article of 
interest to you.  Bonnie & I have copied only the 
correspondence that we believe to be of special 
interest. 
 
JM 



7/15/2021 21-114 Nancy Nilsen, St. 
Louis County Auditor 

City of Hermantown Notice of Expiration of 
Redemption - Ray Voigt, 
4472 Lavaque Rd. 

7/12/2021 

      
7/15/2021 21-115 Jacob Smokovitz, MN 

Pollution Control 
Agency 

Joe Hughes, 400 
Water St., Ste. 200, 
Excelsior, MN 
55331-3001 

Pillars of Hermantown, 
5091 Maple Grove Rd. 

7/15/2021 

      
7/19/2021 21-116 Ryan Kern, Duluth 

Airshow 
John Mulder, City 
Administrator 

2021 Duluth Air & 
Aviation Expo 

7/13/2021 

      
7/19/2021 21-117 Stacy Melcher, St. 

Louis County 
Bonnie Engseth, 
City Clerk 

State Tax Forfeited Land 
Sale 395-0097-00172 

7/15/2021 

      
7/21/2021 21-118 Pam Brown, St. Louis 

County Land & 
Minerals Dept. 

City of Hermantown Conveyance of Forfeited 
Lands - 395-0010-03121 

7/20/2021 

      
7/21/2021 21-119 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Planning 
Commission 

SUP - Charles Johnson, 
4168 Lindahl Rd. 

7/20/2021 

      
7/21/2021 21-120 Eric Johnson, Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Planning 
Commission 

SUB - Payton Acres 
Final Plat, 3956 Stebner 
Rd. 

7/20/2021 

      
7/21/2021 21-121 Eric Johnson. Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Planning 
Commission 

Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendments to Chapter 
11 - Planned Unit 
Development 

7/20/2021 

      
7/21/2021 21-122 Eric Johnson. Comm. 

Dev. Dir. 
Park Board Landscape Application 

Agreement - Rose Rd., 
Field 3 

8/18/2020 

      
7/22/2021 21-123 Dwight Morrison, Park 

Board Member 
Eric Johnson, 
Comm. Dev. Dir. 

3 Year Drought 
Comments 

7/22/2021 

      
7/23/2021 21-124 Bart & Lisa Smith, 

3761 Johnson  Rd. 
Eric Johnson, 
Comm. Dev. Dir 

Carlson Rd. Extension 7/22/2021 

      
7/26/2021 21-125 John Ek, 5076 

Hermantown Rd. 
Wayne Boucher, 
Mayor 

Complaint - Beacon 
Sports Bar & Grill, 5044 
Hermantown Rd. 

7/21/2021 

      



7/26/2021 21-126 Eric Johnson, Comm. 
Dev. Dir. 

Bart & Lisa Smith, 
3761 Johnson Rd. 

Carlson Rd. 
Development 

7/23/2021 

      
7/26/2021 21-127 Lisa Smith, 3761 

Johnson Rd. 
Eric Johnson, 
Comm. Dev. Dir. 

Carlson Rd. 
Development 

7/23/2021 

      
7/26/2021 21-128 Joe Wicklund, 

Communications & 
Community 
Engagement 

Lisa Smith, 3761 
Johnson Rd. 

Carlson Rd. 
Development 

7/23/2021 

      
7/26/2021 21-129 Lisa Smith, 3761 

Johnson Rd. 
Joe Wicklund, 
Communication & 
Community 
Engagement & Eric 
Johnson, Comm. 
Dev. Dir. 

Carlson Rd. 
Development 

7/23/2021 

      
7/26/2021 21-130 Joe Wicklund, 

Communications & 
Community 
Engagement 

Lisa Smith, 3761 
Johnson Rd. 

Carlson Rd. 
Development 

7/23/2021 

      
7/26/2021 21-131 Gunnar Johnson, 

Overom Law 
John Mulder, City 
Administrator & 
Bonnie Engseth, 
City Clerk 

Data Practices Act 
Procedures 

7/22/2021 

      
7/27/2021 21-132 Kristin Lukes, MN 

Employment & 
Economic 
Development 

Wayne Boucher, 
Mayor 

Essentia Wellness 
Center - Onsite 
Monitoring of Grantee 
Performance 

7/16/2021 

      
7/27/2021 21-133 Ryan Bloomberg, MN 

Employment & 
Economic 
Development 

John Mulder, City 
Administrator 

Essentia Wellness 
Center - Onsite 
Monitoring of Grantee 
Performance 

7/16/2021 

      
7/27/2021 21-134 Robert Pagano, 4657 

Lavaque Rd. 
John Mulder, City 
Administrator 

Johnson Rd. 7/22/2021 

      
 



CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
CITY COUNCIL CONTINUATION MEETING 
July 19, 2021 
6:30 p.m. 
 

MEETING CONDUCTED IN PERSON & VIA ZOOM 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
ROLL CALL:  Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher 
 
CITY STAFF: John Mulder, City Administrator; Bonnie Engseth, City Clerk; Eric Johnson, 

Community Development Director; Joe Wicklund, Communications Director; Jim 
Crace, Chief of Police; Steve Overom, City Attorney; David Bolf, City Engineer 

 
ABSENT:  
 
VISITORS: 3 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Communications 21-107 through and including 21-113 were read and placed on file. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Nelson to approve the Consent Agenda which 
includes the following items: 
 
 A. Approve July 6, 2021 City Council Minutes 
  
 B. Approve general city warrants from July 1, 2021 through July 15, 2021 in 
      the amount of $883,286.86 
  
Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried.  
 
MOTIONS 
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Hauschild to approve the Massage 
Establishment License For Divine Intentions, LLC, 4897 Miller Trunk Hwy. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, 
Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Hauschild to approve the Massage Therapist 
License for Racheal Pecchia. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, 
aye. Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Continuation Meeting 
July 19, 2021 
Page | 2 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
2021-04 An Ordinance Amending Section 1000, State Building Code, Of The Hermantown Code 
                Ordinances 
 
First Reading 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
2021-84 Resolution Authorizing A Request For Proposals For Professional Services With Bolton & 

Menk, Inc. For Reconditioning Miller Trunk Hwy Water Tower  
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Hauschild to adopt Resolution 2021-84, 
Resolution Authorizing A Request For Proposals For Professional Services With Bolton & Menk, Inc. For 
Reconditioning Miller Trunk Hwy Water Tower. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, 
Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2021-85 Resolution Approving Pay Request Number 2 For Keene Creek Park Trail To Veit & 

Company, Inc. In The Amount Of $123,121.52 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Geissler to adopt Resolution 2021-85, 
Resolution Approving Pay Request Number 2 For Keene Creek Trail To Veit & Company, Inc. In The 
Amount Of $123,121.52. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
2021-86 Resolution Of The City Of Hermantown Lifting Emergency 
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Nelson to adopt Resolution 2021-86, 
Resolution Of The City Of Hermantown Lifting Emergency. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, 
Nelson, Peterson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Geissler to recess the meeting at 6:42 p.m. 
Motion carried. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
      Clerk 



PAYROLL CHECKS 

Electronic Checks - #70531 - 70575 76,787.94

Electronic Checks - #70473-70521 78,863.32

LIABILITY CHECKS 

Electronic Checks - #70525 - 70530 $59,528.89

Electronic Checks - #70467-70472 $56,078.22

Check - #67645 - 67650 $70,899.50

Checks - #67712-67714 $2,674.44

PAYROLL EXPENSE TOTAL $344,832.31

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Check - #67651-67652 $3,503.50

Checks - #67653-67711 $411,734.26

Electronic Payments -#-99855-99857 $7,247.59

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TOTAL $422,485.35

TOTAL $767,317.66

CITY OF HERMANTOWN

CHECKS #67645 -67714 
07/16/2021-07/31/2021



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 07/16/2021-07/31/2021
Check # is between 67645 and 67714 or Check # is between -99857 and -99855

7/27/2021 Page 1

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

251 421801 DARE & Police Liaison Fund FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Johnson         310.78  -99857
601 494400 Water Administration and General FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Orme           3.25  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Battaglia          39.00  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Crace          22.83  -99857
101 415300 Administration & Finance FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Orme           9.74  -99857
101 419900 General Government Buildings & Property FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Orme          34.67  -99857
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Orme           3.25  -99857
101 452100 Parks FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Senst          10.82  -99857
101 415300 Administration & Finance FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Orme         401.85  -99857
101 415300 Administration & Finance FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Orme          38.67  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Heinbuch          60.19  -99857
101 415300 Administration & Finance FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Orme          27.74  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Pernu         254.56  -99857
601 494300 Water Distribution FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Bjonskaas          37.58  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Johnson          11.59  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Battaglia       1,081.50  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Dwyer          16.24  -99857
101 452100 Parks FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Senst         334.36  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Pfeiffer         271.98  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Enright           8.00  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Salo          10.69  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Forensen          59.98  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Esterbrook         208.21  -99857
101 431100 Street Department FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Senst          20.00  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Pernu         120.00  -99857
101 431100 Street Department FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Senst         173.38  -99857
101 421100 Police Administration FIRST BANKCARD June First Bankcard Gunderson          19.22  -99857
101 217450 Employee Flexplan FURTHER ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS Claim Reimbursement - Electron         705.70  -99856
101 217450 Employee Flexplan FURTHER ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS Claim Reimbursement       2,951.81  -99855
101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. NORTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE Inactives (Health Ins Aug)         850.30   67651
101 421100 Police Administration NORTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE Inactives (Health Ins Aug)       1,388.70   67651
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance SJE-RHOMBUS, INC. SCADA Monitoring Apr-Jun 2021       1,264.50   67652
601 494300 Water Distribution ACME TOOLS Impact for Hydrants/H2O line         249.00   67653
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General ADVANTAGE EMBLEM & SCREEN PRINTING INC G. Leibel Employee Recognition          73.98   67654
601 494400 Water Administration and General ADVANTAGE EMBLEM & SCREEN PRINTING INC G. Leibel Employee Recognition          73.98   67654
101 421100 Police Administration APPLIED CONCEPTS INC Radar Mounts         302.00   67655
101 419100 Community Development ARROWHEAD ABSTRACT & TITLE CO. O-308743 BMAX Inc.          75.00   67656
101 452100 Parks ASDCO CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY Erosion Mat          76.00   67657



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 07/16/2021-07/31/2021
Check # is between 67645 and 67714 or Check # is between -99857 and -99855

7/27/2021 Page 2

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 421100 Police Administration AT-SCENE LLC Software sub iCrimeFighter       3,600.00   67658
475 431150 Street Improvements BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION MnDOT Soil Test (Old HWY2)         740.00   67659
475 431150 Street Improvements BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION MnDOT Soil Test (Lav Jct Rd)       3,095.50   67659
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          10.80   67660
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at PW           7.00   67660
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Supplies          15.00   67660
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          26.41   67660
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Supplies          30.00   67660
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          26.41   67660
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at CH           8.88   67660
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          10.80   67660
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at PW          25.48   67660
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at FD/PD          30.72   67660
601 494300 Water Distribution CITY OF DULUTH COMFORT SYSTEMS June Water Charges      81,704.33   67661
251 421100 Police Administration CROW-GOEBEL VETERINARY CLINIC, P A Jack - Vet         425.00   67662
251 421100 Police Administration CROW-GOEBEL VETERINARY CLINIC, P A Jack - Vet         144.20   67662
601 220100 Refund Payable DEROSIER, GERALD OR MILDRED Overpayment on account 1550-01          22.15   67663
101 421100 Police Administration DULUTH DODGE INC Vehicle Maint 2015 Dodge Duran         294.25   67664
350 415300 Administration & Finance EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC Debt Study       1,530.00   67665
350 415300 Administration & Finance EHLERS & ASSOCIATES INC Debt Study         382.50   67665
251 421100 Police Administration EMERGENCY AUTOMOTIVE TECHNOLOGIES INC Squad Equipment K9       2,878.50   67666
101 421100 Police Administration EMERGENCY AUTOMOTIVE TECHNOLOGIES INC ADJ credit memo radar rpr Sq21         112.50   67666
101 421100 Police Administration EMERGENCY AUTOMOTIVE TECHNOLOGIES INC Squad Equipment       9,144.08   67666
460 431150 Street Improvements EXPRESS INVESTORS OF DULUTH, LLC 1st half TIF payment 2021      31,413.95   67667
460 431150 Street Improvements EXPRESS INVESTORS OF DULUTH, LLC 1st half TIF payment 2021       7,311.35   67667
601 220100 Refund Payable FANNING-ROSE, BRENDA Overpayment on account 1865-02         137.29   67668
601 494300 Water Distribution FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC H2O Valve Nut          85.50   67669
601 494300 Water Distribution FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 Hydrant Parts         127.84   67670
601 494300 Water Distribution FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 Fire Hydrants       6,923.96   67670
101 431901 City Garage FIREPRO SPRINKLER SPECIALISTS, INC Annual Sprinkler Inspections         250.00   67671
601 220100 Refund Payable FOLTZ, STEVEN Overpayment on account 1903-03          14.83   67672
101 421100 Police Administration GALLS, LLC - DBA UNIFORMS UNLIMITED Uniforms         500.80   67673
601 220100 Refund Payable GENADEK, CHRISTOPHER Overpayment on account 1587-08          10.71   67674
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance GOODIN COMPANY INC City Admin Boiler          14.70   67675
101 421100 Police Administration GREAT LAKES MOBIL LUBE EXPRESS Oil Change Squad 15          56.91   67676
101 415300 Administration & Finance GREATAMERICA FINANCIAL SERVICES Copier Lease/Konica July          96.00   67677
101 431100 Street Department H & L MESABI Correct Bolt Size       3,624.88   67678
101 431100 Street Department H & L MESABI Wrong Bolt size - returned all      -3,624.88   67678



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 07/16/2021-07/31/2021
Check # is between 67645 and 67714 or Check # is between -99857 and -99855

7/27/2021 Page 3

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 452100 Parks HERMANTOWN HYDRAULICS Hose Jim's mower          90.36   67679
101 419100 Community Development HERMANTOWN STAR LLC Public Hearing P&Z ran 7/8/21          49.50   67680
101 431100 Street Department HOME MENDERS INC Curb on Stebner & Rader Rd       1,100.00   67681
101 415300 Administration & Finance IIMC Membership Engseth ID 39228         175.00   67682
101 415300 Administration & Finance INTEGRATED OFFICE SOLUTIONS Copy Overage Konica         230.33   67683
101 415300 Administration & Finance INTEGRATED OFFICE SOLUTIONS Copy Overage Toshiba          33.20   67683
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance JOHNSTONE SUPPLY Tool for A/C Chiller Maintenan          17.74   67684
101 431100 Street Department KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES Bearings H-4 Sander         163.91   67685
275 452200 Community Building MEDIACOM EWC - Telephone         460.60   67686
275 452200 Community Building MEDIACOM EWC - Cable TV - July         158.46   67686
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance MENARD INC Hand Tool/Cleaning Supplies         112.86   67687
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance MENARD INC Supplies - Front Entry PD          63.39   67687
601 494300 Water Distribution MENARD INC Marking Paint          77.76   67687
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance MENARD INC Marking Paint          77.76   67687
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance MENARD INC Marking Paint          69.12   67687
601 494300 Water Distribution MENARD INC SCH40 Coupling - H2O Tower Sum           2.58   67687
601 494300 Water Distribution MENARD INC H2O Tower Interior Bldg Repair         117.46   67687
601 494300 Water Distribution MENARD INC Marking Paint          69.12   67687
101 421100 Police Administration METRO SALES INC Copier Lease         361.76   67688
461 431150 Street Improvements MILLS PROPERTIES, INC. 1st Half City Taxes      20,467.98   67689
461 431150 Street Improvements MILLS PROPERTIES, INC. 1st Half City Taxes      46,590.09   67689
601 494300 Water Distribution MINARDI LUMBER AND MILLWORK OC-Rigid-2"x4x8 Morris Thomas         891.60   67690
101 422901 Firehall #1  Maple Grove Road MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas -FH#1         156.01   67691
101 431901 City Garage MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Comm Building          33.30   67691
275 452200 Community Building MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas EWC       2,958.06   67691
601 494400 Water Administration and General MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr          26.71   67691
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr          16.69   67691
101 431901 City Garage MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas old CH           6.82   67691
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas CH/PD         100.97   67691
101 431901 City Garage MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr          23.37   67691
101 452200 Community Building MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas old CH          61.35   67691
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas -CH/PD         127.64   67691
101 452100 Parks MN POWER 0606881181 Parks         540.27   67692
101 452100 Parks MN POWER 7463700000 Little Leagues          17.84   67692
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 0733871171 Traffic Lights         621.55   67692
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 0234310000 Overhead St Lights         412.50   67692
601 494400 Water Administration and General MN POWER 4995600000 Electricty PW         196.03   67692
101 422901 Firehall #1  Maple Grove Road MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity FH#1       1,687.32   67692



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 07/16/2021-07/31/2021
Check # is between 67645 and 67714 or Check # is between -99857 and -99855

7/27/2021 Page 4

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

601 494400 Water Administration and General MN POWER 3623400000 Electricty Water         743.04   67692
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity CH       2,639.13   67692
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 0041881181 Street Lights         408.69   67692
101 422902 Firehall #2  Morris Thomas Road MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity FH#2          87.05   67692
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General MN POWER 4995600000 Electricty PW         130.69   67692
101 422903 Firehall #3  Midway Road MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity FH#3          73.85   67692
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General MN POWER 0973881171 Sewer         478.59   67692
275 452200 Community Building MN POWER 5498955531 4289 Ugstad Rd/EWC      12,624.61   67692
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 6175310000 Street Lights         617.45   67692
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 1424100000 Street Lights         214.46   67692
101 452200 Community Building MN POWER 0606881181 Comm Bldg         408.85   67692
275 452200 Community Building MN POWER 3481871314 EWC Garage          29.12   67692
101 431901 City Garage MN POWER 4995600000 Electricty PW         326.71   67692
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 0247020000 Street Lights         336.95   67692
101 431901 City Garage MN POWER 4995600000 Electricity Maple G          14.94   67692
605 431160 Street Lighting MN POWER 3060281959 St Lghts Roundabout          16.36   67692
402 431150 Street Improvements MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC. Ugstad Rd Reconditioning MSA P      10,406.00   67693
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance NAPA AUTO PARTS Battery - Front Deck Lawn Mwr         107.99   67694
101 431100 Street Department NAPA AUTO PARTS DE Fluid          46.76   67694
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance NAPA AUTO PARTS Front Deck Mower           8.76   67694
601 494400 Water Administration and General NORTH RISK PARTNERS Cyber Liability         688.00   67695
601 150000 Prepaid Items NORTH RISK PARTNERS Cyber Liability         687.00   67695
101 492200 Insurance NORTH RISK PARTNERS Cyber Liability         688.00   67695
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General NORTH RISK PARTNERS Cyber Liability         688.00   67695
101 150000 Prepaid Items NORTH RISK PARTNERS Cyber Liability         688.00   67695
602 150000 Prepaid Items NORTH RISK PARTNERS Cyber Liability         687.00   67695
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN ENGINE & SUPPLY INC Sander Parts          39.00   67696
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN ENGINE & SUPPLY INC Sander Fittings           9.00   67696
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN STATES SUPPLY INC Emery Cloth          24.83   67697
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN STATES SUPPLY INC Lynch & Hitch Pins for JD trac          10.66   67697
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN STATES SUPPLY INC Emery Cloth          35.80   67697
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN STATES SUPPLY INC Hand Wipes          25.07   67697
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction OVEROM LAW, PLLC 2017 Sewer Trunkline - Sec 24           5.00   67698
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC General Matters/Retainer       1,250.00   67698
101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC Jenny Farms/Jenny Acres Dev         240.00   67698
101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC Kolquist Assisted Living Proj         897.50   67698
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Purchasing Policy Matters         126.00   67698
101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC Oppidan Development          90.00   67698



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 07/16/2021-07/31/2021
Check # is between 67645 and 67714 or Check # is between -99857 and -99855

7/27/2021 Page 5

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC Zierden Okerstrom Rd Dev         345.00   67698
601 494400 Water Administration and General OVEROM LAW, PLLC Water/Sewer Applications         903.25   67698
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Data Practices Requests          45.00   67698
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction OVEROM LAW, PLLC Northwoods Prop (Easement)       2,604.50   67698
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Winter Parking          28.00   67698
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General OVEROM LAW, PLLC Water/Sewer Applications         903.25   67698
101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC 2017 Richard Avenue & Lindgren         343.00   67698
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC 2021 Recreation Facility         750.00   67698
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction OVEROM LAW, PLLC Stauber Properties Partnership         358.00   67698
475 431150 Street Improvements OVEROM LAW, PLLC Lavaque Junction Street Imp         182.00   67698
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Anderson Rd Nuisance -Buchanan         279.00   67698
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Nuisance Ordinance           7.50   67698
101 424100 Building Inspection OVEROM LAW, PLLC Building Code Update         649.00   67698
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction OVEROM LAW, PLLC Plaisted, Oliver & Frye          15.00   67698
230 465100 HEDA OVEROM LAW, PLLC Marketplace Anchor Project       1,587.50   67698
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC JAZB Board of Appeals       1,960.00   67698
101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC Keene Creek Plat Matters         486.00   67698
101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC Planning & Zoning Commission          35.00   67698
101 431100 Street Department PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC Cyl Rent/Safe Env 5/20-6/20/21         270.76   67699
101 421100 Police Administration SAFELITE FULFILLMENT, INC Windshield Replacement         644.56   67700
601 494300 Water Distribution SATHERS, LLC Screened Material - Top Soil         210.00   67701
101 421100 Police Administration SHEL/DON GROUP INC Police Letterhead         221.93   67702
101 421100 Police Administration SHEL/DON GROUP INC Business Cards Pernu          69.04   67702
101 419100 Community Development ST LOUIS COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE SUP Triple J Holdings          46.00   67703
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance STACK BROS MECHANICAL HVAC Repair       2,191.67   67704
101 415300 Administration & Finance STRATEGIC INSIGHTS INC Annual License Renew CIP Sftwr         375.00   67705
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General STRATEGIC INSIGHTS INC Annual License Renew CIP Sftwr         187.50   67705
601 494400 Water Administration and General STRATEGIC INSIGHTS INC Annual License Renew CIP Sftwr         187.50   67705
101 421100 Police Administration SUN CONTROL OF MN Squad Graphics       2,790.00   67706
101 421100 Police Administration SYMBOLARTS Badges         377.50   67707
101 431100 Street Department TOWMASTER Step Flip Away SS for H4         468.00   67708
101 421100 Police Administration USA TOWING & RECOVERY Tow - DWI Forfeiture #21081284          85.00   67709
101 421100 Police Administration USA TOWING & RECOVERY Tow - DWI Forfeiture #21071340          65.00   67709
601 494400 Water Administration and General VALLI INFORMATION SYSTEMS, INC June Bill Print         639.37   67710
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General VALLI INFORMATION SYSTEMS, INC June Bill Print         639.37   67710
603 441100 Storm Water VALLI INFORMATION SYSTEMS, INC June Bill Print         639.36   67710
412 419100 Community Development VEIT & COMPANY INC Keene Creek Park Trail     123,121.52   67711



Totals: 189 records printed     422,485.35 



City Council Agenda Report  Ordinance 2021-04 
August 2, 2021  Agenda Item: 11-A 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: July 28, 2021 
 

Meeting Date:  8/2/21 

SUBJECT: Ordinance – Amend Building 
Code Language 

Agenda Item: 11-A Ordinance 2021-04 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Second Reading of an ordinance amending Chapter 10 – State Building Code 

 
BACKGROUND 
Recent changes in MN statues required the city to update Chapter10 – Building Code of the City of 
Hermantown code of ordinances.  Most of these changes dealt with statutory references. Attached is the 
final version. 
  

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

ATTACHMENTS 
Final Ordinance 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2021-04 
 
 
The City Council of the City of Hermantown does ordain:  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1000, STATE BUILDING CODE,  
OF THE HERMANTOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 Section 1. Purpose and Intent. The purpose and intent of this Ordinance is to update statutory 
amendments to Chapter 10, Section 1000 of the Hermantown Code of Ordinances adopting the State 
Building Code.  The primary purpose of the Minnesota State Building Code is to provide minimum 
standards to safeguard life and limb, health, property, and public welfare by regulating and controlling the 
design, construction, quality of materials, use and occupancy, location, and maintenance of all structures 
and equipment specifically covered by the code of the City of Hermantown.  
 
 Section 2. Adoption of Amendments to Section 1000.  The City Council hereby adopts the 
amendments to Section 1000, State Building Code, of the Hermantown City Code of Ordinances as 
shown on Exhibit A attached hereto.     

 
Section 3. Amended and Inserted in the Code. After the amendment made by this ordinance 

becomes effective, it shall be inserted in the appropriate place in the Hermantown City Code. 
 
Section 4. Effective Date. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be effective after adoption and 

immediately upon publication once in the official newspaper of the City of Hermantown. 
 

Dated the ________ day of ________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________ 
         Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted: ______________________ 
 
Published: _____________________ 
 
Effective Date: __________________ 



1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Section 1000 - State Building Code 

     
1000.01 State Building Code Adopted. The Minnesota State Building Code, established pursuant to 
M.S. Chapter 326B, as they may be amended from time to time by the Minnesota Commissioner of 
Labor and Industry, through the Building Codes and Standards Unit, and published, shall be hereby 
adopted as the Building Code for the City of Hermantown, and shall be incorporated into this section 
with the exception of the optional chapters, unless specifically adopted in this ordinance. 
 
1000.02 Option Enforcement Provisions Adopted. 
 

1000.02.1. The following optional provisions identified in the most current edition of the 
Minnesota State Building code are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference as part of the building 
code for the City of Hermantown: 

 
1000.02.1.1. Chapter 1306, Special Fire Protection Systems; and 

1000.02.1.2.  2018 IBC Appendix Chapter J – Grading. 

1000.02 Application, Administration and Enforcement. The application, administration and 
enforcement of the Minnesota State Building Code in the City shall be in accordance with M.S. 
Chapter 326B, as it may be amended from time to time, and Minnesota Rules Chapters 1300 and 1305, 
as they may be amended from time to time. The City Council, pursuant to M.S. Section 326B.133, as 
it may be amended from time to time, shall appoint a building official who shall attend to all aspects 
of Building Code administration. Additional members of a City Building Department shall be 
authorized by the City Council as needed. The Minnesota State Building Code shall be enforced 
within the incorporated limits of the City, and within the exterritorial limits permitted by M.S. Section 
326B.121, Subd. 2(d), as it may be amended from time to time. 

 
1000.03 Permits, Inspections and Fees. Permits shall be issued, inspections conducted and fees 
collected as provided for in M.S. Section  326B.153, as it may be amended from time to time. 

 
1000.04 Surcharge. In addition to the permit fee required under Minnesota Rules Chapter 1300, the 
applicant for a building permit shall pay a surcharge to be remitted to the Minnesota Department of 
Administration as prescribed by M.S. Section 326B.148, as it may be amended from time to time. 



City Council Agenda Report    Ordinances 2021-05 & 2021-06 
August 2, 2021         Agenda Items: 11-B & C 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Kevin Orme, Director of 
Finance & Administration 

DATE: July 27, 2021 Meeting Date: 8/2/21 

SUBJECT: Utility Ordinance 
Amendments 

Agenda Item: 11-B & C Ordinances 2021-05 & 
   2021-06 

REQUESTED ACTION 
First Reading – Utility Ordinance Amendments 

BACKGROUND 
It has been many years since the water and sewer utility ordinances have been reviewed and updated. Steve 
Overom, Gunnar Johnson, Paul Senst, Lindsay Townsend, and myself had several meetings to revise and 
update these ordinances. The revised ordinances were presented to and accepted by the Utility Commission 
in July. Below are highlights of some of the changes. 

• Removed section 905 and integrated that information into sections 930 & 940
• Changed verbiage about receipt of payments.  Currently we accept credit card, cash, ACH, and

check payments.  Old ordinance stated that we only accept cash
• Changed verbiage about reading meters.  We currently read meters electronically.  Old ordinance

stated that residents are to mail in their readings
• Replaced “Superintendent” with “Public Works Director”
• Added sections about temporary water meters and irrigation meters
• Added verbiage to include frozen meters as customers responsibility to pay for replacement
• Added 930.03.5 regarding imposing sewer availability charges and 940.08.5 regarding imposing

water availability charges
• Made small changes to Utility Commission Ordinance Section 230.02

SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS 
Utility Ordinance Amendments 



Ordinance No. 2021-__ 
 
The City Council of the City of Hermantown does ordain: 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9. UTILITIES AND SERVICES, 
OF THE HERMANTOWN CITY CODE 

 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent. The purpose and intent of this Ordinance to update and 

modernize the requirements in Chapter 9 surrounding water and sewer use in the City of 
Hermantown, including revisions to the verbiage, availability charges and meters.  

 
Section 2. Amendment to Chapter 9. Chapter 9. Utilities and Services is hereby amended 

and restated in its entirety to read as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto.  
 
Section 3. Amended and Inserted in the Code. After the amendment made by this ordinance 

becomes effective, it shall be inserted in the appropriate place in the Hermantown City Code. 
 
Section 4. Effective Date. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be effective after adoption 

and immediately upon publication once in the official newspaper of the City of Hermantown. 
 
Dated the ________ day of ________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________ 
         Mayor 
ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted: ______________________ 
 
Published: _____________________ 
 
Effective Date: __________________ 

Style Definition: TOC 1

Style Definition: Heading 1

Style Definition: Normal: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri),
Space After:  8 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted



CHAPTER 9.  UTILITIES AND SERVICES 

EXHIBIT A 

CHAPTER 9.  UTILITIES AND SERVICES 

Contents 
Section 900 - Solid Waste ................................................................................................................... 3 

Section 905 - Water and Sewer Utility ............................................................................................... 13 

Section 906 – Stormwater Utility ....................................................................................................... 13 

Section 910 - Wastewater System ...................................................................................................... 21 

Section 920 - Public Sewers and Private Disposal Systems ................................................................. 25 

Section 930 - Water ........................................................................................................................... 49 

Section 940 - Fire Hydrants, Mains and Valves ................................................................................... 59 

Section 950 - Street Lighting and Traffic Signal Utility ........................................................................ 60 

Section 960 – Locating Sewer and Water Laterals .............................................................................. 61 

Section 970 – Fats, Oils and Grease ................................................................................................... 64 

Section 900 - Solid Waste ................................................................................................................... 3 

Section 910 – Stormwater Utility ....................................................................................................... 13 

Section 920 - Wastewater System and Sewer Utility .......................................................................... 21 

Section 930 - Public Sewers and Private Disposal Systems ................................................................. 25 

Section 940 – Water and Water Utility .............................................................................................. 49 

Section 950 - Fire Hydrants, Mains and Valves ................................................................................... 59 

Section 960 - Street Lighting and Traffic Signal Utility ........................................................................ 60 

javascript:void(0
javascript:void(0
javascript:void(0
javascript:void(0
javascript:void(0
javascript:void(0
javascript:void(0


Section 970 – Locating Sewer and Water Laterals .............................................................................. 61 

Section 980 – Fats, Oils and Grease ................................................................................................... 64 

 

Section 900 - Solid Waste 

900.01  Purpose and Application. 

     900.01.1.  The Sanitary Board of the Western Lake Superior Sanitary District (the “district”), 
which includes the City of Hermantown (the “City”) within its boundaries, shall be empowered 
by its enabling legislation to regulate the disposal of solid waste within its boundaries.  (See laws 
of Minnesota 1989, First Special Session, Chapter 1 (the “Score Legislation”).  To reduce the 
volume of solid waste requiring disposal within the State of Minnesota, the Score Legislation 
requires the district and other governmental agencies in the State of Minnesota responsible for 
disposal of solid waste to give residents an opportunity to recycle which shall include: 

          900.01.1.1.  Local recycling center in the district and sites for collecting recyclable 
materials that shall be located in areas convenient for persons to use them; and 

          900.01.1.2.  Curbside pickup, centralized drop-off or a local recycling center for at least 
four kinds of recyclable materials in cities with a population of 5,000 or more persons. 

     900.01.2.  The district has adopted an ordinance relating to mixed municipal solid waste 
management and recycling which would become effective within the City unless the City adopts 
an ordinance which: 

          900.01.2.1.  Creates a system of licensing collectors; 

          900.01.2.2.  Regulates rates for collection; 

          900.01.2.3.  Mandates collection of mixed municipal solid waste; 

          900.01.2.4.  Provides residents an opportunity to recycle as required by M.S. Section 
115A.552 (1) and (2), as it may be amended from time to time; 

          900.01.2.5.  Supplies the district copies of all license applications for collectors on a 
monthly basis; and 

          900.01.2.6.  Provides a certified copy of the ordinance to the district within five days 
following enactment. 

     900.01.3.  The City Council supports the goals of the Score Legislation and believes it shall 
be in the best interest of its residents to design methods of accomplishing the goals consistent 
with factors unique to the City. 

Formatted: Normal

javascript:void(0
javascript:void(0
javascript:void(0


900.02  Definitions.  As used in this section, the following terms shall be defined as follows, 
unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

     900.02.1.  “Backyard compost size” shall mean a site used to compost food scraps or yard 
waste from a single family or household, apartment building or a single commercial office. 

     900.02.2.  “Board” shall mean the Sanitary Board of the Western Lake Superior Sanitary 
District. 

     900.02.3.  “Bulky items” shall mean items of solid waste which do not fit within a container. 

     900.02.4.  “City” shall mean the City of Hermantown. 

     900.02.5.  “City Council” shall mean the City Council of the City. 

     900.02.6.  “City Clerk” shall mean the duly appointed City Clerk of the City. 

     900.02.7.  “Collector” shall mean the person or entity specifically licensed by the City to 
collect garbage, rubbish, other mixed municipal solid waste and recyclable materials and to 
dispose of same. 

     900.02.8.  “Composting” shall mean the controlled microbial degradation of organic waste to 
yield a humus-like product. 

     900.02.9.  “Container” shall mean a container for solid waste which shall meet the 
requirements set forth in 900.07.2. 

     900.02.10.  “Demolition debris” shall mean inert material that shall include concrete, brick, 
bituminous concrete, untreated wood, masonry, glass, rock, and plastic building parts resulting 
from the demolition of buildings, roads and other man-made structures.  “Demolition debris” 
shall not include solid waste or asbestos waste. 

     900.02.11.  “District” shall mean the Western Lake Superior Sanitary District. 

     900.02.12.  “Facility” shall mean the land, structures, monitoring devices and other 
improvements on the land used for monitoring, treating, processing, storing or disposing of solid 
waste, leachate or residuals from solid waste processing. 

     900.02.13.  “Garbage” shall mean discarded material resulting from the handling, processing, 
storage, preparation, serving and consumption of food. 

     900.02.14.  “Hazardous substance.” 

          900.02.14.1.  The term shall mean: 



               900.02.14.1.1.  Any commercial chemical designated pursuant to the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act, under 33 USC 1321 (b)(2)(A), as it may be amended from time to time; 

               900.02.14.1.2.  Any hazardous air pollutant listed pursuant to the Clean Air Act, under 
42 USC 7412, as it may be amended from time to time; and 

               900.02.14.1.3.  Any other substance which constitutes a hazardous waste under 
Minnesota law or federal law. 

          900.02.14.2.  “Hazardous substance” shall not include natural gas, natural gas liquids, 
liquified natural gas, synthetic gas usable for fuel or mixtures of the synthetic gas and natural 
gas, nor shall it include petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction thereof which is not 
otherwise a hazardous waste.  “Hazardous substance” shall not include household hazardous 
waste. 

     900.02.15.  “Hospital waste” shall mean all solid waste generated by a hospital except 
infectious waste and pathological waste. 

     900.02.16.  “Household hazardous waste” shall mean those waste chemicals and compounds 
which would be considered hazardous substances under state law and are generated by 
residential dwelling units. 

     900.02.17.  “Industrial solid waste” shall mean all solid waste generated from an industrial or 
manufacturing process and solid waste generated from non-manufacturing activities such as 
service and commercial establishments.  “Industrial solid waste” shall not include office 
materials, restaurant and food preparation waste, discarded machinery, demolition debris or 
household refuse. 

     900.02.18.  “Infectious waste” shall mean laboratory waste, blood, regulated body fluids, 
medical sharps and research animal waste that have not been decontaminated.  For purposes of 
this definition, “laboratory waste” shall mean waste cultures and stocks of agents that are 
generated from a laboratory and are infectious to humans; discarded contaminated items used to 
inoculate, transfer or otherwise manipulate cultures or stocks of agents that are infectious to 
humans; wastes from the production of biological agents that are infectious to humans; and 
discarded live or attenuated vaccines that are infectious to humans.  For purposes of this 
definition, regulated human body fluids shall mean cerebrospinal fluid, synodical fluid, pleural 
fluid, peritoneal fluid, pericardial fluid and amniotic fluid that are in containers or that drip freely 
from body fluid soaked solid waste items.  For purposes of this definition, research animal waste 
shall mean carcasses, body parts and blood derived from animals knowingly and intentionally 
exposed to agents that are infectious to humans for the purpose of research, production of 
biologicals or testing of pharmaceuticals. 

     900.02.19.  “Institutional facilities” shall mean schools, courthouses, hospitals, “in-house” 
municipal programs, and the like, for collecting recyclable materials. 

     900.02.20.  “Medical sharps” shall mean: 



          900.02.20.1.  Discarded items that can cause subdermal inoculation of infectious agents, 
including needles, scalpel blades, pipettes and other items derived from human or animal patient 
care, blood banks, laboratories, mortuaries, research facilities and industrial operations; and 

          900.02.20.2.  Discarded glass or rigid plastic vials containing infectious agents. 

     900.02.21.  “Mixed municipal solid waste” shall mean garbage, refuse and other solid waste 
from residential, commercial, industrial and community activities which is generated and 
collected in aggregate, but shall not include auto hulks, street sweepings, ash, construction 
debris, mining waste, sludges, tree and agricultural wastes, tires, lead acid batteries, used oil and 
other materials collected, processed and disposed of as separate waste streams. 

     900.02.22.  “Owner” and “occupant” shall mean the person(s) or entity(s) which hold legal or 
beneficial title to a property and the person(s) or entity(s) which have or exercise possession or 
occupancy of a property, respectively. 

     900.02.23.  “Pathological waste” shall mean human tissues and human body parts removed 
accidentally or during surgery or autopsy intended for disposal.  “Pathological waste” shall not 
include teeth. 

     900.02.24.  “Recyclable materials” shall mean any materials that are designed as “recyclable 
materials” by regulation of the district. 

     900.02.25.  “Recycling facility” shall mean a site permitted by the Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency, used to collect, process and repair recyclable materials and reuse them in their 
original form or use them in manufacturing processes. 

     900.02.26.  “Rubbish” shall mean non-putrescible solid wastes, including ashes, consisting of 
both combustible and noncombustible wastes, such as paper, cardboard, tin cans, yard clippings, 
wood, glass, bedding, crockery or litter of any kind. 

     900.02.27.  “Solid waste” shall mean all garbage, rubbish and other discarded solid materials 
including solid materials resulting from industrial, commercial, agricultural and residential uses, 
but shall not include recyclable materials, demolition debris, animal waste used as fertilizer, 
solids or dissolved material in domestic sewage or other significant pollutants in water resources, 
such as silt, wastewater effluent, dissolved materials, suspended solids in irrigation return flows, 
or other water pollutants. 

     900.02.28.  “Unacceptable waste” shall mean solid waste designated as “unacceptable waste” 
by regulation of the district. 

     900.02.29.  “Yard waste compost facility” shall mean a site used for the composting of yard 
waste which shall be: 

          900.02.29.1.  Operated by the district or the City; or 



          900.02.29.2.  Operated by a private person or entity and permitted by the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency to accept yard waste. 

900.03  Disposal of Recyclable Materials. 

     900.03.1.  Separation Required.  Every person or entity disposing of solid waste in the City 
shall separate recyclable materials from solid waste.  The owner or occupants of each residence 
or residential unit and the owner or occupant of each nonresidential commercial, or industrial 
premises authorized to place solid waste in the various waste receiving facilities of the district, 
including its sanitary landfill, shall separate recyclable materials prior to collection by a 
collector. 

     900.03.2  Containers.  Persons or entities shall place recyclable materials in approved 
containers (an approved container can be either a bin or a bag at the discretion of the licensed 
hauler) for collection, or, in the alternative, shall deliver recyclable materials to the recycling 
facility of their choice. 

     900.03.3  Public Establishments.  Owners of establishments at which there is public traffic, 
including, but not limited to public buildings, hotels, motels, retail stores, theaters, college 
dormitories and church social halls, shall provide receptacles for recyclable materials alongside 
their present public receptacles for solid waste.  The owners of these establishments shall not be 
required to separate items which the general public places in receptacles intended for solid waste. 

     900.03.4  Collection.  No person or entity other than the owner or the occupant of a 
residential, commercial or industrial structure, or the licensed collector which provides services 
to the structure, shall collect or gather recyclable materials set out for collection by a licensed 
collector. 

900.04  Disposal of Yard Waste; Composting. 

     900.04.1.  Any person disposing of yard waste shall have the option of disposing of the waste 
by one of the following methods: 

          900.04.1.1.  Disposal in a backyard compost site; 

          900.04.1.2.  Disposal in a yard waste compost facility operated by the City or the district; 
or 

          900.04.1.3.  Disposal in a privately operated yard waste compost facility. 

     900.04.2.  Yard waste shall not be placed in the waste receiving facilities of the district.  No 
person or entity shall cause, allow or permit the burning of yard waste, notwithstanding any 
permit which the person or entity may obtain from the State of Minnesota. 

     900.04.3.  Yard waste may be subject to periodic pickup by a licensed collector.  Yard waste 
collected for the purpose of composting shall not be disposed of in any other manner. 



900.05  Disposal of Demolition Debris.  Any person disposing of demolition debris shall 
transport the waste to any site designated by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency for receipt 
of the demolition debris. 

900.06  Disposal of Bulky Items.  Any person disposing of bulky items shall transport the waste 
to any site designated by the district for receipt of the bulky items.  If the service is provided, 
bulky items may be subject to periodic collection by a licensed collector. 

900.07  Waste Preparation and Storage. 

     900.07.1  Accumulation.  No owner or occupant of any private property or business property 
shall permit any accumulation of solid waste, or any similar material or mixture of material upon 
the property or upon any adjoining property, alley, street, sidewalk or highway, except in proper 
containers as described below. 

     900.07.2  Containers.  Every owner or occupant of any private property or business property 
shall provide in good condition water-tight and rodent- proof containers sufficient to hold all the 
solid waste which accumulates on the premises during the time between collections.  In the case 
of residential structures containing four or less dwelling units, the containers shall be of a 
maximum size of 96 gallons, shall be provided with handles and a tight and securely fitted 
cover.  All solid waste shall be placed in the containers which shall not be filled in a manner 
which prevents closure of the container and, in the case of residential structures containing four 
or less dwelling units, the contents shall not exceed 96 pounds in weight. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

     900.07.3  Oil, Batteries and Tires.  Every owner or occupant shall separate all automobile 
oil, motor vehicle batteries and tires from all solid waste and shall transport such items to the 
facility designated by the district for the handling of oil, batteries or tires, 
respectively.  Automobile oil shall be placed in an unbreakable, leak-proof receptacle by the 
owner or occupant.  Motor vehicle batteries shall be transported in a manner which shall not 
allow release or escape of their contents. 

     900.07.4  Unauthorized Disposal.  No person or entity shall place solid waste in any 
container unless specifically authorized by the owner, occupant or licensed collector which 
provides collection services for the container.  The disposal in a roadside litter receptacle of 
garbage or rubbish generated within an automobile shall not violate this provision. 

     900.07.5  Household Hazardous Waste.  Every owner or occupant shall separate all 
household hazardous waste from all other solid waste.  Containers with household hazardous 
waste shall be handled or transported in a manner which shall not allow release or escape of the 
contents.  All household hazardous waste shall be disposed of in accordance with the household 
hazardous waste program of the district, as the program shall exist at such time, or in such other 
manner as shall be specified by the district. 



     900.07.6  Hospital, Pathological, Infectious, Medical Sharps, Hazardous Substances and 
Other Unacceptable Wastes.  Hospital waste, pathological waste, infectious waste, medical 
sharps, hazardous substances and other unacceptable wastes not specifically referred to in this 
section shall be disposed of in accordance with state law and as required by the 
district.  Industrial solid waste shall be disposed of in accordance with the industrial solid waste 
management plan of the district, as the same shall exist at such time. 

900.08  Mandatory Collection of Waste.  It shall be the duty of the owner and occupant of 
every single family residential structure to provide for not less frequently than weekly disposal of 
all mixed municipal solid waste generated by such single family residence through employment 
of the services of a licensed collector; provided that collection may be less frequent than weekly 
where the volume of mixed municipal solid waste generated by such single family residential 
structure is sufficiently low to allow less frequent collection in compliance with all other 
provisions of this section. Owners of residential structures containing more than one dwelling 
unit but more than four dwelling units shall employ a licensed collector for the removal of all 
mixed municipal solid waste at least weekly form the premises. Owners of residential structures 
containing more than four dwelling units or of commercial or industrial establishments shall 
either employ a licensed collector for the removal of all mixed municipal solid waste from their 
premises weekly or provide the removal service themselves, weekly, provided that the owner 
shall obtain under this section. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

900.09  Collection of Recyclable Materials.  All collectors licensed by the City under this 
section shall provide curbside collection of recyclable materials at least once each 
month.  Curbside collection of recyclable materials by collectors shall be provided in the entire 
City of Hermantown.  Every owner or occupant shall dispose of recyclable materials: 

     900.09.1.  By the curbside collection required to be provided by collectors under this 
subsection; 

     900.09.2.  At a structure, if any, for collection and disposal of recyclable materials maintained 
by the City; or 

     900.09.3.  At a privately operated location for the lawful collection and disposal of recyclable 
materials. 

     900.09.4.  No person shall burn any recyclable materials. 

     900.09.5.  No person shall accumulate and store prior to collection more than 100 gallons in 
volume or 200 pounds by weight of recyclable material on such person's premises. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

900.10  Charges for Collection. 



     900.10.1.  Each licensed collector operating within the city shall establish a schedule of 
rates.  The schedules of rates shall be fixed based upon the frequency of collection, the character 
and volume of solid waste collected and removed, distance between residences, and the distance 
and cost for delivery of solid waste to facilities of the district and create an incentive for persons 
within the City to reduce the amount of mixed municipal solid waste which requires 
disposal.  The schedules of rates shall require a minimum charge for collection based on a unit of 
volume per collection; provided, however, that there shall be a volume based charge for 
additional units of the same additional volume.  

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

     900.10.2.  The incremental cost of additional volume above the minimum charge shall 
increase so that an owner or occupant shall have a financial incentive to reduce the volume of 
mixed municipal solid waste that requires disposal.  Each schedule of rates shall provide 
additional charges for bulky items.  These charges shall not be included in the minimum charge. 

     900.10.3.  Where a collector provides mandatory collection of mixed municipal solid waste at 
a residential structure containing four or fewer dwelling units, there shall be no additional charge 
for collection of recyclable materials. 

     900.10.4.  No collector or any agent thereof shall charge any rate in excess of the maximum 
rate for such service as established from time to time by the district. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

900.11  Licensing Collectors of Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials.  For the health, safety 
and welfare of the residents of the City, the following regulations applicable to all mixed 
municipal solid waste removal and disposal and handling of recyclable materials shall be 
established: 

     900.11.1  Collector's License Required. 

          900.11.1.1.  No person shall engage in the business of collecting or removing garbage, 
rubbish, other mixed municipal solid waste and recyclable materials within the City without first 
obtaining a license to do so from the Western Lake Superior Sanitary District.  Charitable, 
religious and fraternal organizations may collect recyclable materials without compliance with 
this subsection. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

     900.11.42  Continuing Obligations of Licensee.  All collectors, in addition to any other 
requirements contained in this section, shall comply with the following: 

          900.11.42.1.  All vehicles used by collectors shall be inspected annually by the Minnesota 
State Patrol, Commercial Vehicle Inspection Division or any state certified inspector.  Inspection 
reports shall be forwarded to the City.  The collector shall maintain all vehicles used by the 



collector in good repair and shall comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable to the 
vehicles. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

          900.11.42.2.  The insurance required by the Western Lake Superior Sanitary District as a 
condition to the issuance of a license shall be maintained and the collector shall provide evidence 
of maintenance of insurance upon request by the City Clerk. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

          900.11.42.3.  Any collector shall notify the City Clerk in writing within 30 days of any 
change in ownership, name or location of business offices. 

          900.11.42.4.  Any collector shall notify the City Clerk in writing immediately upon loss of 
liability insurance coverage. 

          900.11.42.5.  A collector shall accept assignment of collection duties for residential and 
commercial structures as provided in 900.08. 

900.12  Reporting Requirement. 

     900.12.1.  All collectors and owners which provide their own collection services under 
900.08, recycling facilities, institutional facilities, and commercial, retail and industrial 
businesses, receiving or processing any recyclable materials shall provide quarterly written 
reports to the district in a form prescribed by the district. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

     900.12.2.  Each quarterly report shall contain, at a minimum, for each type of material 
received or processed during the quarter: 

          900.12.2.1.  Weight by ton; 

          900.12.2.2.  Name and location of market to which the material was sold or delivered; 

          900.12.2.3.  Average price per ton received; and 

          900.12.2.4.  Inventory (in tons) of material in storage. 

     900.12.3.  Each quarterly report shall contain the certification that, based on the inquiry of the 
person(s) who manage the system or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 
information, the information is, to the best of their knowledge and belief, true, accurate and 
complete. 



     900.12.4.  Each collector or owner which provides its own collection services under 900.08 of 
this section and any yard waste compost facility shall submit quarterly reports to the district of 
the tonnage of yard waste collected and disposed. 

(Am. Ord. 2002-02, passed 10-21-02) 

     900.12.5.  Each collector shall provide the City and the district with an opportunity to inspect 
current customer lists. 

900.13  Nuisance.  No owner or occupant shall permit any accumulation or storage of solid 
waste which shall cause a nuisance or unsanitary condition or permits or encourages the 
accumulation or breeding of rats, insects or other vermin. 

900.14  Unauthorized Deposit Of Solid Waste.  No person shall: 

     900.14.1.  Deposit solid waste, recyclable materials, demolition debris or yard waste upon any 
public or private highway, street, road or right-of-way; deposit solid waste, recyclable materials, 
demolition debris or yard waste upon or within any river, creek, stream, lake, waterway or other 
body of water of any kind or character; or deposit solid waste, recyclable materials, demolition 
debris or yard waste on the property of another; 

     900.14.2.  Cause, maintain or permit the accumulation of solid waste which creates an 
unsanitary condition or permits or encourages the accumulation or breeding of rats, insects or 
other vermin; or 

     900.14.3.  Deposit solid waste, recyclable materials, demolition debris or yard waste within 
the City in any manner that shall violate the provision of this section. 

900.15  Enforcement and Inspection. 

     900.15.1 General.  Inspection and evaluation of containers and collectors shall be made by 
the City in such frequency as to insure consistent compliance by the owners, occupants and 
collectors with the provisions of this section.  Each owner, occupant or collector shall be 
provided with written and documented notice of any deficiencies, recommendations for their 
correction and the date when the correction shall be accomplished. Each owner, occupant or 
collector shall be required to allow free access to authorized representatives of the City, or to 
authorized representatives of any other governmental agency at any time for the purpose of 
making the inspections as may be necessary to determine compliance with the requirements of 
this section, or any other applicable statute, ordinance or regulation. 

     900.15.2  Private Property.  The City shall have the right to inspect private property to 
determine if a container or collector is in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

900.16  Violations and Remedies. 



     900.16.1  Equitable Relief.  In the event of a violation of a threat or violation of this section, 
the attorney for the City may take appropriate action to enforce this section, including but not 
limited to, application for injunctive relief, action to compel performance or other appropriate 
action in district court, if necessary, to prevent, restrain, correct or abate the violations or 
threatened violations. 

     900.16.2  Costs as Special Assessment.  If an owner or occupant fails to comply with the 
regulations in this section, the City may take the necessary steps to correct the violations and the 
costs thereof may be recovered in a civil action or may be certified, at the discretion of the City 
Council, to the County Auditor as a special assessment against real property under M.S. Chapter 
429, as it may be amended from time to time, or other similar law relating to special assessment. 

900.17  Intent. 

     900.17.1.  It shall be the express intent of this section, specifically the mandatory recycling 
provisions of this section, to require the recycling of recyclable materials within the City in order 
to aid the district in meeting the goals specified in M.S. Section 115A.551, as it may be amended 
from time to time. 

     900.17.2.  It shall further be the express intent of this section to recognize that the district has 
regional authority for the solid waste generated by residents of the City.  Therefore, where this 
section is in contradiction to the rules and regulations of the district, the rules and regulations of 
the district shall supersede the specific portions of this section in contradiction or contravention 
of the rules and regulations of the district.  This section shall not govern or control the disposal 
of hospital waste, pathological waste, infectious waste, medical sharps, industrial solid waste and 
hazardous substances. 

Section 905 - Water and Sewer Utility 

905.01  Purpose and Application.  The waterworks and sewer facilities owned by the City are 
declared to be and to constitute a public utility of the City, owned, operated, maintained, 
improved, extended and administered as a single undertaking to be known as the “Water and 
Sewer Utility.”  The properties of the Water and Sewer Utility shall include all systems, works, 
instrumentalities, equipment, materials, supplies, interceptor sewers, trunk connections, sewer 
and water mains, pumping stations, and all other parts and appurtenances of the foregoing which 
are useful or used in connection with the distribution of water and collection of sewer. 

905.02  Scope of Utility.  The properties of the Water and Sewer Utility and all future 
improvements, extensions and enlargements thereof, together with all cash and other assets held 
in the Water and Sewer Utility shall be appropriated and dedicated to the purpose of insuring the 
public health, safety and welfare by furnishing and making available water and sewer service to 
the City and its inhabitants and businesses.  The Water and Sewer Utility, and all of the assets of 
the Water and Sewer Utility shall at all times be under the management and control of the City 
Council. 

javascript:void(0


905.03  Policy in Regard to Improvements, Enlargements and Extensions.  The City Council 
shall use the Comprehensive Land Use Plan for the City as the principal guide for water and 
sewer extension decisions.  Likewise, to improve the overall management of growth it is hereby 
declared to be the policy of the City, subject to modifications deemed necessary by the City 
Council, that the cost of capital improvements, enlargements and extensions of water or sewer be 
paid in the following manner for these circumstances: 

     905.03.1.  Where water mains not exceeding 12 inches or sanitary sewer mains not exceeding 
10 inches in diameter are installed adjacent to residential properties and where water mains not 
exceeding 12 inches or sewer mains not exceeding 12 inches in diameter are installed adjacent to 
commercial properties, the cost thereof shall be assessed against the properties abutting on such 
improvements, in accordance with established city policies and applicable law.  Water and sewer 
mains of the dimensions above described are referred to herein as “lateral” mains, and other 
mains are referred to as “trunk” mains. 

     905.03.2.  Where a trunk main is installed, the City Council and Utility Commission, upon 
advice of the City Engineer, shall estimate the cost of construction of a lateral main at the same 
time and place, and the estimated cost of a lateral main shall be assessed against the properties 
abutting on the trunk main in accordance with established City policies and applicable law.  The 
actual cost for the trunk main less the amount assessed against the properties abutting on the 
trunk main shall be paid by the City from utility funds, sales tax revenues or other sources as 
determined by the City Council. 

     905.03.3.  Where a sewer main into which the wastewater from two or more lateral sewers is 
discharged and which subsequently discharges into a trunk or collector sewer and lift stations 
and/or a steel casing required for a highway crossing is installed for a project and/or other 
improvements are made that benefit a larger area than the abutting property, the cost of such 
improvements may be included in the cost of other present or future projects for the purposes of 
determining the cost of such projects. 

     905.03.4.  The provisions of this Section 905.03 are guidelines for the City Council to follow 
with regard to the matters set forth in this section.  The City Council may act in variance from 
these guidelines if it determines to do so by a resolution wherein it sets forth its reasons for 
varying from the guidelines set forth in this section. 

905.04  Replacement and Depreciation Account.  The Water and Sewer Utility shall create and 
maintain a Replacement and Depreciation Account and a Development Account, into which 
there shall be credited and paid as received all net revenues in excess of current operating 
expenses, water and sewer hookup charges, water availability charges, sewer availability charges 
and charges in lieu of assessments.  The City Council shall periodically determine what 
constitutes an adequate reserve for depreciation and replacement of existing water mains and 
sewer mains and appurtenances, which funds are to replace worn out or obsolete properties of the 
Water and Sewer Utility.  Such funds shall be dedicated to the Replacement and Depreciation 
Account.  The funds not so allocated to the Replacement and Depreciation Account shall be 
dedicated to the Development Account.  Funds in the Development Account may be utilized by 



the City Council to make extensions, enlargements, or improvements to the Water and Sewer 
Utility as determined from time to time by the City Council. 

(Ord. 2001-12, passed 12-17-01) 

Section 906910 – Stormwater Utility 
906910.01 Definitions.  The following words and phrases when used in this section shall have 
the meanings ascribed to them in this section unless the context otherwise clearly indicates. 

     906910.01.1  “Best Management Practices” or “BMP” shall mean the practices to prevent or 
reduce the pollution of the waters of the state, as defined by the MS4 Permit, including schedules 
of activities, prohibitions of practices, and other management practices, and also includes 
treatment requirements, operating procedures and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage 
or leaks, sludge, or waste disposal or drainage from raw material storage. 

     906910.01.2  “City” shall mean the City of Hermantown. 

     906910.01.3  “City Clerk” shall mean the City Clerk as designated from time to time by the 
City Council. 

     906910.01.4  “City Code of Ordinances” shall mean the Hermantown Code of Ordinances, as 
it may be amended from time to time. 

     906910.01.5  “City Council” shall mean the City Council of the City.  The City Council is the 
governing body of the City. 

     906910.01.6  “City’s Fee Schedule” shall mean the fee schedule established from time to time 
by City ordinance or resolution of the City Council. 

     906910.01.7  “Department” means the department of public works of the City. 

     906910.01.8  “Department Director” means the director of public works of the City, or his or 
her designee. 

     906910.01.9  “Equivalent Residential Unit” or “ERU” shall mean 9,100 square feet which has 
been determined to be the average impervious area of residential property within the City. 

     906910.01.10 “ERU Rate” shall mean the standard monthly fee charged per each ERU 
established from time to time by resolution or ordinance and set forth in the City’s Fee Schedule. 

     906910.01.11 “Exempt Property” shall mean property that is classified by St. Louis County 
Auditor, Minnesota with the following land use: 

 906910.01.11.1  Ag Non-Productive Contiguous 
 906910.01.11.2  Agricultural 
 906910.01.11.3  Assessed Elsewhere 
 906910.01.11.4  Cemeteries – Private 
 906910.01.11.5  Cemeteries – Public 



 906910.01.11.6  County Public Property 
 906910.01.11.7  County Public Service Enterprises 
 906910.01.11.8  Federal Public Property 
 906910.01.11.9  K-12 Schools – Public 
 906910.01.11.10 Managed Forest Lands 
 906910.01.11.11 Municipal – All Other 
 906910.01.11.12 Municipal Public Service Enterprises 
 906910.01.11.13 Non-Homestead Agricultural Land 
 906910.01.11.14 Vacant Land 
 906910.01.11.15 Rural Vacant Land 
 906910.01.11.16 State Administered Lands 
 906910.01.11.17 State Public Property 
 906910.01.11.18 Streets and Roadways 
 906910.01.11.19 Tax-Forfeited Real Estate 

     906910.01.12  “Impervious Area or Surface” shall mean a surface which is compacted or 
covered with material that is resistant to infiltration by water, including, but not limited to, most 
conventionally surfaced streets, roofs, sidewalks, patios, driveways, parking lots, and any other 
graveled, graded, compacted, or any other surface which impedes the natural infiltration of 
surface water. 

     906910.01.13  “Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System” or “MS4” shall mean a conveyance 
or system of conveyances (roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, 
gutters, ditches, man-made channels, storm drains, etc.) that are designed or used for collecting 
or conveying stormwater and owned and operated by the City.  The Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer System includes the City’s Stormwater Management Facilities for purposes of this Section 
906910. 

     906910.01.14  “National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer Systems Permit” or “MS4 Permit” shall mean the general permit authorization to 
discharge stormwater associated with Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems. 

     906910.01.15  “Nonresidential Property” shall mean developed property that is not classified 
as Residential Property or Exempt Property.  Property that has a mixture of residential and 
nonresidential uses shall be considered nonresidential. 

     906910.01.16  “Residential Property” shall mean developed property that is classified by St. 
Louis County, Minnesota Auditor with the following land use: 

 906910.01.16.1  Commons Area Assessed Parcel 
 906910.01.16.2  Non-Comm Seasonal Residential Recreational 
 906910.01.16.3  Residential 1 Unit 
 906910.01.16.4  Residential 2-3 Units 
 906910.01.16.5  Residential Non-Homestead (Single Unit) 



      906910.01.17  “Stormwater Management Facilities”  are structural or nonstructural features 
that are designed to reduce storm water runoff pollutant loads, discharge volumes, peak flow 
discharge rates and detrimental changes in stream temperature that affect water quality and 
habitat. 

     906910.01.18  “Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program” or “City SWPPP” shall mean a 
comprehensive program developed by the City to manage and reduce the discharge of pollutants 
in stormwater and from the City’s storm sewer system. 

     906910.01.19  “Stormwater Utility” shall mean the utility created by this Section 906910 to 
operate, maintain and improve the City’s Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System. 

     906910.01.20  “Stormwater Utility Fee” shall mean the charges established from time to time 
by ordinance or resolution and set forth in the City’s Fee Schedule. 

     906910.01.21  “U.S. Environmental Protection Agency” of “EPA” shall mean the agency of 
the United States federal government whose mission is to protect human and environmental 
health. 

906910.02  Authority and Application.  The Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System owned 
and operated by the City if hereby declared to be and to constitute a public utility of the City.  
The Stormwater Utility shall be operated as a public utility pursuant to the City Code of 
Ordinances and applicable provisions of Minnesota Statutes. 

     906910.02.1  The revenues of the Stormwater Utility shall be subject to provisions of this 
Section 906910 and Minnesota Statutes Section 444.075.  The properties of the Stormwater 
Utility and all future improvements, extension and enlargements thereof, together with all cash 
and assets held in the Stormwater Utility shall be appropriated and dedicated to the purpose of 
insuring the public health, safety and welfare by maintaining and improving the Stormwater 
Utility as provided for in this Section 906910.  The Stormwater Utility, and all assets of the 
Stormwater Utility shall at all times be under the management and control of the City Council. 

     906910.02.2  The Stormwater Utility shall be part of the Public Works Department and shall 
be administered by the Department Director. 

906910.03  Purpose.  The purpose of the Stormwater Utility is to provide a funding mechanism 
for the following services: 

     906910.03.1  The administration, planning, analysis, installation, construction, operation, 
maintenance, and replacement of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System. 

     906910.03.2  The administration, planning, implementation, construction, and maintenance of 
storm water Best Management Practices to reduce the introduction of sediment and other 
pollutants into local water resources. 

     906910.03.3  Other education, engineering, inspection, monitoring, testing, and enforcement 
activities as necessary to maintain compliance with local, state, and federal storm water 
requirements. 



     906910.03.4  Activities necessary to maintain compliance with MS4 Permit requirements 
established by the EPA, including preparation, implementation, and management of a City 
SWPPP to address the following control measures: 

 906910.03.4.1  Public education and outreach on storm water impacts. 
 906910.03.4.2  Public involvement/participation. 
 906910.03.4.3  Illicit discharge detection and elimination. 
 906910.03.4.4  Construction site storm water runoff control. 
 906910.03.4.5  Post-construction runoff control in new development and redevelopment. 
 906910.03.4.6  Pollution prevention for municipal operations. 

906910.04  Rates and Charges.  The City shall charge Stormwater Utility Fees to pay the 
operation costs described in Section 906910.03.  The Stormwater Utility Fees shall be 
established by the City Council in accordance with this Section 906910.04.  In establishing 
Stormwater Utility Fees, each parcel of property within the City shall be categorized as 
Residential, Nonresidential, or Exempt property.  Stormwater Utility Fees for Nonresidential 
Property may be reduced through the application of stormwater credits as provided for by 
Section 906910.06.  Stormwater Utility Fees for Residential Property shall be fixed.  The 
Stormwater Utility Fees established herein shall be the joint and several responsibility of the 
owner, lessee and the occupant of each parcel of property subject to the Stormwater Utility Fee 
and shall be subject to recovery in accordance with Section 906910.11. 

     906910.04.1  Established ERU.  The average impervious area of residential property shall be 
equal to 9,100 square feet, making 1 ERU equal to 9,100 square feet. 

     906910.04.2  Minimum Stormwater Utility Charges. 

 906910.04.2.1  The minimum monthly Stormwater Utility Fee applied to any Residential 
Property or Nonresidential Property shall be equal to the ERU Rate. 

 906910.04.2.2  No fee shall be charged to a Nonresidential Property that has no 
impervious surface. 

     906910.04.03  Residential Property.  The monthly Stormwater Utility Fee for Residential 
Property shall be equal to the ERU Rate. 

     906910.04.4  Nonresidential Property.  Subject to Section 906910.04.2, Nonresidential 
Properties shall pay a Stormwater Utility Fee in an amount proportional to the amount of 
impervious area within the property.  The monthly Stormwater Utility Fee for Nonresidential 
Property shall be the ERU Rate multiplied by the ERU (numerical factor obtained by dividing 
the property’s Impervious Area by 9,100 rounded to the nearest ERU). 

     906910.04.5  Exempt Property.  Exempt Properties are not subject to Stormwater Utility 
Fees. 

     906910.04.6  Estimated Charges.  If, for any reason, precise information related to the use, 
development or area of a property is not available; then Stormwater Utility Fees for such 
property shall be estimated and billed, based upon information then available to the City. 



906910.05  Adjustments to Charges.  Stormwater Utility Fees may be adjusted under any of the 
following conditions: 

     906910.05.1  The estimated expenditures for management of the City’s MS4 shall be 
reviewed by the City Council from time to time.  The ERU Rate shall be adjusted accordingly to 
meet the estimated expenditures.  The rate will not increase until after December 31, 2021. 

 906910.05.1.1  Prior to any increase in the ERU Rate or any change in the ERU, the City 
Council will hold a public hearing at a regular City Council meeting. 

     906910.05.2  As property is developed or redeveloped, Stormwater Utility Fees shall be 
recalculated based on the revised amount of Impervious Area on the property after such property 
is developed or redeveloped and the other provisions of this Ordinance. 

906910.06  Credits for Nonresidential Property. 

     906910.06.1  The Department Director may provide for the adjustment of Stormwater Utility 
Fees for property if BMPs or other stormwater management practices are employed on-site that 
reduce the quantity or improve the quality of stormwater runoff from the parcel pursuant to City 
Code of Ordinances Section 1080. 

     906910.06.2  The Department Director shall establish a credit application form for credits.  It 
shall be the responsibility of the property owner to provide justification and any required 
documentation for the credit adjustment. 

     906910.06.3  Credit applications are subject to approval by the Department Director.  The 
City may from time to time by resolution or ordinance establish a fee for the review and 
processing of credit applications as set forth on the City’s Fee Schedule. 

     906910.06.4  Property subject to a minimum Stormwater Utility Fee shall not be eligible for 
credits. 

     906910.06.5  Nonresidential Property BMPs or stormwater management practices are subject 
to the inspection, maintenance, and repair requirements set forth in the MS4 Permit and/or the 
City Code of Ordinances, as it may be amended from time to time.  A Nonresidential Property 
that is deemed noncompliant or in violation of the maintenance and repair requirements 
established in the MS4 Permit and/or the City Code of Ordinances shall not be initially eligible 
for credits.  Approved credits may be rescinded by the Department Director if the Department 
Director determines that the Nonresidential Property BMPs or stormwater parties are non-
compliant or in violation of the maintenance and repair requirements established under the MS4 
Permit and/or the City Code of Ordinances.  The Department Director shall notify the owner, 
lessee and occupants of the Nonresidential Property in writing of his/her determination of 
noncompliance and provide the owner, lessee and/or occupant a reasonable time within which to 
remedy the noncompliance.  If the owner and/or occupant does not remedy the noncompliance 
within the time period by the Department Director, then the Department Director may rescind the 
credits for such property effective as of the second month following the rescission of the credits.  



A Nonresidential Property for which credits have been rescinded shall not be eligible to apply for 
credits for five (5) years after the effective date of the rescission of the credits. 

     906910.06.6  A credit of 25% of the Stormwater Utility Fee for a Nonresidential Property 
determined by operation of Section 906910.04 may be given for Nonresidential Property which 
employs BMPs to manage stormwater runoff for water quality (total suspended solids and/or 
phosphorous). 

      906910.06.7  A credit of 25% of the Stormwater Utility Fee for a Nonresidential Property 
determined by operation of Section 906910.04 may be given for Nonresidential Property which 
employs BMPs to manage stormwater runoff for rate control and detention. 

     906910.06.8  Credits are cumulative and shall not exceed 50% of the Stormwater Utility Fee 
determined by operation of Section 906910.04. 

906910.07  Adjustment to Impervious Area Determinations.  If the amount of Impervious 
Area on a nonresidential property differs from the amount determined by the City, the owner or 
manager of the nonresidential property may request a recalculation.  It is the responsibility of the 
owner or manager or any nonresidential property to provide the City with necessary surveys and 
other information as the City may reasonable request to determine if a property qualifies for an 
adjustment to the Impervious Area determination.  Requests for adjustments shall only be 
reviewed upon receipt of all requested information by the City.  Any approved adjustment shall 
be effective the next billing cycle following approval. 

906910.08  Adjustment Determinations.  Impervious Area adjustments made by Section 
906910.07 and Credit adjustments made by Section 906910.06 and denials of adjustments shall 
be made in writing by the Department Director.  No credits may be applied retroactive for any 
approved requests for credits made after January 1, 2020. 

906910.09  Appeal.  Any property owner who has been denied an adjustment may request 
review and re-computation of said fee.  Such appeals shall be made by filing a written notice of 
appeal with the City Clerk.  The City’s Utilities Commission shall hear the appeal and affirm, 
modify or reverse the adjustment determination applying the standards established in this Section 
906910. 

906910.10  Billing Method.  The City will compute Stormwater Utility Fees.  Stormwater 
Utility Fees shall be collected by the City together with other City fees through the City billing 
system, or by any other method approved by the City.  The City may provide for penalties and 
interest for late payments.  Any such penalties and interest shall be as set forth on the City’s Fee 
Schedule as adopted from time to time by resolution or ordinance of the City. 

906910.11  Delinquent Accounts.  Delinquent and unpaid Stormwater Utility Fees may be 
certified to the St. Louis County Auditor for collection with real estate taxes during the following 
year or any year thereafter in the manner prescribed in City of Hermantown’s Policy adopted 
October 6, 2014, titled:  Delinquent Utility Bills – Certification on Property Taxes, as it may be 
amended from time to time, pursuant to Minnesota Statute 444.075. 



(Am. Ord. 2018-11, passed 11-19-18) 

 

Section 910920 - Wastewater System and Sewer Utility 

910.01920.01  Purpose and Application.  The sewer facilities owned by the City are declared to 
be and to constitute a public utility of the City, owned, operated, maintained, improved, extended 
and administered as an undertaking to be known as the “Sewer Utility.”  The properties of the 
Sewer Utility shall include all systems, works, instrumentalities, equipment, materials, supplies, 
interceptor sewers, trunk connections, pumping stations, and all other parts and appurtenances of 
the foregoing which are useful or used in connection with the collection of sewer. 

920.02  Scope of Utility.  The properties of the Sewer Utility and all future improvements, 
extensions and enlargements thereof, together with all cash and other assets held in the Sewer 
Utility shall be appropriated and dedicated to the purpose of insuring the public health, safety 
and welfare by furnishing and making available sewer service to the City and its inhabitants and 
businesses.  The Sewer Utility, and all of the assets of the Sewer Utility shall at all times be 
under the management and control of the City Council. 

920.03  Policy in Regard to Improvements, Enlargements and Extensions.  The City Council 
shall use the Financial Management Plan and other appropriate methodology of the City as the 
principal guide for sewer extension decisions.   

920.04  Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise clearly indicates, the words and phrases used 
in this section shall have the meaning ascribed to them in 920930.01 of this Chapter. 

910.02920.05  Wastewater Facilities System Continued. 

     910.02920.05.1  Continuation.  There shall be continued a City Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities System (“City’s Sanitary Sewer System”).  The City’s Sanitary Sewer System shall 
include all City owned lateral, main and interceptor sewers, wastewater pumping stations, 
equipment and other works and facilities, whether presently existing or acquired after the 
enactment date of this Code, as shall be found necessary to establish and maintain the City’s 
Sanitary Sewer System in operating condition adequate to collect and transmit all wastewater of 
the City which is discharged into the City’s Sanitary Sewer System to the Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities of the WLSSD. 

     910.02920.05.2  Intent.  It is hereby declared and ordained that the continued operation of the 
City’s Sanitary Sewer System is necessary for the public health, safety, welfare and convenience 
of the City and its inhabitants; that the City’s Sanitary Sewer System will constitute and be a 
public utility that confers direct and indirect benefits to the City and for which reasonable rates 
and charges may be imposed. 

910.03920.06  User Charge System Continued. 

javascript:void(0


     910.03920.06.1  Continuation.  For the purpose of distributing amongst users within the 
City, the charges made to the City by the WLSSD for the City's proportionate share of the 
operation, maintenance, including replacement and debt service of WLSSD Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities, a User Charge is hereby continued. 

     910.03920.06.2  Collection.  The User Charges provided for in this subsection shall be 
collected by the City through a monthly billing and collection procedure to be established from 
time to time by the City and the procedure shall be effective upon approval of the Council by 
resolution.  The procedure shall include a late payment penalty provision. 

     910.03920.06.3  Responsibility for Payment.  The owner of premises which are connected 
to the City's Sanitary Sewer System, the occupant thereof, and the user of the service, shall be 
jointly and severally liable to pay for the service to the premises and the service shall be 
furnished to the premises by the City only upon the condition that the owner of the premises, 
occupant and user of the services, shall be jointly and severally liable to the City for the 
services.  A claim for unpaid charges which shall have been billed to the occupant of the 
premises or the user of the service may be recovered against the owner, occupant or user in a 
civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction or in the discretion of the City may be certified 
to the County Auditor to be collected with taxes against the premises so served in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 920930.09.86.  Money paid to the County Auditor on the account 
shall belong to the City and shall be remitted to the Finance DirectorCity by the County Auditor 
in the manner provided by law for the payment of other money belonging to the City.  In 
addition to, and not in lieu of, the foregoing method of enforcing payment of the charges, the 
City may, according to the rules and regulations as it may have established and the Council shall 
have by resolution approved, cause the City water supply for and to any premises to be shut off 
until all arrears, with penalties on the delinquent charges, shall be paid, together with the cost of 
shutting off and turning on the water. 

     910.03920.06.4  Charges; Volume Based.  Except as otherwise provided in this section, for 
the purpose of determining the charge to be rendered against premises using the City's Sanitary 
Sewer System and the WLSSD Wastewater Treatment Facilities, the volume of Wastewater 
discharged into the City’s Sanitary Sewer System by the owner, user or occupant of any premises 
having any direct or indirect connection with the system shall be deemed to be and shall be based 
and computed upon the amount of water used on the premises. 

          910.03920.06.4.1.  In all cases where the premises obtain water from the City's water 
supply, the volume of water used on any such premises shall be determined by the water meter 
readings made by the City. 

          910.03920.06.4.2.  In all cases where the water used on the premises is derived in whole or 
in part from sources independent from the City, water used thereon which is supplied from 
private sources shall be measured by a water meter of a type approvedprovided by the City to be 
installed by a licensed plumber at the owner, user, or occupant of the premises at his or her 
ownoccupant’s cost and subject to the supervision and inspection of the SuperintendentPublic 
Works Director.  User Charges against the premises shall be based upon the volume of water 
used thereon, as measured from both public and private sources.  Whenever the owner, user or 



occupant fails to install the meter, or where it is not practicable to measure the water consumed 
on any premises by a meter, the City shall determine in such manner and by such methods as it 
may find practicable considering conditions and attendant circumstances in each case, the 
estimated volume of water from private sources which discharges into the system.  The estimate 
shall be used in lieu of the meter volume of water from private sources to determine the user 
charge thereon and thereforecharge a monthly rate set forth in the City’s Fee Schedule. 

     910.03920.06.5  Charges; Special.  Where the owner, occupant or user of the service has 
been required by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director or the WLSSD as authorized by this 
Section 910920 of the City Code, to install meters or other measuring devices that serve to 
demonstrate the volume of  wastewater being discharged to the City's System and the WLSSD's 
Wastewater Treatment Facilities, the volume of Wastewater as so measured shall be the basis 
upon which the charges to be made under this section shall be determined. 

     910.03920.06.6  Cost Recovery.  For the purpose of recovering from users the cost of 
operation, maintenance, including replacement, and debt service of the City's System, there shall 
be continued and shall be collected a user charge based upon the volume of Wastewater 
discharged to the City's System and determined as in 910.04920.07 provided and in accordance 
with rates determined and established by resolution of the City Council from time to time.  Until 
so modified by Council resolution, the rates presently in effect in the City shall continue. 

     910.03920.06.7  Industrial Costs.  Charges made to the City by the WLSSD in accordance 
with the industrial cost recovery requirements of Title II of the Federal Water Pollution Control 
Act Amendments of 1972, 33 USC 1251 et seq., as it may be amended from time to time, shall 
be apportioned among industrial users within the City in accordance with the WLSSD Industrial 
Cost Recovery Classification System, 1976, a copy of which shall be on file in the office of the 
City Clerk. 

910.04920.07  Unpolluted Water Surcharge. 

     910.04920.07.1  Establishment of Unpolluted Water Surcharge.  For the purpose of 
recovering the increased cost to the City caused by the discharge of Unpolluted Water into the 
City's System there shall be hereby established, in addition to the User Charge otherwise 
established and charged pursuant to this section an Unpolluted Water surcharge. 

     910.04920.07.2  Procedure for Establishing Unpolluted Water Surcharge. 

          910.04920.07.2.1  Utility Commission.  The City Council of the City shall be authorized 
to proceed under the procedures set forth in 910.04920.07.2.2 or 910.04920.07.2.3 of this 
subsection in establishing a charge for the discharge of Unpolluted Water into the City's Sanitary 
Sewer System.  The City Council may proceed as set forth in such parts of this subsection as 
may from time to time be determined by it. 

          910.04920.07.2.2  City Wide Charge. 

Formatted: Font: Bold



               910.04920.07.2.2.1.  The City Council may impose a surcharge on all of its sewer 
customers equal to an amount determined by the City Council to be the total cost to the City of 
treating Unpolluted Water.  The amount shall be determined by subtracting the amount of water 
sold by the City Council to its sewer customers from the total amount of water for which the City 
Council is charged by the WLSSD and multiplying the resulting amount by the charge imposed 
on the amount by the WLSSD.  The surcharge imposed on any customer may be eliminated upon 
the customer verifying his, her or its compliance with the terms of 910.04920.07.2.3, that 
prohibits connections of sources of Unpolluted Water to be made to the City's Sanitary Sewer 
System.  In order to remain eligible to receive the elimination of the surcharge, the sewer 
customer shall have his, her or its compliance with the terms of 910.04920.07.2.3, verified 
annually.  In the event that the City determines that a sewer customer is no longer in compliance 
with the terms of 910.04920.07.2.3, by inspection or if the sewer customer fails to allow an 
inspection after request by the City, the customer shall once again be subject to the Unpolluted 
Water surcharge. 

               910.04920.07.2.2.2.  The amount of the Unpolluted Water surcharge shall be 
recalculated by the City every six  months, with the cost of treatment of Unpolluted Water being 
divided amongst the sewer customers who have not been determined to be eligible for the 
elimination of the Unpolluted Water surcharge. 

          910.04920.07.2.3  Individual Users Determined. 

               910.04920.07.2.3.1.  The City Council may impose an Unpolluted Water surcharge on 
individual users as provided herein.  If the SuperintendentPublic Works Director has reason to 
believe that a sewer customer is discharging Unpolluted Water into the City's Sanitary Sewer 
System, he or she shall so notify the City Administrator.  The City Administrator shall then 
inform the sewer user by mail that the City intends to impose on the customer an Unpolluted 
Water surcharge and the amount of the proposed surcharge, which shall be an amount estimated 
to be the amount of Unpolluted Water being discharged into the City's Sanitary Sewer System 
multiplied by the usual sewer rate as set by the Fee Schedule, as it may be amended from time to 
time. 

(Am. Ord. 2009-04, passed 8-3-09) 

               910.04920.07.2.3.2.  The notice shall also inform the sewer customer that the 
Unpolluted Water surcharge shall be imposed as of the first day of the first month after the 
expiration of the ten day notice period specified in the notice.  Within ten business days after the 
mailing of the notice, the sewer customer may request, in writing, an inspection of his, her or its 
property by the City.  Upon receipt of the request, the City Administrator shall have the property 
inspected to determine if Unpolluted Water is being discharged into the City's Sanitary Sewer 
System.   

               910.04920.07.2.3.3.  If the inspection reveals that no Unpolluted Water is being 
discharged and the sewer customer signs a written statement stating that the sewer customer shall 
not change, alter, modify or reconfigure the property or his, her or its water or Wastewater 
disposal system in such a way as to discharge Unpolluted Water into the City's Sanitary Sewer 



System, no surcharge shall be imposed after the inspection has been completed.  The City 
Administrator shall notify the sewer customer in writing of the decision on whether or not a 
surcharge shall be imposed.  Within ten business days after the mailing of the notice, a sewer 
customer may file a written objection with the City Administrator and request an appeal to the 
Hermantown Utility Commission. 

               910.04920.07.2.3.4.  The failure to file the objection shall be deemed to be a waiver of 
any right to object to the imposition of the Unpolluted Water surcharge.  After the Unpolluted 
Water surcharge has been imposed, a sewer customer may at any time thereafter, not exceeding 
once per month, request an inspection of the property by the City.  Upon receipt of the request, 
the City Administrator shall have the property inspected to determine if Unpolluted Water is 
being discharged into the City's Sanitary Sewer System.  The procedures set forth in Section 
910.04920.07.2.3.3 shall be followed after such inspection is completed. 

(Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

Section 920930 - Public Sewers and Private Disposal 
Systems 

920930.01  Definitions.  The following words and phrases when used in the definitions in 
Section 910920 and this section and when otherwise used in this chapter shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section unless the context otherwise clearly indicates. 

     920930.01.1.  “Authorized Inspector” shall mean an inspector authorized by the City. 

     920930.01.2.  “Biochemical oxygen demand” or “BOD” shall mean the quantity of oxygen 
utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedures in 
five days at 20 degrees Centigrade and as expressed in terms of milligrams per liter (mg/l) and as 
described in Standard Methods. 

     920930.01.3.  “Building Drain”  shall mean the part of the lowest horizontal piping of a 
drainage system which receives the discharge from soil, waste, and other drainage pipes inside 
the walls of a building and conveys wastewater to the Building Sewer, beginning three feet 
outside the inner face of the building wall. 

     920930.01.4. “Building Sewer” shall mean the extension from the Building Drain to the 
Public Sewer, private sewer, Onsite Wastewater Disposal System or other place of disposal; also 
referred to as a sewer service line.  Building Sewer shall include any Pump System utilized to 
convey Wastewater from the building to the Public Sewer.  The property owner is the owner of 
and responsible for installation, repair and maintenance of the Building Sewer, including, 
without limitation, the Pump System. 

     920930.01.5.  “City” shall mean The City of Hermantown. 

javascript:void(0


     920930.01.6.  “City Council” shall mean the City Council of the City. The City Council is the 
governing body of the City. 

     920930.01.7. “Clean Water Act” shall mean The Federal Water Pollution Control Act (also 
referred to as the Clean Water Act,) as amended. 

     920930.01.8.  “Combined sewer”  shall mean a Sewer receiving both surface runoff and 
sewage. 

     920930.01.9. “Commercial wastewater” shall mean Wastewater emanating from a place of 
business of a commercial user. 

     920930.01.10.  “County” shall mean St. Louis County. 

     920930.01.11. “County Health Department” shall mean the health department of the County. 

     920930.01.12. “Debt service charge” shall mean a charge to users of Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities for the purpose of repaying the cost of capital improvements to the Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities. 

     920930.01.13.  “Engineer” shall mean the person designated as the City Engineer or the 
authorized deputy, agent, or representative of the City Engineer. 

     920930.01.14. “Extra strength waste” shall mean Wastewater having a BOD and/or T.S.S. 
greater than NDS and not otherwise classified as an incompatible waste. 

     920930.01.15.  “Fee Schedule” shall mean the schedule of fees established from time to time 
by the City Council. 

     920930.01.16.  “Flow” shall mean the quantity of Wastewater. 

     920930.01.17.  “Garbage” shall mean solid wastes from the domestic and commercial 
preparation, cooking, and dispensing of food, and from the handling, storage, and sale of produce 
and animal products, including the packaging of such products. 

     920930.01.18.  “Industrial user” shall mean a user which discharges industrial Wastewater. 

     920930.01.19.  “Incompatible waste” shall mean  waste that either singly or by interaction 
with other wastes interferes with any sewage treatment process, constitutes a hazard to humans 
or animals in spite of the treatment method used by the WLSSD, creates a public nuisance or 
creates any hazards in the receiving waters of the Wastewater Treatment Facilities. 

     920930.01.20.  “Infiltration/inflow or I/I” shall mean water other than Wastewater that enters 
a Public Sewer or service connection from the ground or from surface runoff through such means 
as defective pipes, pipe joints, connections or manholes or from sources such as but not limited 



to, roof leaders, cellar drains, area drains, foundation drains, cross connections between storm 
sewers and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters or drainage. 

     920930.01.21.  “Industrial wastewater” shall mean the liquid, gaseous, and solid processing 
wastes from an industrial manufacturing process, trade, or business. 

     920930.01.22.  “Load” shall mean quantities of Wastewater characteristics such as BOD, 
T.S.S., phosphorus or other constituents. 

     920930.01.23. “MPCA” shall mean The Minnesota Pollution Control Agency. 

     920930.01.24.  “National Categorical Pretreatment Standards” shall mean federal regulations 
establishing pretreatment standards for introduction of pollutants in publicly owned Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities, found at section 307(b) of the Clean Water Act. 

     920930.01.25.  “National pollutant discharge elimination system permit or NPDES  permit” 
shall mean a permit issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency/MPCA setting 
limits on pollutant strength that a permittee may legally discharge into the waters of the United 
States pursuant to Sections 402 and 405 of the Clean Water Act. 

     920930.01.26.  “Natural outlet” shall mean any outlet, including Storm Sewers and Combined 
Sewers, which flows into a water course, pond, ditch, lake or other body of surface water or 
ground water. 

     920930.01.27.  “Normal Domestic Strength Waste or NDSW”  shall mean Wastewater that 
has those characteristics ordinarily introduced by domestic users. 

     920930.01.28.  “Onsite wastewater disposal system; individual sewage treatment system or 
ISTS” shall mean an arrangement of devices or structures for treating domestic or nondomestic 
Wastewater approved for use by applicable regulations of the state or county and located on or 
adjacent to the property of the generator of the Wastewater. 

     920930.01.29. “Operation, maintenance and replacement costs or OM&R” shall mean 
expenditures necessary to provide for the dependable, economical and efficient functioning of 
the Wastewater Treatment Facilities throughout their design life, including operator training and 
permit fees and the establishment of reasonable funds to offset depreciation of the Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities. Replacement refers to obtaining and installing of equipment, accessories, or 
appurtenances which are necessary during the design life or useful life, whichever is longer, of 
the Wastewater Treatment Facilities to maintain the capacity and performance for which such 
System was designed and constructed, not the cost of future replacement of the entire facility. 

     920930.01.30. “Permit” shall mean written authorization from the City to perform acts 
allowed or required by this section. 



     920930.01.31.  “Person” shall mean any individual, firm, company, association, society, 
corporation (municipal or otherwise) or other group discharging Wastewater to the Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities. 

     920930.01.32. “pH” shall mean the logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight of hydrogen ions 
in grams per liter of solution. 

     920930.01.33.  “Pretreatment” shall mean the treatment of Wastewater prior to introduction 
thereof into the City or the WLSSD Wastewater Treatment Facilities. 

     920930.01.34.  “Private sewer or private wastewater disposal system” shall mean a privately 
owned sewer or privately owned Wastewater disposal system, including but not limited to a 
privately owned on-site Wastewater disposal system. 

     920930.01.35.  “Properly shredded garbage” shall mean garbage and/or the wastes from the 
preparation, cooking, and dispensing of food that have been shredded to such a degree that all 
particles will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in the Sewer. 

     920930.01.36.  “Public sewer(s)” shall mean any sewer or pumping facility owned or 
operated by the city or the WLSSD.  Public sewer does not include any Building Sewer. 

     920930.01.37.  “Pump system” shall mean a Pump System approved by the City that is part of 
a Building Sewer. 

     920930.01.38.  “Residential user” shall mean a user of the Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
whose building is used primarily as a private residence and discharges NDSW. 

     920930.01.39.  “Sanitary sewer”  shall mean a Sewer that carries Wastewater and to which 
storm, surface and ground water are not intentionally admitted. 

     920930.01.40.  “Service connection” shall mean the point at which the Building Sewer meets 
and is connected to the Public Sewer. 

     920930.01.41.  “ISTS septage” shall mean high strength Wastewater derived from pumping 
the septic tank of an onsite Wastewater Treatment Facilities.  

     920930.01.42. “Remote facilities septage” shall mean the Wastewater derived from 
recreational vehicles; campers; portable toilets; boats, ships and other marine vehicles, and the 
like. 

     920930.01.43.  “Sewer” shall mean a pipe or conduit that carries Wastewater or unpolluted 
storm, surface and groundwater. 

     920930.01.44. “Sewer availability charge or SAC” shall mean the fees and charges, if any, 
established from time to time by the City Council for access or connection to the Public Sewer. 



     920930.01.45.  “Slug” shall mean a discharge of water or Wastewater which in load or flow 
exceeds for any period of duration longer than 15 minutes, more than 5 times the average 24 
hour concentration of flow or load during normal operation and which may adversely affect the 
Wastewater Treatment Facilities and/or performance of the Wastewater Treatment Facilities. 

     920930.01.46.  “State” shall mean the State of Minnesota. 

     920930.01.47.  “State disposal system permit or SDS permit” shall mean a permit issued by 
the MPCA pursuant to M.S. section 115.07 for a disposal system as defined by M.S. section 
115.01(5). 

     920930.01.48.  “Standard Methods” shall mean the latest edition of Standard Methods for the 
Examination of Water and Wastewater published jointly by the American Public Health 
Association, the American Waterworks Association and the Water Environment Federation or 
EPA approved method listed in 40 CFR 136. 

     920930.01.49.  “Storm sewer” shall mean a Sewer intended to carry unpolluted storm, surface 
and groundwater from any source. 

     920.01.50.  “Superintendent” shall  mean the official of the City who is authorized to enforce 
the provisions of this section and Section 910, or his/her authorized deputy, agent or 
representative. 

     920.01.51.     930.01.50.  “Suspended solids (SS) or Total suspended solids or (T.S.S)” shall 
mean the total suspended solids in Wastewater as determined under standard laboratory 
procedures as set forth in Standard Methods. 

     920930.01.5251. “Toxic pollutant(s)” shall mean the concentration of any pollutant or 
combination of pollutants which upon exposure to or assimilation into any organism will cause 
adverse effects as defined in standards issued pursuant to section 307(a) of the Clean Water Act 
or M.S. section 115.01(20). 

     920930.01.5352.  “Unpolluted water” shall mean water which meets the effluent criteria in 
effect or water that would not cause violation of receiving water quality standards and would not 
be benefited by discharge to the Sanitary Sewers and Wastewater Treatment Facilities provided. 

     920930.01.5453. “User charge” shall mean a charge levied on the users of the Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities for the cost of operation, maintenance, including replacement and debt 
service. 

     920930.01.5554. “Wastewater” shall mean combination of the liquid and water carried wastes 
from residences, business buildings, institutions, and industrial establishments. The term 
"Wastewater" also includes septage. 

     920930.01.5655.  “Wastewater treatment facilities or treatment facilities” or “Sanitary Sewer 
System” shall mean the land, devices, facilities, structures, equipment and processes owned or 



used by the City and the WLSSD for the purpose of the transmission, storage, treatment, 
recycling and reclamation of Wastewater, or structures necessary to recycle or reuse water 
including interceptor sewers and the disposal of residues resulting from such treatment. Outfall 
sewers, collection sewers, pumping, power, and other equipment and their appurtenances; 
extension, improvements, remodeling, additions, and alterations thereof; elements essential to 
provide a reliable recycled water supply such as standby treatment units and clear well facilities, 
and any works including land which is an integral part of the treatment process or is used for 
ultimate disposal of residues resulting from such treatment.  Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
does not include Building Sewers. 

     920930.01.5756. “Watercourse” shall mean a channel in which a flow of water occurs, either 
continuously or intermittently. 

     920930.01.5857.  “WLSSD.” shall mean the Western Lake Superior Sanitary District, a 
public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota established by Chapter 
478, Laws of Minnesota, 1971, now codified as M.S. Chapter 458D. 

(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06)  (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

920930.02  General Provisions. 

     920930.02.1.  Purpose. The purpose of this section is to require and regulate the use of Public 
Sewers, Building Sewers and Private Sewers within the City. 

     920930.02.2.  Construction.  Except as specifically noted herein, it is the intent of the City 
that this section be consistent with the policies, procedures and ordinances of WLSSD to the 
extent possible. Except as specifically noted herein, if, at any time, any conflict should arise 
between any provision of this section and the policies, procedures and ordinances of WLSSD, 
the policies, procedures and ordinances of the WLSSD will in all cases be controlling. 

     920930.02.3.  Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this section are severable, and if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional 
or otherwise invalid by the judgment or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences; 
paragraphs and sections of this section. 

     920930.02.4.  Methods Regarding Measurements, Tests, Analysis. All measurements, tests 
and analyses of the characteristics of waters and waste to which reference is made in this section 
must be determined in accordance with the provisions set out in Standard Methods. Sampling 
methods, location, times, duration and frequencies are to be determined on an individual basis 
subject to approval by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director and Engineer. 

     920930.02.5.  Amendments.  This section cannot be amended except by further ordinance of 
the City. 



(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06) 

920930.03  Use of Public Sewers Required. 

     920930.03.1.  Suitable Treatment.  It shall be unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet 
within the City or in any area under jurisdiction of the City any Wastewater or other polluted 
waters except where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with the provisions of 
this section. 

     920930.03.2.  Construction or Maintenance of Privies and Like Devices Prohibited. 
Except as hereinafter provided, it shall be unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy 
vault, septic tank, cesspool, or other facility intended or used for the disposal of Wastewater.   

     920930.03.3.  Service Connection Required.  The owner of any house or building of any 
character wherein or whereon Wastewater develops or occurs is hereby required at the owner's 
expense to install suitable Wastewater collection facilities therein or thereon. 

     In the case of new construction or new use the owner shall install a suitable Building Sewer 
and connect the Building Sewer directly with the Public Sewer in accordance with the provisions 
of this section at the time of construction.  In the case of an existing house or building such 
connection shall be made when any of the following occur: 

 920930.03.3.1.  The existing Onsite Wastewater Disposal System on such property is 
determined to be failing, based on inspection by the St. Louis County Health Department 
pursuant to St. Louis County Ordinance 55, Section 6. 

 920930.03.3.2.  The house or building is remodeled to add bedroom(s), and/or bathrooms, 
and/or additional kitchen facilities. 

 920930.03.3.3.  The ownership of the property is transferred from one owner to another 
so as to require a point of sale inspection pursuant to St. Louis County Ordinance 55, Section 6 
and the point of sale inspection indicates that the Onsite Wastewater Disposal System is 
noncompliant. 

     The foregoing connections shall be required provided that the Public Sewer is located within 
an easement or right of way adjoining the property and within 400 feet of the house or building 
to be connected to the Public Sewer. 

(Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 10-03-11) (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

     920930.03.4.  Assessments.  AnyAll assessments payable as a result of the construction of 
the Public Sewer adjacent to the property owner’s property willhereunder shall be payable 
inmade consistent with the mannerprocedures set forth in the resolution adopting the assessment 
rollCity’s Assessment Policy found in the Handbook for such Public Sewer even if a connection 
is not made to the Public Sewer.  This section only provides the rules and procedure for required 
connections to the Public Sewer. the City of Hermantown. 



(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-16-06) (Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 10-03-11) 

     930.03.5. Sewer Availability Charge. 920.03.5. The City shall impose a sewer availability 
charge (“SAC”) for any new connections to the City sewer.  The purpose of the SAC is to 
provide funds for the sewage collection system and the payment of capital charges used to 
finance the additions or expansions to the facilities and the payment of reasonable reserves for 
repair.  The amount of the SAC shall be determined by the City pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 
Section 444.075.   

     930.03.6.  The provisions of this section are applicable to property owners for Public Sewer 
mains no matter when constructed. 

(Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 10-03-11) 

920     930.03.67.  The policies and procedures adopted hereby are subject to the provisions of 
St. Louis County Ordinance No. 55, as it may be amended from time to time. 

(Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 10-03-11) (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014)                  

920930.04  Private Wastewater Disposal. 

     920930.04.1.  Unavailability of Public Sewer. Where a public sewer is not available as 
described in section 920930.03 above, the Building Drain must be connected to an Onsite 
Wastewater Disposal System complying with the requirements of the County, the MPCA and all 
other regulatory agencies including U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Class 5 injection well 
regulations. 

920930.04.2.  Private Facilities Unlawful.  Except as provided hereinafter, it is unlawful to 
construct or maintain any private Onsite Wastewater Disposal System or other private facility 
intended or used for the disposal of wastewater. 

     920930.04.3.  Construction of Onsite Wastewater Disposal Systems.  Before 
commencement of construction of a private Onsite Wastewater Disposal System the owner shall 
first obtain a written permit from the County Health Department. 

     920930.04.4.  Compliance with County Requirements.  The type, capacities, location and 
layout of a private Onsite Wastewater Disposal System shall comply with all requirements of the 
ordinances and regulations of the County and such other requirements as may be imposed by the 
MPCA, the State Department of Health, or other responsible agencies.  No such system shall be 
permitted to discharge to surface water unless an NPDES permit to perform such a discharge has 
been obtained. 

     920930.04.5.  Operation and Maintenance of Onsite Wastewater Disposal Systems. The 
owner, user or occupant shall operate and maintain the private Onsite Wastewater Disposal 
System in a manner which complies with applicable state and County regulations at all times and 
at no expense to the City. 



     920930.04.6.  Availability of Public Sewers and Abandonment of ISTS. When and 
whenever Public Sewer becomes available to a property and such property is required to connect 
to the Public Sewer under Section 920930.03 and such property is served by an Onsite 
Wastewater Disposal System, use of the Onsite Wastewater Disposal System must be 
discontinued, and a service connection must be made to the Public Sewer within 90 days of 
receiving written notification that Public Sewer is available from the City and any septic tanks, 
cesspools, and similar Onsite Wastewater Disposal Systems must be abandoned and dealt with in 
accordance with current requirements of the County, the MPCA and all other regulatory agencies 
at the property owner's sole expense, unless such Onsite Wastewater Disposal System is legally 
incorporated into the design of the Building Sewer. 

     920930.04.7.  Additional Legal Requirements.  No provision of this section shall be 
construed to interfere with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency, the County, the WLSSD or the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency. 

(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06) (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

920930.05  Building Sewers and Connections. 

     920930.05.1.  Permit Required. 

          920930.05.1.1. Except for City employees acting in the course of employment, no Person 
shall uncover, make any connections with or opening into, use, alter, or disturb any Public Sewer 
or appurtenances thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the SuperintendentPublic 
Works Director. 

          920930.05.1.2. There shall be two or more classes of service connection permits: 

               920930.05.1.2.1.  For users discharging domestic strength Wastewater to Public 
Sewers. 

               920930.05.1.2.2.  For users discharging non domestic strength Wastewater to Public 
Sewer.  In all cases, the owner or his agent shall make application on a special form furnished by 
the City.  The permit application shall be supplemented by any plans, specifications, or other 
information considered pertinent in the judgment of the Superintendent.Public Works 
Director.  A permit and inspection fee sufficient to defray the cost incidental to the processing of 
such connection permit including the cost of inspection of connection for each such class shall be 
established by resolution or ordinance of the City and shall be paid to the City at the time the 
application is filed. There shall be submitted to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director a 
report, in form and substance satisfactory to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director, which 
indicates that no Unpolluted Water will be discharged into the Public Sewer as a result of the 
service connection for which the permit is sought. 

               920930.05.1.2.3. All costs and expenses incidental to the installation and connection of 
the Building Sewer shall be borne by the owner. The owner shall indemnify the City from any 



loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be occasioned by the installation of the Building 
Sewer. 

               920930.05.1.2.4.  No Building Sewer connection permit shall be issued unless the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director first determines that all City’s Sanitary Sewer System and 
WLSSD Wastewater Treatment Facilities have sufficient capacity to accommodate the flow and 
load to be discharged as a result of such connection. 

               920930.05.1.2.5.  Existing Building Sewers may be used in connection with new 
buildings only when they are found, on examination and test by the SuperintendentPublic Works 
Director, to meet all requirements of this section. 

               920930.05.1.2.6. The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a Building 
Sewer, and the methods to be used in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing, and 
backfilling the trench, shall all conform to the requirements of the building and plumbing code or 
other applicable rules and regulations of the City. 

               920930.05.1.2.7. Whenever possible, the Building Sewer shall be brought to the 
building at an elevation below the basement floor. In all buildings in which any Building Drain is 
too low to permit gravity flow to the Public Sewer, Wastewater carried by such Building Drain 
shall be lifted by an approved means and discharged to the Building Sewer. 

               920930.05.1.2.8.  No person shall make connection of roof downspouts, areaway 
drains, or other sources of Unpolluted Waters such as storm water, ground water, roof runoff, 
subsurface drainage, unpolluted industrial water or cooling water to a Building Sewer or 
Building Drain which is connected directly or indirectly to a Public Sewer. 

               920930.05.1.2.9.  The connection of the Building Sewer into the Public Sewer shall 
conform to the requirements of the building and plumbing code or other applicable rules and 
regulations of the City. All such connections shall be made gastight and watertight and verified 
by proper testing. The SuperintendentPublic Works Director shall have authority to promulgate 
rules, regulations, and tests as to the manner in which connections shall be made and such rules, 
regulations and tests when so promulgated and filed with the City shall be met. 

               920930.05.1.2.10. The applicant for the permit must notify the SuperintendentPublic 
Works Director when the Building Sewer is ready for installation of the connection to the Public 
Sewer. The area to be inspected must be open for inspection and backfilling must not have 
commenced.  All connections to the Public Sewer must be made under the supervision of the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director. 

               920930.05.1.2.11.  All excavations for Building Sewer installation shall be adequately 
guarded with barricades and lights so as to protect the public from hazard.  Streets, sidewalks, 
parkways, and other public property disturbed in the course of the work shall be restored in a 
manner satisfactory to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director. 



               920930.05.1.2.12.  No private Building Drain may extend beyond the limits of the 
building or property for which the permit has been given. 

               920930.05.1.2.13. All Building Sewers, service connections, pumps and other 
equipment must, at all times, conform to specifications established by the city from time to time 
and be compatible with the Public Sewer to which the Building Sewer will be connected.  The 
determination of whether the Building Sewer is compatible shall be made by the Engineer.  
Installation of a Building Sewer, service connection, Pump System or other equipment, which is 
not compatible with any other requirements of the City will be a violation of this section.  The 
owner is obligated to keep the Building Sewer, including any Pump System, in good condition 
and repair.  The City reserves the right to deny or discontinue service to a property served by a 
Building Sewer, service connection, pump or other equipment which is not compatible with the 
Public Sewer to which the Building Sewer is connected or does not otherwise comply with the 
requirements of this section or other requirements of the City. 

               920930.05.1.2.14.  The City may, by resolution, adopt reasonable rules and regulations 
relating to sewer construction, use, maintenance, discharges, and deposit or disposal of all 
Wastewater, either directly or indirectly, within the City. Such resolution may adopt rules and 
regulations by reference. 

     920.05.2.       930.05.2.Sewer Availability Charge. The City may by resolution or ordinance 
impose a sewer availability charge ("SAC") with respect to any connection to the Public 
Sewer.  Any required SAC shall be paid in cash or under a standard City utility contract prior to 
any connection being made to the Public Sewer. 

     920.05.3.  Pump Systems.  The owner of a property connected to the Public Sewer shall be 
the owner of the Building Sewer, including any Pump System which is part of the Building 
Sewer.  The City will, as part of a construction project, designate the type of Pump System that 
must be utilized by an owner in the Building Sewer that will be connected to the Public Sewer.  
An owner must utilize the designated Pump System as part of its Building Sewer.  The City may 
also obtain, as part of construction projects, Pump Systems to provide to owners to utilize as part 
of the Building Sewer.  The owner may obtain a pump from the City by entering into an 
agreement with respect to the Pump System that is provided by the City.  The owner of the 
property shall be the owner of or responsible for the maintenance of any Pump System. 

(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06) (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

920930.05A  Certificate of Building Sewer Compliance. 

     920930.05.1AA.1  Definitions.  All definitions set forth in Section 920930.01 are applicable 
to this Section 920930.05.1AA.  In addition, the following words and phrases when used in this 
Section 920930.05.1AA and when otherwise used in this Chapter shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this Section 920930.05.1AA unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

      920930.05.1AA.1.1  “Certificate of Building Sewer Compliance” means a certificate 
issued by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director to verify that a Building Sewer is not 



contributing any material amounts of unpolluted water to the Public Sewer through the Building 
Sewer. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.2  “Correction Notice” means the written notice issued by the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director to the Owner after review of an Inspection Report advising 
that the Owner’s Property is not in compliance with the requirements of this Section, and 
notifying the Owner of corrections to Owner’s Property needed to bring it into compliance in a 
timely manner. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.3  “E-One Pump System” means a Building Sewer that is pressurized 
by the use of an E-One Pump System.  For purposes of this 920930.05.1AA, Building Sewer 
includes a Building Sewer that utilizes an E-One Pump Systems and all provisions related to a 
Building Sewer set forth in this Section apply to a Building Sewer that utilizes an E-One Pump 
System. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.4  “Inspection Report” means the report required to be provided to the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director by the Owner pursuant to Sections 920930.05.1AA.4 of 
this Ordinance. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.5  “New Use” means that development or redevelopment of a property 
for a different residential, business or industrial use evidenced by the requirement of a building 
permit issued by the Hermantown Building Official or by other official governmental actions for 
such use. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.6  “Owner” means the person(s) or entities that own or hold the title to 
the Property served by the Public Sewer. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.7  “Owner’s Property” means the Property owned by a person who 
owns Property served by the Public Sewer. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.8  “Property” means the land served by a Public Sewer. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.9  “Notice to Inspect” means the written notice sent to the Owner by 
the SuperintendentPublic Works Director, which requires the Owner to obtain an Inspection 
Report and file it with the SuperintendentPublic Works Director. 

 920930.05.1AA.1.10 “Sump Pump” means the pump and discharging pipes designed to 
remove liquids from the Sump and discharge them away from the building foundation. 

     920930.05.1AA.2  Certificate of Building Sewer Compliance.  If the Owner needs to obtain 
a Certificate of Building Sewer Compliance pursuant to Section 920930.05.1AA.3, the Owner 
shall complete an application for a Certificate of Building Sewer Compliance on a form 
prescribed by the Superintendent.Public Works Director.  At the time of application, the Owner 
shall pay the fees in the amount set from time to time by the City of Hermantown. 

     920930.05.1AA.3  Building Sewer – Mandatory Inspections and Testing. 



 920930.05.1AA.3.1  Events Requiring a Building Sewer Inspection.  Except as 
provided by Section 920930.05.1AA.3.2, an Owner, or if applicable, all Owners of a common 
Building Sewer, shall have the Building Sewer inspected at the Property Owner’s expense when 
any of the following events occur: 

      920930.05.1AA.3.1.1  If the SuperintendentPublic Works Director sends the Owner a 
written Notice to Inspect for an imminent threat to public health and safety reasons, the Building 
Sewer must be inspected not later than the 30th day after the date the Notice to Inspect is 
provided to the Owner. 

      920930.05.1AA.3.1.2  Upon a determination by the SuperintendentPublic Works 
Director that the Owner of  a structure with a new or existing connection to the Public Sewer 
must pay a Capacity Availability Fee as a result of a new use or anticipated wastewater flow 
increase calculated in accordance with the WLSSD Capacity Availability Fee Procedures Manual 
in effect at the time of the calculation. 

      920930.05.1AA.3.1.3  Upon the proposed sale or the proposed transfer of title in 
Owner’s Property, or substantial change in use in the Property, the Owner shall obtain a Building 
Sewer inspection. 

      920930.05.1AA.3.1.4  Upon repair or replacement of any portion of a Building Sewer. 

 920930.05.1AA.3.2  Exceptions.  The following are exceptions to the Building Sewer 
inspection requirements provided in Sections 920930.05.1AA.3.1.1 ad 920930.05.1AA.3.1.4: 

      920930.05.1AA.3.2.1  Structures that were constructed ten (10) years or less prior to 
any event listed in Section 920930.05.1AA.3.1.3; 

      920930.05.1AA.3.2.2  Structures that have a Building Sewer that was replaced, relined 
or installed within ten (10) years prior to the event listed in Sections 920930.05.1AA.3.1.3 and 
920930.05.1AA.3.1.4 and the Owner provides the SuperintendentPublic Works Director with 
documentation that the replacement, relining or installation was satisfactorily completed in the 
prior ten (10) years; 

      920930.05.1AA.3.2.3  Structures not connected to the Public Sewer; or 

      920930.05.1AA.3.2.4  The Owner replaces or relines the Building Sewer upon the 
occurrence of one of the events in Sections 920930.05.1AA.3.1.1 and provides evidence of such 
replacement or repair satisfactory to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director. 

     920930.05.1AA.4  Building Sewer – Inspection Report – Requirements 

 920930.05.1AA.4.1  Report Required.  If an Owner is required to have an inspection 
performed for the Building Sewer under Sections 920930.05.1AA.3.1.1 through 
920930.05.1AA.3.1.4, or voluntarily has an inspection conducted for the Building Sewer, an 
Inspection Report must be provided to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director in the form set 



forth herein.  The Inspection Report shall be prepared in a format acceptable to the 
Superintendent.Public Works Director.  An Inspection Report is not required if the Owner relines 
or replaces the entire Building Sewer after the inspection, and provides written evidence to the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director proving that the relining or replacement was properly 
completed. 

 920930.05.1AA.4.2  Inspection Report Standards.  The Building Sewer Inspection 
Report required by Section 920930.05.1AA shall be prepared in accordance with the following 
requirements and specifications: 

      920930.05.1AA.4.2.1  The Inspection Report shall be prepared by a licensed plumber 
or professional approved by the City of Hermantown Public Works Department. 

      920930.05.1AA.4.2.2  The Inspection Report shall identify all of the following: 

  920930.05.1AA.4.2.2.1  Any and all defects that could allow unpolluted water 
into the Building Sewer or otherwise create a maintenance issue in the Public Sewer, including 
all of the inspection criteria listed in Section 920930.05.1AA.4.3. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.2.2.2  Whether any connection, by pipe or otherwise, allows 
unpolluted water to enter the Building Sewer or Public Sewer. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.2.2.3  Date of the inspection. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.2.2.4  Name of the person conducting the inspection, the license 
number of such person and the business employing the person. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.2.2.5  A certification that the inspection of the Building Sewer 
was conducted using televised video. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.2.2.6  A certification that no floor, roof, foundation and/or 
surface drains are physically connected to the Building Sewer. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.2.2.7  If the Building Sewer was not able to be televised due to 
a blockage or debris in the Building Sewer, a certification that the Building Sewer was 
thoroughly cleaned prior to the video inspection. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.2.2.8  If necessary, a recommended method for repair of the 
Building Sewer to eliminate any unpolluted water from entering into the Public Sewer. 

 920930.05.1AA.4.3  Building Sewer Inspection Criteria.  A Property complies with the 
provisions of this Section 940930.05.1AA if the inspection verifies all of the following 
conditions: 

  920930.05.1AA.4.3.1  The Building Sewer if free of roots, grease deposits, and 
other solids, which may impede or obstruct the transmission of sewage. 



  920930.05.1AA.4.3.2  There are no improper or illegal connections to the 
Building Sewer such as sump pumps, down spouts or area drainage facilities. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.3.3  All joints in the Building Sewer are tight and sound to 
prevent the exfiltration of sewage and the infiltration of groundwater, stormwater and rain water. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.3.4  The Building Sewer is free of structural defects, cracks, 
breaks, or missing portions and the grade is reasonably uniform without major sags or offsets. 

  920930.05.1AA.4.3.5  The Building Sewer is constructed with PVC sewer pipe or 
is relined and the Owner provides the SuperintendentPublic Works Director with documentation 
that the relining was satisfactorily completed. 

     920930.05.1AA.5  Compliance and Expiration. 

 920930.05.1AA.5.1  Once a Certificate of Building Sewer Compliance is issued, that 
Building Sewer shall not require inspection for a period of ten (10) year from the date of 
issuance unless the SuperintendentPublic Works Director has reason to believe the Building 
Sewer is in a defective condition. 

 920930.05.1AA.5.2  A Certificate of Building Sewer Compliance is valid to be used for 
the transfer of property. 

     920930.05.1AA.6  Correction Notice. 

 920930.05.1AA.6.1  If an Inspection Report discloses that the use of the Property is not 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 920930, a Correction Notice may be issued by the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director requiring corrections to the Property to bring it into 
compliance.  The corrections must be completed within the time specified in the Correction 
Notice no later than 180 days from the date of the Correction Notice.  Upon proof of satisfactory 
completion of the corrections, a Certificate of Building Sewer Compliance shall be issued. 

 920930.05.1AA.6.2  A Correction Notice may be issued by the SuperintendentPublic 
Works Director permitting transfer of title of the Property if the following conditions are met: 

      920930.05.1AA.6.2.1  An agreement by the Owner and transferee has been executed 
whereby the Owner and transferee agree to complete corrections to the Property necessary to 
bring it within compliance of the provisions of Section 920930 within one hundred eight (180) 
days of the transfer of Property, and agree that if acceptable proof that the corrections have been 
made are not provided to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director within one hundred eighty 
(180) days that the Property will be subject to surcharge in an amount to be determined from 
time to time by the City Council. 

 920930.05.1AA.6.3  The Correction Notice is recorded with the County Recorder or 
Registrar of Title Office, as the case may be.  



     920930.05.1AA.7  Failure to Comply; Penalty. 

 920930.05.1AA.7.1  Owners not in compliance with this Section 920930.05.1AA will be 
charged a monthly surcharge in an amount established from time to time by the City Council. 

 920930.05.1AA.7.2  A surcharge in an amount set by separate resolution of the City 
Council is hereby imposed and added to every sewer billing to Owners who are not in 
compliance with the provisions of this Section 920930.05.1AA.  The surcharge shall be levied 
monthly on properties not complying with the provisions of this Section 920930.05.1AA.  This 
charge shall cease when the Property has been inspected and a Certificate of Building Sewer 
Compliance is issued by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director. 

 920930.05.1AA.7.3  The City may also enforce the terms of this Section 920930.05.1AA 
in any manner it deems appropriate as allowed by applicable law. 

 920930.05.1AA.7.4  A violation of the provision of this Section 920930.05.1AA.7.4 is a 
misdemeanor.  

(Ord. 2020-02, passed 3-2-2020) 

920930.06  Use of the Public Sewers. 

     920930.06.1.  Unpolluted Water. No Unpolluted Water such as storm water, ground water, 
roof runoff, surface drainage, cooling water, etc. may be discharged to the Sanitary Sewer. Such 
water must be discharged only to storm sewers or to natural outlets approved by the City and 
other regulatory agencies. Industrial cooling water may be discharged, on approval of the 
Engineer, to a storm sewer or natural outlet, subject to approval and the issuance of a NPDES 
Permit. 

     920930.06.2.  Septage.  Remote facilities septage may only be discharged or deposited into 
the Sanitary Sewer at locations specifically designated by the WLSSD.  No ISTS septage may be 
deposited in Public Sewers in the City. 

     920930.06.3.  Prohibited Substances.  No person(s) may discharge or cause to be discharged 
any of the following substances in or to the Public Sewer: 

          920930.06.3.1.  Any liquids, solids or gases which by reason of their nature or quantity 
are, or may be, sufficient, either alone or by interaction with other substances, to cause fire or 
explosion or be injurious in any other way to the treatment facilities or to the operation of the 
treatment facilities. Prohibited materials include, but are not limited to, gasoline, kerosene, 
benzene, naptha, fuel oil, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, aldehydes, peroxides, 
chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides, and sulfides. 

          920930.06.3.2.  Any substance which either singly or by interaction with other waste will 
injure or interfere with any waste treatment process or Wastewater Treatment Facilities, 
constitute a hazard to humans or animals in spite of treatment, create a public nuisance or create 



a hazard in the receiving waters of the Wastewater Treatment Facilities, including but not limited 
to cyanides in excess of federal and state requirements.  

          920930.06.3.3.  Solid or viscous substances which may, either singly or by interaction with 
other wastes, cause obstruction to the flow in a sewer, or other interference with the proper 
operation of the treatment facilities such as, but not limited to, bone, fish heads, fish scales, fish 
entrails, ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, sanitary napkins, feathers, 
tar, plastics, wood, garbage which is not properly shredded garbage, whole blood, paunch 
manure, hair and fletching, entrails, and paper dishes, cups, milk containers, etc., either whole or 
ground by garbage grinders. 

     920930.06.4.  Other Discharges.  No person may discharge or cause to be discharged the 
following described substance, materials, waters or wastes if it appears likely in the opinion of 
the Engineer and/or SuperintendentPublic Works Director that such wastes can harm either the 
Sanitary Sewers, sewage treatment process, or Wastewater Treatment Facilities, have an adverse 
effect on the receiving waters, streams, soils, vegetation and ground water, or can otherwise 
endanger life, limb, public property, or constitute a nuisance. In forming his/her opinion as to the 
acceptability of these wastes, the Engineer and/or SuperintendentPublic Works Director will give 
consideration to such factors as the district's NPDES Permit, the quantities of subject wastes in 
relation to the flow and velocities in the Sanitary Sewers, materials and construction of the 
Sanitary Sewers, nature of the treatment process, capacity of the Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities, degree of treatability of the Wastewater, and other factors deemed pertinent. The 
substances prohibited are: 

          920930.06.4.1. Any Wastewater that would directly or indirectly result in a violation of the 
WLSSD's NPDES Permit. 

          920930.06.4.2.  Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than 150°F (65.6 °C), or 
causing, individually or in combination with other Wastewater, the influent at the treatment 
facilities to have a temperature exceeding 104°F (40°C), or having heat in amounts which will be 
detrimental to biological activity in the Treatment Facilities. 

          920930.06.4.3.  Any water or waste containing fats, wax, grease, oils, whether emulsified 
or not, in excess of 100 milligrams per liter or containing substances which may solidify or 
become viscous at temperatures between 32° and 150°F (65.6° C). 

          920930.06.4.4. Any garbage that is not properly shredded garbage. 

          920930.06.4.5. Any waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc, nickel, 
lead, cadmium, mercury, cyanide, PCBs, and similar toxic or objectionable substances to such 
degree that any such material received in the composite sewage at the Wastewater Treatment 
Facilities exceeds the limits established by the MPCA for such unusual materials. 

          920930.06.4.6.  Any waters or wastes containing phenols or other taste or odor producing 
substances, in such concentrations exceeding limits which may be established by the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director as necessary, after treatment of the composite sewage, to 



meet the requirements of the state, federal, or other public agencies of jurisdiction for such 
discharge to the receiving waters. 

          920930.06.4.7. Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half life or concentration as 
may exceed limits established by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director, in compliance with 
applicable state and federal regulations. 

          920930.06.4.8.  Materials which contain or cause, whether alone or by interaction with 
other substances, release of noxious gasses or form suspended solids (such as, but not limited to, 
fullers earth, lime slurries and lime residues) or of dissolved solids (such as, but not limited to, 
sodium chloride and sodium sulfate) that would interfere with the treatment facilities or create a 
condition deleterious to or cause disruption to the Wastewater Treatment Facilities and 
processes. 

          920930.06.4.9.  Materials which contain or cause excessive discoloration which cannot be 
removed in the treatment process (such as, but not limited to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning 
solution), excessive BOD, chemical oxygen demand, or disinfection requirements in such 
quantities as to constitute a significant load on the treatment facilities, except by permit or 
agreement. 

          920930.06.4.10.  Unusual volume of flow or concentration of wastes, which constitutes a 
slug.  

          920930.06.4.11.  Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to 
treatment or reduction by the treatment process employed, or are amenable to treatment only to 
such degree that the treatment facilities effluent cannot meet the requirements or cause a 
violation of the regulations of the agencies having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving 
waters or are amenable to treatment only by the application of extraordinary processes. 

          920930.06.4.12.  Wastewater with BOD or suspended solids levels greater than that 
defined as normal domestic strength waste, except as may be permitted by specific written 
agreement with the City. 

          920930.06.4.13.  Wastewater contaminated by petroleum oil, fuel, organic solvents, or 
other toxic organic compound which contains more than 1 milligram per liter (mg/l) of anyone of 
the following compounds; benzene, ethyl benzene, toluene, and xylene (BETX). The sum of 
these four compounds must not be over 3 mg/l. Diesel range organics (DRO) and gasoline range 
organics (GRO) must each be less than 100 mg/l each. Lead must be under 1 mg/l and mercury 
less than 0.3 ug/l. For hauled Wastewater the concentrations must be less than 3 mg/l each for 
BETX with the combined total less than 10 mg/l. DRO and GRO must be less than 100 mg/l, 
lead less than 1 mg/l, and mercury less than 0.3 mg/l. 

          920930.06.4.14.  Wastewater containing substances which cannot be treated to produce 
effluent quality required by agreement for wastewater treatment with WLSSD or causing a 
violation of any applicable local, county, state, or federal regulation. 



          920930.06.4.15.  Noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, or solids. 

          920930.06.4.16. Water or waste containing substances which are not amenable to 
treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes employed or are amenable to 
treatment only to such degree that the Wastewater Treatment Facilities effluent cannot meet the 
requirements of the NPDES Permit issued to the WLSSD or are amenable to treatment only by 
the application of extraordinary processes. 

     920930.06.5.  Grease, Oil and Sand Interceptors.  In Addition to the requirements of 
Section 970980, grease, oil, sand and flammable liquids interceptors (sometimes called traps) 
must be provided at the owner's expense when required by the Hermantown Building Code or 
when, in the opinion of the SuperintendentPublic Works Director, they are necessary for the 
proper handling of liquid wastes containing floatable grease in excessive amounts, any 
flammable wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients. All interceptors must be of a type and 
capacity approved by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director and must be readily and easily 
accessible for cleaning and inspection. The owner will be responsible for the maintenance of 
interceptors, including proper removal and disposal of the captured materials by appropriate 
means, and must maintain a record of dates and means of disposal that are subject to review by 
the City. Any material removal and hauling must be performed by the property owner's 
personnel or a currently licensed waste disposal firm and in compliance with all applicable laws 
and regulations. 

     920930.06.6.  Pretreatment.  Where pretreatment or flow equalizing facilities are provided 
or required for any water or wastes, plans, specifications, and any other pertinent information 
relating thereto shall be submitted for approval of the City and the WLSSD and no construction 
of such facilities shall be commenced until approval in writing is granted. Where such facilities 
are provided, they shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective operating order 
by the owner at the expense of the owner and may be subject to periodic inspection by the City 
and the WLSSD to determine that such facilities are being operated in conformance with the 
applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and permits. The owner shall maintain 
operating records. 

(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06) (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

     920930.06.7.  Metering and Testing of Waste. 

          920930.06.7.1.  Metering and Testing Industrial Users.  Where required by the City, 
industrial users must install and maintain, at their own expense, a suitable structure or control 
manhole with such necessary meters and other testing equipment needed to facilitate 
observation, sampling and measurement of wastewater.  The manhole will be safe and accessible 
at all times and must be constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by 
the SuperintendentPublic Works Director and the WLSSD. 

          920930.06.7.2.  Laboratory Analysis.  The City may require submission of laboratory 
analyses to illustrate compliance with this section and any special conditions for discharge 
established by the City or responsible regulatory agency. All measurements, tests and analyses to 



which reference is made in this section must be determined in accordance with the latest edition 
of Standard Methods. Sampling methods, location, times, duration and frequencies are to be 
determined on an individual basis by the City. The Industrial User must supply a complete 
analysis of the constituents of the wastewater discharge to assure that compliance with federal, 
state and local standards are being met. The industrial user must report the results of 
measurements and laboratory analyses to the City as such times and in such manner as 
prescribed by the City. The industrial user must bear the expense of all measurements, analyses, 
and reporting required by the City. At such times as deemed necessary, the City reserves the 
right to take its own measurements and samples for analysis by an independent laboratory. 

          920930.06.7.3.  Metering and Testing of Nonresidential and Commercial Users. The 
City, in its sole discretion may require nonresidential users and commercial users to install and 
maintain, at their own expense, a suitable structure or control manhole with such necessary 
meters and other testing equipment needed to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement 
of wastewater as required in section 920930.06.7 for industrial users. The manhole must be 
installed by the owner at his/her expense, and must be maintained by him so as to be safe for use 
at all times. 

          920930.06.7.4.  Water Meters.  Where required by the City, water meters must be 
installed on a user's water supply lines to facilitate measurement of wastewater generated. The 
City will own, supply, install and maintain meters. The City will set a fee by resolution or 
ordinance to cover the costs of installation, maintenance, meter readings, etc. The meters must be 
accessible to the City at all times. 

     920930.06.8.  Dilution of Discharges.  No user may increase the use of process water or in 
any manner attempt to dilute a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate 
treatment to achieve compliance with the limitations contained in this article, the National 
Categorical Pretreatment Standards and any state or local requirement.  

     920930.06.9.  Accidental Discharges. 

          920930.06.9.1.  Where required by the city, users must provide protection from an 
accidental discharge of substances regulated by this section. Where necessary, facilities to 
prevent accidental discharges of prohibited materials must be provided and maintained at the 
owners expense. Detailed plans and operating procedures of said facilities must be submitted to 
the SuperintendentPublic Works Director for review and approval prior to construction of the 
facility.  Approval of such plans and operating procedures will not relieve user from the 
responsibility of modifying the facility as necessary to meet the requirements of this section. 

          920930.06.9.2. Users must notify the City and WLSSD immediately if a Slug or accidental 
discharge of wastewater occurs in violation of this section. Notification will allow measures to 
be taken to minimize damage to the treatment facilities. Notification will not relieve users of 
liability for any expense, loss or damage to the treatment facilities, or for fines imposed on the 
community by any state or federal agency as a result of their actions. 



     920930.06.10.  Emergency Repairs. Notwithstanding anything in this section to the contrary, 
in the event of damage to sewers or the treatment facilities, which disrupts other users, the City 
may without notice repair such damage.   

     920930.06.11.  Special Agreements or Arrangements.  No provision contained in this 
section shall be construed as preventing any special agreement or arrangement between the City 
and the WLSSD, and any industrial concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength or 
character may be accepted by the City and the WLSSD for treatment.  Provided that any such 
agreement shall establish that charges to user shall be in accordance with the City established 
user charges. 

(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06) 

920930.07.  Damage to Wastewater Facilities Prohibited. 

     920930.07.1.  Prohibited Activities.  No person shall maliciously or willfully break, damage, 
destroy, uncover, deface, or tamper with any structure, appurtenance, or equipment which is a 
part of the wastewater facilities. Any Person violating this provision shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor, shall be subject to immediate arrest, and shall be liable to the City and the 
WLSSD for the cost of making necessary repairs occasioned by such violation.  No person shall 
install any Building Sewer, Pump System or other component part thereof that is not compatible 
with the Public Sewer to which the Building Sewer is connected.  The Engineer shall determine 
whether any Building Sewer, Pump System or any component part thereof is compatible with the 
Public Sewer to which it is proposed to be connected or is connected. 

     920930.07.2.  Deposits or Obstructions. 

          920930.07.2.1.  No person may permit any substance or matter that may form a deposit or 
obstruction of flow to be discharged into the Public Sewer. Whenever any service connection 
becomes clogged, obstructed, detrimental to the use of the Public Sewer, or unfit for the purpose 
of drainage, the owner must make repairs as directed by the City or the WLSSD.  

          920930.07.2.2.  If 48 hours after receiving written notice from the City the property owner 
has not commenced repairs, the City may have said work done and may collect such amounts 
from the property owner or, it may discontinue providing water service to such owner, it may 
block the service connection so that the Building Sewer is no longer connected to the Public 
Sewer or it may take any action it deems appropriate to cause such owner to make the required 
repairs. 

     920930.07.3.  Unauthorized Discharges. 

          920930.07.3.1. In the event of discharges or proposed discharges to the Public Sewer that 
contain substances or possess characteristics prohibited in this section or which in the judgment 
of the SuperintendentPublic Works Director and/or Engineer may have a deleterious effect on 
the treatment facilities, processes, equipment, receiving waters, soils, vegetation, or which create 
a hazard or nuisance, the Engineer and/or SuperintendentPublic Works Director may: 



               920930.07.3.1.1. Refuse to accept the wastes. 

               920930.07.3.1.2. Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the 
public sewers, pursuant to section 307(b) of the Clean Water Act and all addenda thereof. 

               920930.07.3.1.3. Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge. 

               920930.07.3.1.4. Require payment to cover all the added costs of handling, treating and 
disposing of wastes not covered by existing taxes or sewer access charges or sewer service 
charges. 

          920930.07.3.2. If the Engineer and/or SuperintendentPublic Works Director permits the 
pretreatment or equalization of flow, the design and installation of the plant and equipment are 
subject to review and approval by the district and subject to the requirements of all applicable 
federal and state codes, ordinances, and the National Categorical Pretreatment Standards.  

(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06) (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

920930.08  Powers and Authority of Inspectors. 

     920930.08.1.  Right of Entry. The SuperintendentPublic Works Director and other duly 
authorized employees of the City and the WLSSD bearing proper credentials and identification 
shall be permitted to enter all properties for the purposes of inspection, observation, 
measurement, sampling and testing pertinent to discharge to the Public Sewer in accordance with 
the provisions of this section. The SuperintendentPublic Works Director or other duly authorized 
employees of the City and the WLSSD shall be provided by users with such information 
concerning industrial processes as have a direct bearing on the kind and source of discharge to 
the Public Sewer.  

     920930.08.2.  Easements.  The SuperintendentPublic Works Director and other duly 
authorized employees of the City and WLSSD bearing proper credentials and identification shall 
be permitted to enter all private properties over which the City holds an easement for the 
purposes of, but not limited to, inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, repair, and 
maintenance of any portion of the Wastewater Treatment Facilities lying within said easement. 
All entry and subsequent work, if any, on said easement, shall be done in full accordance with 
the terms of the easement pertaining to the property involved. 

(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06) (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

920930.09  Penalties for Violation. 

     920930.09.1.  Violation Unlawful.  It is unlawful for any person to violate any provision or 
to fail to comply with any of the requirements of this section 920930. 

     920930.09.2.  Violation and Misdemeanor. Any person violating or found to have violated 
any provision of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

Formatted: Font: Bold



     920930.09.3.  Fines and Penalties. 

          920930.09.3.1. Any person who is convicted of a violation of this section 920930 will be 
subject to a fine and/or imprisonment in an amount and/or for a term not to exceed the 
maximums allowed by state law. In either case, the costs of prosecution as permitted by 
Minnesota Statutes, Rules of Court for the District Courts of Minnesota and the Minnesota Rules 
of Criminal Procedure will also be imposed. 

          920930.09.3.2. Each act of violation and every day on which any such violation continues 
is a separate offense. 

     920930.09.4.  Collection. 

          920930.09.4.1. To collect delinquent sewer service charge accounts, the City may file a 
civil action suit or may certify unpaid charges and related expenses, including attorney's fees to 
the County Auditor with real estate taxes against the property served, for collection as other real 
estate taxes are collected. 

          920930.09.4.2. In the event the City charges a user/owner for the cost of any work 
permitted under this section, and such amounts are not immediately paid by the user/owner, the 
City may certify unpaid penalties and charges and related expenses including attorney fees, to 
the County auditor with real estate taxes against the property served, for collection as other taxes 
are collected. 

          920930.09.4.3.  City may, from time to time, establish penalties for nonpayment of 
amounts due City from a user of the City’s Sanitary Sewer System. 

          920930.09.4.4.  The landowner and the property served by a Public Sewer are obligated to 
pay any amounts due with respect to the Public Sewer serving such property and related to any 
violation of this section 920930. 

          920    930.09.4.5.  The provisions of this section 920930.09.4 are in addition to and not a 
substitute for the provisions of section 910.03920.06 of the Hermantown Ordinance Code. The 
remedies available to the City under section 910.03920.06 of the Hermantown City Code are 
available to collect amounts due the City under this section 920930. 

     920930.09.5.  Liability.  Any person violating any of the provisions of this section will 
become liable to the City for any expense, loss or damage occasioned by the City by reason of 
such violation including attorney's fees. 

     920.09.6.     930.09.6. Delinquent Sewer Accounts.  All charges for sewer service shall be 
paid on or before the bill due date and shall be delinquent 30 days thereafter.  Once delinquent, 
the City will follow its past due procedure, which includes notification, opportunity to discuss, 
and timing on possible disconnection.  It shall be the duty of the City to promptly collect 
delinquent accounts, and in all cases where satisfactory arrangements for payment have not been 
made, the past due procedure will be followed.  All delinquent accounts shall be certified to St. 



Louis County to be paid on the following year’s property taxes.  The Clerk shall prepare an 
assessment roll each year providing for assessment of the delinquent accounts against the 
respective properties served. 

     930.09.7.  Enforcement Alternatives.  Notwithstanding any provision in this section to the 
contrary, the City may use any remedy or alternative available in law or statute in the 
enforcement of this section, including, without limitation, criminal or civil actions, enforcement 
of the Hazardous and Substandard Buildings Act, M.S. sections 463.15 through 463.261, which 
is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein, discontinuing water or sewer service 
to the property relating to a violation of this section 920930 and exercising the remedies 
available to the City under section 910.03920.06 of the Hermantown City Code. 

     920930.09.78.  Remedies Cumulative.  Any remedies or penalties provided in this section 
are cumulative and in addition to any other remedies, either in law or equity, that may be 
available to City. 

     920.09.8.  Certification for Collection with Taxes.  Unpaid charges for sewer charges shall 
not be certified to the St. Louis County Auditor until notice and an opportunity for a hearing 
have been provided to the owner of the property served by the Public Sewer.  The notice shall be 
sent by first class mail to the address of the fee owner of the property as shown on the records of 
the St. Louis County Auditor and shall state that if payment is not made before the charges are 
certified for payment with the real estate taxes (“Certification Date”), the entire amount unpaid 
plus penalties will be certified to the St. Louis County Auditor for collection as real estate taxes 
are collected.  The notice shall also state that the owner may, before the Certification Date, 
request a hearing on the matter to object to certification of unpaid utility charges. 

     The owner of the property shall have the option of paying the balance due on the account until 
the date the notice of the certification hearing is mailed.  After the date the notice of certification 
hearing is mailed, payments will still be accepted but must include unpaid penalties. 

     If the owner requests a hearing, it shall be held promptly by the Utility Commission or such 
person or persons as may be designated from time to time by the City Council.  If, after the 
hearing, the City Council finds that the amounts claimed as delinquent are actually due and 
unpaid and that there is no legal reason why the unpaid charges should not be certified for 
collection with taxes in accordance with this section 920.09.8, the City may certify by resolution 
the unpaid charges to the St. Louis County Auditor for collection as other taxes are collected.  
Following any certification, the property owner shall have the following options: 

     920.09.8.1.  To pay the amount determined to be certified without additional interest if 
payment is made in full within ten days of the decision by the City Council (“City Council 
Decision Date) to certify the unpaid charges for collection with the real estate taxes. 

     920.09.8.2.  To pay the amount determined to be certified after the City Council Decision 
Date, but before November 15 of the tax year in which the certification is ordered, with interest 
at the rate set from time to time by resolution of the City Council, accrued after the eleventh day 
following the City Council Decision Date through the date of payment. 



     920.09.8.3.  To pay the certified charges with his/her/its real estate taxes in the year following 
the certification. 

(Ord. 2006-11, passed 12-19-06) (Am. Ord. 2014-06, passed 6-16-2014) 

Section 930 -940 – Water and Water Utility 

930940.01  Definitions. 

     930940.01.1.  “Assessment” shall mean basic charge required as a prerequisite to obtaining 
water service. 

     930940.01.2.  “Commercial” shall mean any dwelling requiring over the minimum size 
service line or any business establishment or cemetery. 

     930.01.3.  “Commission” shall mean the City Utility Commission. 

     930940.01.43.  “Department” shall mean the Water Utility Department in the City headed by 
a Commission to conduct the City's water business. 

     930940.01.54.  “Industrial” shall mean diversified use of a property other than strictly 
residential. 

     930.01.6.  “Residential” shall mean a single-family dwelling or a parsonage and church 
combination on the same lot. 

     930.01.7.     940.01.5.  “Service installation” shall mean installation of a water service line 
from the water main to a curb stop and box (shutoff valve). 

     930940.01.8.6. “Water availability charge or WAC” shall mean the fees and charges, if any, 
established from time to time by the City Council for access or connection to the City water 
main. 

     940.01.7.  “Water service” shall mean water furnished by the Department. 

930.02940.02 Purpose and Application.  The waterworks owned by the City are declared to be 
and to constitute a public utility of the City, owned, operated, maintained, improved, extended 
and administered as an undertaking to be known as the “Water Utility.”  The properties of the 
Water Utility shall include all systems, works, instrumentalities, equipment, materials, supplies, 
water mains, pumping stations, and all other parts and appurtenances of the foregoing which are 
useful or used in connection with the distribution of water. 

940.03  Scope of Utility.  The properties of the Water Utility and all future improvements, 
extensions and enlargements thereof, together with all cash and other assets held in the Water 
Utility shall be appropriated and dedicated to the purpose of insuring the public health, safety 
and welfare by furnishing and making available water service to the City and its inhabitants and 

javascript:void(0


businesses.  The Water Utility, and all of the assets of the Water Utility shall at all times be 
under the management and control of the City Council. 

940.04  Policy in Regard to Improvements, Enlargements and Extensions.  The City Council 
shall use the Financial Management Plan and other appropriate methodologies for the City as the 
principal guide for water extension decisions.   

940.05  Use of Water Restricted to Authorized Persons.  No person, firm or corporation shall 
make, construct or install any water service installation, or make use of any water service 
connected to the City water system except pursuant to application and permit as provided in this 
section, nor shall any person, firm or corporation otherwise make, construct, install or make use 
of any installation connected to the City water system contrary to the regulatory provisions of 
this section. 

930.03940.06  Applications. 

     930.03.1.  All applications for service installations and for water service shall be made to the 
Commission, on printed forms furnished by the Department and shall contain the name of the 
owner and a description of the property, lot and block, name of the street or road upon which the 
property fronts and the official street or road number or mail route number assigned to the 
premises as shown by the records of the City and the signature of the applicant agreeing to the 
rules and regulations that may be established by the Commission as conditions for the use of 
water. 

     930.03     940.06.1.  All requests for water service installation or transfer of water service 
shall be made to the Utility Department utilizing the appropriate form.   

     940.06.2.  All applications for service installation to the property adjacent to an existing main 
shall be made by the owner of the property requesting service, or by his or her duly authorized 
agent, and shall state the size of service connection required by the CommissionDepartment, and 
the applicant shall, at the time of making application, pay to the Department the amount of the 
assessment, fees or deposits required for the service installation as provided in this section. 

     930.03.3.  All applications for service installation to property not adjacent to an existing main 
shall be made by the owner of the property requesting service, or by his or her duly authorized 
agent, and shall state the size of service installation required by the Commission, and the 
applicant shall, at the time of making application, pay to the Department the amount of the 
assessment, fees or deposits required or provide the Department with an irrevocable bank 
commitment in the amount of the assessment, fees or deposits required for the service 
installation as provided in this section. 

     930.03.4.  All payments shall be made in cash or certified bank check.  Bank commitments 
shall be called in for payment at the option of the Commission.  When the commitments are 
called in, payment in the amount of the assessment, fees or deposits required shall be made to the 
Department within five calendar days of written notice, bank holidays, Saturdays and Sundays 
excluded. 



     930.03.5.  When service installations have been made, application for water service may be 
made either by the owner or his or her duly authorized agent. 

     930.03.6.  A permit shall be obtained to connect to the City water system.  No permit shall be 
issued except to an agent authorized by the Commission.  

930.04     940.06.3.  A permit shall be obtained by an approved, licensed contractor through the 
City.   

940.07  Service Charges. 

     930.04940.07.1  Service Installation Charges. 

          930.04940.07.1.1.  The service installation charge periodically setapproved by the 
CommissionCouncil to be paid at the time application prior to water meter installation for routine 
water service shall be made shall include the charges by the Commission to the applicant for the 
cost of tapping the water main, installation of the corporation cock and installation of a water 
meter up to two inches in size which shall be performed by DepartmentCity employees.  The 
service line installation from the corporation cock to the water service in the improvements on 
the property including the curb stop and box, shall be performed by the applicant at the 
applicant's expense, under the direction and inspection of the Department. Any property with 
unique circumstances that result in excess time and labor expenses will be billed additional costs 
as calculated by the Public Works Director.  

          930.04.1.2.  For larger water services, including industrial installations, the amount of the 
service installation charge to be paid at the time application is made shall be fixed by the 
Commission, based upon the estimated cost of performing the installation services set forth 
above.  Should the actual cost exceed the estimate, the excess shall immediately become payable 
to the Department.  Should the actual cost be less than the estimate, the difference shall be 
immediately rebated by the Department. 

          930.04.1.3.  Additional charges for service installation to property fronting on paved 
streets or for frozen ground or rock encountered shall be fixed by the Commission based upon 
the estimated costs.  Should the actual cost exceed the estimate, the excess shall immediately 
become payable to the Department.  Should actual cost be less than the estimate, the difference 
shall be immediately rebated by the Department. 

          930.04.1.4.          940.07.1.2.  All service line pipes, stop cocks and other fixtures from the 
main line shall be laid and attached, kept in good repair, and protected from frost, at the expense 
of the owner of the property, but the service line shall remain under the control of the City. 

     930.04940.07.2  Turn on Water.  ForA service charge shall be made for turning on water 
where service has been turned off for nonpayment of bills to the Water Department, failure to 
repair a leak, discontinuance of service or any other cause, a service charge shall be made.  



     930.04.3  Commission to Set Charges.  The above charges due and payable to the 
department by each applicant either with or without the City for water service installations from 
the City water system or from any other governmental water system operating within the 
jurisdictional boundaries of the City shall, from time to time, be adjusted and fixed by the 
Commission. 

930.05940.08  Assessments. 

     930.05.1.  Water service installation charges shall be paid for each installation made in the 
amount specified in 930.04.  In addition, before any permit shall be issued, there shall be paid 
any sum required under this subsection and established pursuant to 930.26. 

     930.05     940.08.1.  All assessments hereunder shall be made consistent with the procedures 
set forth in the City’s Assessment Policy found in the Handbook for the City of Hermantown. 

     940.08.2.  An assessment for the water main and appurtenant facilities shall be paid for each 
installation made. 

     930.05940.08.3.  The above charges due and payable to the DepartmentCity by each applicant 
either within or without the City for water main assessment when water service is made from the 
City water system or from any other governmental water system operating within the 
jurisdictional boundaries of the township shall, from time to time, be adjusted and fixed by the 
CommissionCouncil. 

     930.05940.08.4.  Any part or parcel of industrial property, as defined in this section, removed 
therefrom and supplied by water therefrom shall thereupon and at that time be subject to 
payment of its appropriate assessment and other charges.  It shall be the sole responsibility of the 
holders of industrial properties, as defined in this section, to notify the Water CommissionCity 
prior to any such removal, sale or transfer of property. 

930.06  Accounts; How Kept.  All accounts shall be kept on the books of the Department by the 
house and road or street name or number and under the account number assigned thereto and the 
name of the owner or of the person signing the application for service.  All bills and notices sent 
out by the Department shall be sent to the house, street or road number of the property.  If non-
resident owners or agents desire personal notice sent to a different address, they shall file an 
application for personal notice with the Department.  Any error in address shall be promptly 
reported to the Commission. 

930.07     940.08.5. Water Availability Charge.  The City shall impose a water availability 
charge (“WAC”) for any new connections to an existing City water main where such property 
has not been previously connected or assessed for the cost of the main.  The purpose of the WAC 
is to provide funds for the waterworks and the payment of capital charges used to finance the 
additions or expansions to the facilities and the payment of reasonable reserves for repair.  The 
amount of the WAC shall be determined by the City pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 
444.075.   



940.09  Water Rates. 

     930.07940.09.1  CommissionCouncil Sets.  The rates due and payable to the Department by 
each water user either within or without the City of Hermantown for water taken from the City 
water system shall, from time to time, be fixed by the CommissionCouncil. 

     930.07.2  Estimated Use.  In case a meter used to measure the amount of water used is found 
to have stopped, or to be operating in a faulty manner, the amount of water used shall be 
estimated in accordance with the amount used previously. 

     930.07.3     940.09.2  Construction and Temporary Uses.  When water is desired for 
construction purposes or other temporary uses, the owner shall make applicationcontact the 
Utility Department pursuant to the provisions of this section.  The rates shall be fixed by the 
Commission when the permit shall be issued.Council.  

     930.07.4  Meter Readings.  A residential consumer shall read his or her own water meter, 
record the reading and return the meter card to the utility office within such time as may be 
designated on the card.  The utility office shall determine the gallons consumed and the amount 
of each bill in accordance with the foregoing rates.  Consumers shall be billed for water usage on 
the first of every other month. 

     930.07.5       940.09.3  Meter Readings.  Meters are read electronically by the City on a 
monthly basis.  

     940.09.4  Fire Service. 

          930.07.5940.09.4.1.  Should it be found that water not metered is used through a fire 
connection for any purpose other the extinguishing of fire upon the premises, the owner and 
occupant shall be notified and if such improper conditions shall not be corrected within five 
days, the water shall be shut off until proper adjustments shall be made, and the owner shall be 
subject to the penalties as provided in this section. 

          930.07.5940.09.4.2.  Regular inspections shall be made of all fire service connections with 
all piping, fire gates and other attached appurtenances. 

          930.07.5940.09.4.3.  Authorized agents shall have access to the premises for the inspection 
and shall keep a record of all inspections made. 

930.08940.10  Delinquent Water Accounts.  All charges for water service shall be paid on or 
before the tenth of each month subsequent to the bill due date of each billing, and shall be 
delinquent 30 days thereafter.  Once delinquent, the City will follow its past due procedure, 
which includes notification, opportunity to discuss, and timing on possible disconnection.  It 
shall be the duty of the Department to endeavorCity to promptly collect delinquent accounts, and 
in all cases where satisfactory arrangements for payment have not been made, instructions 
shallthe past due procedure will be given to discontinue service byfollowed, which may result in 
shutting off the water at the stop box.  All delinquent accounts shall be certified to the CitySt. 

Formatted: Font color: Red



Louis County to be paid on the following year’s property taxes.  The Clerk who shall prepare an 
assessment roll each year providing for assessment of the delinquent accounts against the 
respective properties served. 

930.09940.11  Discontinuance of Service for Ordinance Violations.  Water service may be 
shut off at any stop box connection whenever: 

     930.09940.11.1.  The owner or occupant of the premises served, or any person working on the 
pipes or equipment thereon which are connected with the water supply system, has intentionally 
violated any of the requirements or provisions of the ordinances of the City relative to the water 
supply system. 

     930.09940.11.2.  The owner or occupant of the premises served threaten to violate or cause to 
be violated any of the requirements or provisions of the ordinances of the City relative to the 
water supply system. 

     930.09940.11.3.  Any charge for water, service, meter or any other financial obligations 
imposed on the present or former owner or occupant of the premises served, by the provisions of 
this section, is unpaid. 

     930.09940.11.4.  Fraud or misrepresentation is committed by the owner or occupant in 
connection with an application for service. 

     930.09.5.  The owner or occupant of the premises served fails to read his or her water meter, 
record the reading and return the meter card to the Hermantown Utility Commission as required 
under 930.07 of this section for two consecutive months or refuses to allow an agent of the 
Hermantown Utility Commission to read his or her meter upon reasonable request. 

     930.09.6.     940.11.6.  The owner and occupant of the premises served has violated any of the 
requirements or provisions of this section or other applicable code provision. 

930.10940.12  Deficiency of Water and Shutting off Water.  The Department shall not be 
liable for any deficiency or failure in the supply of water to consumers, whether occasioned by 
shutting water off for the purpose of making repairs or connections, or from any other cause 
whatever.  In case of fire, or alarm of fire, water may be shut off to insure a supply for 
firefighting; or in making repairs or construction of new works, water may be shut off at any 
time and kept shut off so long as necessary. 

930.11940.13  Turning on Water.  No person, except an authorized Department employee, shall 
turn on any water supply at the stop box without a permit from the Department.  No such permit 
shall be issued except to an agent authorized by the Commission. 

930.12940.14  Supply from One Service.  No more than one residential or commercial 
establishment shall be supplied from one service installation except by a special permission of 
the CommissionCity Council.  Whenever two or more parties are supplied from one pipe, 



connecting with the distribution main, each building shall have a separate stop and box and a 
separate meter. 

930.13940.15  Tapping of Mains Prohibited.  No person except an agent authorized by the 
CommissionDepartment shall tap any distributing main or pipe of the water supply system, or 
insert stop cocks or ferrules therein. 

930.14940.16   Ownership of Service Line.  The service line from the house to but not 
including the stop cock is owned by the benefitted property.  The service line from and including 
the stop cock to the main is owned by the City utility.    

940.17  Repair of Service Line.  It shall be the responsibility of the owner and/or occupant of 
the property served by a water service line to maintain the service line, including the curb stop 
and box, from the corporation cock into the house or building.  If such owner and/or occupant 
shall fail to repair any leak occurring in the service line within 24 hours after verbal or written 
notice shall have been given to the owner or occupant of the property, as reflected in the records 
of the Department, the water service shall be turned off and shall not be reestablished until the 
sum of $15 shallall applicable fees have been paid.  When the water being discharged from the 
service line is substantial or when damage is likely to result from the leak, the water service shall 
be turned off if the repair shall not be commenced immediately upon the giving of the notice. 

930.15940.18  Abandoned Services; Penalties. 

     930.15940.18.1.  All service installations connected to the water system, that have been 
abandoned or have not been used for three years or, for any reason, have become useless for 
further service, shall be disconnected at the main by the Department, and all pipe and 
appurtenances shall be the property of the City. 

     930.15940.18.2.  When new buildings are erected on the site of old ones, and it is desired to 
increase or change the old water service, no connections with the mains shall be given until all 
the old service shall have been removed and the main plugged.  If any contractor, workman or 
employee upon the building shall cause or allow any service pipe to be hammered together at the 
ends to stop the flow of water, or to save expense in removing the pipe from the main, the owner 
of the building, the workman and contractor shall, upon conviction thereof be subject to the 
penalties set forth in 930.26940.29, and shall remove the service pipe from the main.  If he or she 
shall fail to do so within 24 hours of notice he or she shall be obligated to pay the Department the 
cost incurred by it for the removal. 

930.16940.19  Service Pipes. 

     930.16940.19.1.  The size and type of all service pipes shall be determinedverified by the 
CommissionCity. 

     930.16.2.      940.19.2.  All service pipes shall meet the City of Hermantown Standard 
Specifications for Construction.  Every service pipe shall be laid sufficiently waving to allow not 
less than one foot of extra length and in such a manner as to prevent rupture by settlement.  The 



service pipe shall be placed not less than seven feet below the final graded surface, except as 
authorized by the CommissionDepartment, and in all cases so arranged as to prevent rupture by 
freezing. 

     930.16940.19.3.  Service pipes shall extend from the curb box to the inside of the building; or 
if not taken into a building then to the hydrant or other fixture which it is intended to supply.  A 
shut-off or other stop cock with waste valve of the size and strength required shall be placed 
close to the inside wall of the building well protected from freezing.  Copper tubing shall be used 
up to and including two-inch services.  Joints on copper tubing shall be kept to a minimum, with 
not more than one joint used for a service up to 70 feet in length. 

     930.16.3940.19.4.  All services over two inches shall be cast iron except as authorized by the 
CommissionDepartment.  Connections with the mains for domestic supply shall be at least ¾-
inch to one inch. 

930.17940.20  Water Meters. 

     930.17940.20.1. Except for extinguishment of fires, no person except an agent authorized by 
the CommissionDepartment shall use water from the water supply system of the City or permit 
water to be drawn therefrom, unless the same be metered by passing through a meter supplied or 
approved by the CommissionDepartment.  No person not authorized by the 
CommissionDepartment shall connect, disconnect, take apart, or in any manner change, or cause 
to be changed, or interfere with any such meter or the action thereof. 

     930.17940.20.2.  The Department shall maintain and repair all meters when rendered 
unserviceable through ordinary wear and shall replace them if necessary.  However, where 
replacement, repair or adjustment of any meter is rendered necessary by the act, neglect or 
carelessness of the owner or occupant of any premises, any expense causedincluding frozen 
meters.  Any expenses incurred by the Department thereby shallCity due to neglect or 
carelessness of the owner or tenant may be charged against and collected from the water 
consumer or owner of the premises, and water service may be discontinued until the cause shall 
be corrected and amount charged collected. 

     930.17 940.20.3.  When a consumer makes a complaint that the bill for Inaccurate Water 
Meters.  If any past service period has been excessive, and desires that the water meter be tested, 
the consumer shall then make a deposit of $50 with the Department as prescribed below, and the 
Department shall test the meter.  The consumer shall, if he or she so desires, be present when the 
test is made. 

     930.17.4.  In case a test should show an error of over 5% of the water consumed in favor of 
the Department, the deposit shall be refunded to the consumer, a correctly registering meter shall 
be installed and the bill shall be adjusted accordingly.  The adjustment shall not extend back 
more than one service period plus one month from the date of the written request and the 
minimum charge shallworking or in the judgment of the Public Works Director not be affected. 



     930.17.5.  In case the test shows an accurate making proper water measurement of water , the 
meter shall be repaired or an error in favor of the consumer, the replaced.  The amount deposited 
shall be retained by the Department to cover part of the expense of making the test. 

     930.17.6.  Before making a test of any meter, the person requesting such a test shall, at the 
time of filing his or her request with the Department, make a deposit with the Department of the 
amount of water to be charged for the test, subject to the conditions stated above, which charges 
shall be established pursuant to 930.26.period of time that the meter was not making proper 
measurement shall be set by the City based on the customer’s prior usage.  Appeals of the Public 
Works Director’s determination shall be heard by the Utility Commission.   

     930.17.7. 940.20.4. All water meters shall be and remain the property of the Department, and 
may be removed or replaced or changed as to size and type by the Department whenever deemed 
necessary. 

     930.17.8940.20.5.  Department employees delegated for that purpose shall have free access at 
reasonable hours of the day to all parts of every building and premises connected with the City 
water supply system for reading of meters and inspections.  The CommissionDepartment shall be 
authorized to make adjustments in water charges where in its opinion the amount billed shall be 
erroneous due to meter deficiency or other mistake. 

930.18     940.20.6. Temporary Meters.   For construction purposes or other applicable 
temporary uses that do not discharge into the public sewer system, the Department may issue 
permits for the use of a temporary meter for use on a City hydrant.  The rate for the rental of the 
temporary meter shall be set in the City’s Fee Schedule.   

     940.20.7 Irrigation Meters.  For water dedicated solely to supplying an inground irrigation 
system, an irrigation meter may be connected to separately measure water used for irrigation that 
will not otherwise go into the public sewer system.  An irrigation service line, the irrigation 
meter, and related appurtenances shall be installed in accordance with the same regulations, 
policies, and procedures that apply to non-irrigation meters. The cost for an irrigation meter shall 
be set in the City’s Fee Schedule.   

940.21  Water Meter Setting.  All water meters hereafter installed shall be in accordance with 
the following rules: 

     930.18940.21.1.  The service pipe from the stop and box to the meter, when the service pipe 
enters the building, shall be brought through the floor in a vertical position unless otherwise 
authorized by the CommissionDepartment.  The stop and waste valve shall be installed about 12 
inches above the floor. 

     930.18940.21.2.  The meter shall be located so that the bottom is from six to 12 inches above 
the finished floor line.  The meter shall be set not more than 12 inches measured horizontally 
from the inside line of the wall, unless an alternate method shall be approved by the 
CommissionDepartment.  A suitable bracket to support the meter in a proper vertical position 
and to prevent noise from vibration shall be provided. 



     930.18940.21.3.  All meter installations shall have a stop and waste valve on the street side of 
the meter.  In no case shall there be more than 12 inches of pipe exposed between the point of 
entrance through the floor and the stop and waste valve.  A stop and waste valve shall also be 
installed on the house side of the meter, and shall be within 12 inches of the meter. 

     930.18940.21.4.  The water pipe connecting with the stop and box shall not be run under any 
floor for a distance of more than two feet, measured from the inside of the wall, before being 
connected to the water meter, unless otherwise authorized by the CommissionDepartment. 

     930.18940.21.5.  All connections or devices for setting ¾-inch and one-inch meters shall be 
of copper pipe or tubing from the terminus of the service pipe up to and including the house side 
stop and waste valve. 

930.19940.22  Use of Fire Hydrants.  No person except the SuperintendentPublic Works 
Director or his or her agent authorized by the Commission or the Fire Department shall operate 
fire hydrants or interfere in any way with the City water system without first obtaining authority 
to do so from the Commission or its authorized agentDepartment. 

930.20940.23  Private Water Supplies.  No water pipe of the City water supply system shall be 
connected with any pump, well or tank that is connected with any other source of water supply 
and when such are found the CommissionDepartment shall notify the owner to disconnect the 
same, and if not done immediately, the water supply shall be turned off forthwith.  Before any 
new connection to the City's system shall be permitted, the Department shall ascertain that no 
cross connections shall exist when the new connection is made. 

930.21940.24  Use Confined to Premises.  No person shall permit water from the City's water 
supply system to be used for any purpose except upon his or her own premises, as described in 
his or her original water service application. 

930.22940.25  Connections Beyond City Boundaries.  In any and all cases where water mains 
of the City have been or shall be extended to or constructed in any road, street, alley or public 
highway adjacent to or outside the City limits, the CommissionDepartment shall be hereby 
authorized to issue permits to the owners or occupants of properties adjacent to or accessible to, 
the water mains to tap connections with the water mains of the City in conformity with and 
subject to all the terms, conditions and provisions of the ordinances of the City relating to the 
tapping of the City water mains and making water service pipe connections therewith, and to 
furnish and supply water from the water works system of the City to the owners and occupants of 
properties adjacent or accessible to the water mains of the City through and by means of water 
meters duly installed.  Water service rendered to such persons shall be subject to all provisions of 
this section, and persons accepting the service shall thereby agree to be bound and obligated by 
the section. 

930.23940.26  Restricted Hours for Sprinkling and Other Uses.  Whenever the Department 
shall determine that shortage of water supply threatens the City, it may give notice that the times 
and hours during which water from the City water supply system may be used for lawn and 
garden sprinkling, irrigation, car washing, air conditioning or other uses specified therein are 



limited, a copy of the notice shall be posted at city hall, public service announcements and the 
police and fire buildings.  Two days after the posting of the notice, any water customer who shall 
cause or permit water to be used in violation of the provisions of the notice shall be charged 
$50per the City fee schedule for each day of the violation, which charge shall be added to his or 
her next water bill.  Continued violation shall be hereby prohibited and shall be cause for 
discontinuance of water service. 

930.24 940.27 Private Wells.  Private wells may be maintained and continued in use after 
connection is made to the City water system provided there shall be no cross- connection 
between the private well and City water supply at any time. 

930.25940.28  Permitting Use by Others.  No person shall permit water from the City water 
supply system to be used for any purpose except upon his or her own premises except in 
emergency and then only if permission shall be first obtained from the 
CommissionDepartment.  Contractors or others desiring to obtain water from hydrants for 
construction purposes shall make written applications to the CommissionDepartment for the 
service. 

930.26940.29  Charges to be Set.  The CommissionCouncil shall establish, by resolution, all 
charges required pursuant to the provisions of this section, including but not necessarily limited 
to: 

     930.26940.29.1.  Service installation charges pursuant to 930.04940.07.1; 

     930.26940.29.2.  Charges for turning on water pursuant to 930.04940.07.2; 

     930.26940.29.3.  Assessments pursuant to 930940.05.2; 

     930.26940.29.4.  Water rates pursuant to 930940.07.1; 

     930.26940.29.5.  Testing charges pursuant to 930.17; 

     930.26.6.  Service charges for disconnection pursuant to 930.17940.18; and 

     930.26.7940.29.6.  WAC charges and water availability charge. 

Section 940950 - Fire Hydrants, Mains and Valves 

940950.01  Unauthorized Use. It shall be unlawful for any unauthorized person to open or shut 
any service cock or fire hydrant or remove or unscrew, wholly or partially, the cap from such fire 
hydrant. 

940950.02  Tampering and Damage. It shall be unlawful for any unauthorized person to 
modify, tamper with or damage any valve, main, fire hydrant or any other part of the City water 
system. 

javascript:void(0


Section 950960 - Street Lighting and Traffic Signal Utility 

950960.01  Purpose and Intent. The purpose and intent of this section is to establish a street 
lighting and traffic signal system (“Utility”) in order to help protect the health, safety, and 
welfare of the City's citizens, visitors and the general public by providing for the construction 
and maintenance of facilities to cast light on to municipal streets so as to promote safe travel for 
vehicles and pedestrians and providing for the construction and maintenance of traffic signals to 
control traffic flow at certain intersections. The Utility created hereby is not intended to provide 
security lighting for private parties. 

(Ord. 2003-04, passed 7-7-03) 

950960.02  Creation of Utility. The street lights and traffic signals owned or to be owned by the 
City are declared to be and constitute a public utility of the City, to be known as the Street 
Lighting and Traffic Signal Utility, herein after referred to as (“Utility”). The properties of the 
Utility shall include all systems, works, instrumentalities, equipment, materials, supplies, lights, 
poles, wires, cables, conduits and all other parts and appurtenances of the foregoing which are 
useful or used in connection with the operation and maintenance of street lights and traffic 
signals. The Utility shall at all times be under the management and control of the City Council. 

(Ord. 2003-04, passed 7-7-03) 

950960.03  Creation of Fund. There is hereby created a Street Lighting and Traffic Signal 
Utility Fund herein (“Fund”), into which all charges and monies collected under Ordinance No. 
2003-03 will be deposited. The Fund shall at all times be under the management and control of 
the City Council. 

(Ord. 2003-04, passed 7-7-03) 

950960.04  Costs. The cost of installation of street lights and traffic signals on existing streets 
shall be the responsibility of the City. The cost of installation of street lights and traffic signals in 
new subdivisions shall be the responsibility of the developer of a new subdivision. The developer 
of such new subdivision shall also be responsible for the operation and maintenance costs of 
street lights until the roads and lighting systems within the development are accepted by the City. 
The Fund will be used to pay for expenses of installation that are the responsibility of the City, 
and to pay for maintenance and operation of the street lights and traffic signals owned or 
accepted by the City. 

(Ord. 2003-04, passed 7-7-03) 

950960.05  Determination of Installation Sites. Street lights and traffic signals shall only be 
installed by the City where two or more public streets join or cross. The determination of the 
order of installation of street lights and traffic lights shall be at the discretion of the City Council. 
The installation sites for street lights and traffic signals shall be determined by the City Council. 

(Ord. 2003-04, passed 7-7-03) 

javascript:void(0


950960.06  City Liability. The City shall not be liable for injury or damage to persons or 
property caused by any decision made by the City Council pursuant to this section relating to the 
installation or non-installation of street lights or traffic signals, any failure of any street light or 
traffic signals or any other matter relating to the street lights or traffic signals under the control 
of the Utility. 

960.07  Tampering.  No person shall maliciously, willfully, or negligently break, damage, 
destroy, uncover, deface, or tamper with any structure, appurtenance, or equipment which is part 
of the Utility.   

960.08  Access.  The Public Works Director or any other duly authorized employee of the City 
bearing proper credentials and identification, shall to the fullest extent of the law, be permitted to 
enter all properties for the purposes of inspection, observation, measurement,  

(Ord. 2003-04, passed 7-7-03) 

Section 960970 – Locating Sewer and Water Laterals 

960970.01 Definitions. 

     960970.01.1  Scope.  The terms used in this section have the meanings given them.  

     960970.01.2.  "Locate" means an operator's markings of an underground facility. 

     960970.01.3.  "Meet," when used as a noun in this section, refers to a meeting at the site of 
proposed excavation requested at the time of notice by the excavator with all affected 
underground facility operators to further clarify the precise geographic location of excavating, 
schedule locating, propose future contacts, and share other information concerning the 
excavating and facilities. 

     960970.01.4.  "Public right-of-way" means the area on, below, or above a public roadway, 
highway, street, cart way, bicycle lane, and sidewalk in which a government unit has an interest, 
including rights-of-way dedicated for travel purposes and utility easements of government units. 

     960970.01.5.  "Service lateral" means an underground facility that is used to transmit, 
distribute, or furnish gas, electricity, communications, or water from a common source to an end-
use customer. A service lateral is also an underground facility that is used in the removal of 
wastewater from a premises. 

     960970.01.6.  "Locating wire" shall mean: 

          960970.01.6.1.  For a sanitary sewer lateral installed by open trench a green jacketed direct 
burial #12 AWG steel core high strength tracer wire. 

          960970.01.6.2.  For a sanitary sewer installed by directional boring a green jacketed direct 
burial #12 AWG solid steel core extra high strength horizontal directional drill tracer wire. 

javascript:void(0


          960970.01.6.3.  For a water lateral installed by open trench a blue jacketed direct burial 
#12 AWG steel core high strength tracer wire. 

          960970.01.6.4.  For a water lateral installed by directional boring a blue jacketed direct 
burial #12 AWG solid steel core extra high strength horizontal directional drill tracer wire. 

(Ord. 2005-16, passed 1-9-06) 

960970.02  Public Right-of-Way Mapping and Installation. 

     960970.02.1 Duty of City to Map.  After December 31, 2005, the City shall maintain a map, 
a diagram or drawing, or geospatial information regarding the location of any service lateral 
within a public right-of- way installed after that date. 

     960970.02.2 Duty to Install Locating Wire.  After December 31, 2005, the City shall install 
a locating wire or have an equally effective means of marking the location of each 
nonconductive service lateral within a public right-of-way installed after that date. This 
requirement does not apply when making minor repairs to an existing nonconductive facility. As 
applied to this chapter, "minor repairs" means repairs to or partial replacement of portions of 
existing service laterals located within a public right-of-way for purposes of routine maintenance 
and upkeep. 

(Ord. 2005-16, passed 1-9-06) 

960970.03  Locating a Service Lateral. 

     960970.03.1  Location of Service Laterals.  After December 31, 2005 the City shall locate 
that portion of a service lateral within a public right-of-way installed after that date up to the 
point where the service lateral first leaves the public right-of-way. 

     960970.03.2  Exception.  The City is not required to locate a service lateral of a person who 
currently participates in the statewide notification system, provided the person and City mutually 
agree that the person will assume locate responsibilities. The agreement must be in writing. 

     960970.03.3  Pre-Existing Service Laterals.  City shall advise that there is no information 
readily available for the locate of any service laterals installed prior to December 31, 2005 unless 
the information required to be maintained with respect to such service laterals after December 
31, 2005 is available to the City for the service lateral to be located. 

(Ord. 2005-16, passed 1-9-06) 

960970.04 Private Service Laterals. 

     960970.04.1  Locating Wire Required.  After December 31, 2005 the owner of any property 
upon which a water or sanitary sewer lateral is installed shall install a locating wire that marks 



the location of each underground non-conductive lateral from the connection to the public sewer 
main or public water main, as the case may be, to the building served by such lateral. 

     960970.04.2  Map Required.  After December 31, 2005 the owner of any property upon 
which a water or sanitary sewer lateral is installed shall provide the City upon complete of the 
installation of such lateral with a map on paper and electronically in auto-cad format showing the 
location or each such lateral installed on the property of such owner. 

(Ord. 2005-16, passed 1-9-06) 

960970.05  Rules Governing Connections to City Water and Sewermains. 

     960970.05.1  City To Be Present.  No connections to a City water main or a City sewer main 
shall be made unless an employee of the City Utilities Department is present at the time such 
connection is made. 

     960970.05.2  Conductivity Established.  No connection to the City water main or City sewer 
main shall be made until the conductivity of the City sewer main or City water main, as the case 
may be, and the proposed lateral is determined by the owner and City. 

(Ord. 2005-16, passed 1-9-06) 

960970.06  Trenchless Installations.  The following rules shall apply to trenchless installations 
within the City: 

     960970.06.1.  An excavation permit shall be required prior to the start of construction. 

     960970.06.2.  The excavation must pothole or open cut when crossing all sewer and water 
laterals. 

     960970.06.3.  Trenchless excavations more than four feet below grade are prohibited without 
a specific permit to do so being obtained from the City. 

     960970.06.4.  Trenchless excavations shall comply with all requirements set forth in M.S. 
Chapter 2160 and Minnesota Rules Chapter 7560. 

(Ord. 2005-16, passed 1-9-06) 

960970.07 Compliance. 

     960970.07.1  Evidence of Compliance Provided.  Owners or their contractors shall submit 
to the City Utilities Department evidence satisfactory to the City Utilities Department of 
compliance with the provisions of 960970.04, 960970.05 and 960970.06. 

     960970.07.2  Penalty.  A failure by any owner or contractor to provide prompt and accurate 
information on the location of service laterals or a failure to comply with the provisions of 



960970.04, 960970.05 and 960970.06 may result in the revocation of any permit issued for the 
work or constitute the basis for refusal to issue permits to such person or his, her or its 
subcontractors for future work. 

(Ord. 2005-16, passed 1-9-06) 

Section 970980 – Fats, Oils and Grease 
 

970.01 980.01 Purpose.  The purpose of this Section 970980 is to establish standards for the 
reduction of FOG discharged to the City Sewer System. 
 

 Food service facilities (which are referred to as FSFs or FOG Generating Facilities in this Section 
970980) are the primary source of FOG entering the City Sewer System.  This Section 970980 
requires FOG generating facilities take certain steps to minimize the amount of FOG that enters 
the City Sewer System.  

 This Section 970980 provides for the enforcement of the terms and provisions of this Section 
970980 and specifies penalties of various types including sewer service surcharges for non-
compliance with its terms. This Section 970980 is intended to protect the health, welfare and safety 
of the public and the environment by requiring the reduction of FOG entering the City Sewer 
System. 
970 
980.02  Definitions. 

The following words and phrases when used in this Section 970980 shall have the meanings given 
to them in this Section 970980.02 unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

970.02.01980.02.01 “Best Management Practices or BMPs” means management 
practices that offer the most effective and practicable means to prevent or reduce the introduction 
of FOG to the City Sewer System. FOG BMPs are set forth in the FOG Manual. 

970.02.02980.02.02 “Building Official” means the individual appointed by the City 
Council to act as the City’s Building Official. 

970.02.03980.02.03 “Captured Material” means the material removed from Grease Traps 
and/or Grease Interceptors as a result of maintenance performed pursuant to the terms of this 
Section 970980. 

970.02.04980.02.04  “City” means the City of Hermantown, St. Louis County, 
Minnesota. 

970.02.05980.02.05 “City Council” means the City Council of the City of Hermantown. 

970.02.06980.02.06  “City Sewer System” means the City of Hermantown waste water 
collection and transport system and stormwater collection and transport system.  

Formatted: Tab stops:  0.63", Left + Not at  0.58"

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

javascript:void(0


970.02.07980.02.07  “FOG” means material, either liquid or solid, composed primarily 
of fat, oil or grease from animal, vegetable or mineral sources.   

970.02.08980.02.08 “FOG Generating Facility” means a User of City Sewer System that 
generates or potentially generate FOG that can be discharged to the City Sewer System.   

970.02.09980.02.09 “FOG Manual” means the most recent Fats, Oils and Grease Control 
Manual that has been approved by resolution by the City Council. 

970.02.10980.02.10 “FOG Prevention Plan Certificate” means a certificate issued by the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director for existing FOG Generating Facilities or issued by the 
Building Official for FOG Generating Facilities that are new construction or remodeled indicating 
that the FOG Prevention Plan for a FOG Generating Facility has been reviewed and approved.  

970.02.11980.02.11  “FSF” means a food service facility of any kind and includes the 
following types of establishments: full service restaurants, fast food restaurants, delicatessens, 
cafeterias, school cafeterias, church kitchens, hospitals and medical facilities, boarding houses, 
clubhouses, adult daycare facilities, assisted living facilities, convalescent homes, meat 
distributors and processing facilities, food processing facilities, grocery stores with food 
preparation/service areas, bakeries, caterers and or other similar types of operations with 
commercial kitchen equipment. 

970.02.12980.02.12  “Grease Interceptor” means a device designed to remove FOG other 
than a Grease Trap. 

970.02.13980.02.13  “Grease trap” means a device designed to remove FOG located 
within the kitchen of a FOG generating facility. 

970.02.14980.02.14 “Landowner” means the person identified as the taxpayer on the 
most recent real estate tax statement for the real estate upon which a FOG Generating Facility is 
located.  

970.02.15980.02.15  “Maintenance Records” means a written report of any and all 
maintenance activities preformed on any Grease Interceptor or Grease Trap. 

970.02.16980.02.16 “New Construction” means a FOG Generating Facility that applies 
for a building permit for the construction of a new FOG Generating Facility or that applies for a 
building permit to convert an existing building to a FOG Generating Facility.  

970.02.17980.02.17  “Person” means any individual, firm, company, association, society, 
corporation (municipal or otherwise) or other legal entity. 

980.02.18 “Public Works Director” means the official of the City who is authorized to 
enforce this section, or his/her authorized deputy, agent or representative. 

970.02.18980.02.19  “Remodeling” means a physical change or operational change to a 
FOG Generating Facility that involves any one or combination of the following:  (1) any change 
in plumbing in the food processing area, (2) a 30% increase in the net public seating area, (3) a 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering



30% increase in the size of the kitchen area, or (4) any change in the size or type of food preparation 
equipment. 

970.02.19980.02.20 “Stop Work Order” means an order that is issued by the Building 
Official which requires that all construction activity on a site be stopped. 

980.02.20  “Superintendent” means the official of the City who is authorized to enforce 
this section, or his/her authorized deputy, agent or representative. 

970.02.21980.02.21  “User” means any person who/which discharges wastewater to the 
City Sewer System. 

970.02.22980.02.22  “WLSSD” means the Western Lake Superior Sanitary District, a 
public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota established by Chapter 478, 
Laws of Minnesota, 1971, now codified as M.S. Chapter 458D. 

 
970.03980.03 Relationship to Other Laws, Ordinances and Private Agreements. 

 
970.03.01980.03.01 Compatibility with Other Laws and Ordinances.  This Section 

970980 is not intended to interfere with, abrogate, or annul any other ordinance, rule or regulation, 
statute, or other provision of law.  The requirements of this Section 970980 should be considered 
minimum requirements, and where any provision of this Section 970980 imposes restrictions 
different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule or regulation, or other provision of law, 
whichever provisions impose higher protective standards for human health, safety or general 
welfare or the environment shall be considered to take precedence. 

 
970.03.02980.03.02 Private Agreements.  This Section 970980 is not intended to 

revoke, repeal or modify any easement, covenant, or other private agreement.  The existence of 
any private agreement, easement or covenant does not preclude the application of the provisions 
of this Section 970980. 

 
970.04980.04 Severability. If the provisions of any article, section, subsection, paragraph, 
subdivision or clause of this section shall be judged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction 
such order or judgment shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any article, section, 
subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this section. 
 
970.05980.05 Minimum Requirements.   
 

970.05.01980.05.01 All FOG Generating Facilities must implement a FOG control 
program that includes the BMPs contained in Chapter 3 of the FOG Manual. FOG Generating 
Facilities that are in existence on the initial effective date of this Section 970980 must implement 
the FOG control program on or before April 1, 2012. FOG Generating Facilities that include a 
newly constructed FOG Generating Facility or a remodeled FOG Generating Facility must comply 
with the provision of Section 970980.06 before a building permit for the new construction or 
remodeling is issued by the Building Official.  

 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  1", Tab stops: Not
at  0.63"

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Tab stops: Not
at  1"

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering



970.05.02980.05.02 All FOG Generating Facilities are subject to the inspection 
provisions contained in this Section 970980. 
 
970.06980.06 FOG Prevention Plan.  
 

970.06.01980.06.01 New Construction:  A FOG Prevention Plan shall be provided to 
the Building Official with the User’s application for a building permit for the new construction of 
a FOG Generating Facility. No building permit application for new construction of a FOG 
Generating Facility will be considered until the required FOG Prevention Plan is submitted and 
approved by the Building Official. 

970.06.02980.06.02 Remodeling.  A FOG Prevention Plan shall be provided to the 
Building Official with the User’s application for a building permit for the remodeling of a FOG 
Generating Facility. No building permit application for remodeling will be considered until the 
required FOG Prevention Plan is submitted and approved by the Building Official. 

970.06.03980.06.03 Existing FOG Generating Facilities. A FOG Prevention Plan must 
be prepared and be submitted to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director as follows: 

970.06.03.1980.06.03.1 If the SuperintendentPublic Works Director, 
determines the discharge of FOG from the FOG Generating Facility has or is creating 
restrictions in the City Sewer System or is causing additional City Sewer System 
maintenance costs.  

970.06.03.2980.06.03.2 The SuperintendentPublic Works Director shall make 
his/her determination to require a User to prepare and submit a FOG Prevention Plan based 
on information obtained by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director from maintenance 
and repairs of the City Sewer System, compliance inspections performed pursuant to this 
Section 970980 or other relevant information available to Superintendentthe Public Works 
Director.  

970.06.03.3980.06.03.3 The User of and the existing FOG generating facility 
will have 30 days from the date of notice from the SuperintendentPublic Works Director 
to submit a FOG Prevention Plan to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director pursuant to 
this Section 970980.06.03. 

 
970.07980.07 FOG Prevention Plan.  A FOG Prevention Plan must be prepared and be certified 
by a licensed plumber. The FOG Prevention Plan shall incorporate measures sufficient to meet the 
requirements of this Section. 

970.07.01980.07.01 The wastewater from the FOG Generating Facility shall not violate 
the provisions of Section 920930.06.4.3 of the Hermantown City Code. 

970.07.02980.07.02 The plumbing installation specified by the FOG Prevention Plan 
shall meet the requirements of the State Plumbing Code and State Building Code. 

970.07.03980.07.03 The FOG Prevention Plan will include drawings to a scale sufficient 
to show details required by the plumbing and building codes.  Plans will show the location, size 

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough



and type of Grease Interceptors and/or Grease Traps in relation to sinks, drains, outside walls and 
building sewers.  

970.07.04980.07.04 The FOG Prevention Plan will show the location, size and type of 
clean out facilities for Grease Interceptors and/or Grease Traps. 

970.07.05980.07.05 The FOG Prevention Plan will identify how the BMPs will be 
incorporated in User’s operation.  

970.07.06980.07.06 The FOG Prevention Plan shall require that Grease Interceptors 
and/or Grease Traps be installed in the waste/drain line leading from the sink drains or other 
fixtures where grease may be introduced.  

970.07.07980.07.07 The FOG Prevention Plan must provide the procedures that the User 
will follow to maintain records for all Grease Interceptor and/or Grease Trap cleaning and 
maintenance activities in a format approved by the City and that such record will be available for 
inspection.   

970.07.08980.07.08 The FOG Prevention Plan shall specify that the format for the 
maintenance records will be as prescribed by the City in the FOG Control Manual.  The FOG 
Prevention Plan must require that the User of the FOG interceptor mail a copy of the annual report 
of maintenance activities to the Hermantown Utility Billing Department no later than February 1 
of any year, for the preceding year’s maintenance activities. 

970.07.09980.07.09 The FOG Prevention Plan must contain a schedule that provides for 
the regular cleaning and maintenance of the Grease Interceptors and/or Grease Traps and a 
procedure for the disposal of Captured Material. 

970.07.10980.07.10 The FOG Prevention Plan shall specify that the User must maintain 
records of the dates and means of disposal of Captured Material and that any removal and hauling 
of the Captured Material not performed by the User’s personnel must be performed in compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations by a licensed waste disposal contractor. 

970.07.11980.07.11 The FOG Prevention Plan for existing FOG Generating Facilities 
shall contain a time table for the implementation of the various parts of the FOG Implementation 
Plan.  

970.07.12980.07.12 The FOG Prevention Plan shall provide an estimate of the costs of 
implementation of the FOG Prevention Plan and the User shall specify the type of security that it 
will provide to secure its performance under the FOG Prevention Plan.  

970.07.13980.07.13 The User shall, along with the FOG Prevention Plan, file with the 
City a bond, letter of credit or other surety to insure compliance with the approved FOG Prevention 
Plan. The amount of the surety shall be equal to the estimated cost of implementing the entire FOG 
Prevention Plan, from beginning to end (including cost of materials, installation, inspection and 
maintenance), plus 25%. The form of such surety shall be subject to approval by the City Attorney. 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough



970.07.13.1980.07.13.1 No security will be released until a final inspection 
has been conducted and the SuperintendentPublic Works Director confirms in writing that 
the FOG Prevention Plan is fully implemented. 

 

970.07.14980.07.14 The FOG Prevention Plan must include a signed statement that the 
User and Landowner will conduct its activities in accordance with the FOG Prevention Plan.  

970.07.15980.07.15 A non-refundable review fee in amount determined from 
time-to-time by the City Council shall be submitted with the FOG Prevention Plan. 

 
970.08980.08 Review of FOG Prevention Plan.   

 
970.08.01980.08.01 Within 15 days of the receipt of a FOG Prevention Plan, the Building 

Official (in the case of a newly constructed or remodeled FOG Generating Facility) or 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director (in the case of an existing FOG Generating Facility) shall 
determine whether the FOG Prevention Plan is complete. 
 

970.08.01.1980.08.01.1 If a FOG Prevention Plan is incomplete, the Building 
Official or SuperintendentPublic Works Director shall notify the User in writing what is 
required to make the FOG Prevention Plan complete, and a deadline shall be provided.  The 
FOG Prevention Plan shall not be considered complete until the day all required materials 
are received. 

 
970.08.01.2980.08.01.2 Complete FOG Prevention Plans shall be reviewed by 

the Building Official or SuperintendentPublic Works Director and shall be approved or 
disapproved within 60 days of the receipt of the complete FOG Prevention Plan. 

 
970.08.01.2.1980.08.01.2.1 If a FOG Prevention Plan is approved, 

a FOG Prevention Plan Certificate shall be issued to the User by the 
Building Official or SuperintendentPublic Works Director. 

 
970.08.01.2.2980.08.01.2.2 If a FOG Prevention Plan is 

disapproved, the Building Official or SuperintendentPublic Works Director 
shall notify the User in writing, stating the reasons why the FOG Prevention 
Plan was not approved. 

 
970.08.01.2.3980.08.01.2.3 If FOG Prevention Plan is 

disapproved, the User may submit a revised FOG Prevention Plan for 
review and approval.  The Building Official or SuperintendentPublic Works 
Director shall have 60 days from the date the revised FOG Prevention Plan 
is received to approve or disapprove the FOG Prevention Plan. 

 
970.08.01.2.4980.08.01.2.4 No building permit will be issued for 

new construction or remodeling until a FOG Prevention Plan is approved. 
A User shall be in violation of the provisions of this Section 970980 if a 
FOG Prevention Plan for an existing FOG Generating Facility is not 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering



approved within ninety (90) days of the date a notice is provided to a User 
pursuant to Section 970980.06.03. 

 
970.09980.09 Modification of Plans.  An approved FOG Prevention Plan may be modified upon 
submission of a written request for modification to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director, and 
after written approval by the Superintendent.Public Works Director.  In reviewing the modification 
request, the SuperintendentPublic Works Director may require additional reports and data. The 
modified plan should include all of the information listed in Section 970980.07. 
 
970.10980.10 Certification.  Written certification by the User’s licensed plumber shall be 
submitted to the SuperintendentPublic Works Director or Building Official (whoever issued the 
FOG Prevention Plan Certificate) after the plumbing installed required by the approved FOG 
Prevention Plan has been installed, affirming that construction has been completed in accordance 
with the approved FOG Prevention Plan and other applicable provisions of this section.   
 
970.11980.11 Compliance Inspections. 
 

970.11.01980.11.01 The SuperintendentPublic Works Director will perform periodic 
scheduled and/or random inspections of FOG Generating Facilities to determine compliance with 
the applicable FOG Prevention Plan or to determine whether a FOG Prevention Plan shall be 
required for an existing FOG Generating Facility. Records of the City’s inspections shall be 
maintained by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director.   

970.11.02980.11.02 The SuperintendentPublic Works Director may at all reasonable 
hours, enter any FOG Generating Facility for the purpose of inspecting connections to the City 
Sewer System, plumbing, Grease Interceptors and/or Grease Traps and appurtenances to assure 
compliance with this Section 970980 or other applicable laws, regulations and ordinances. 

970.11.03980.11.03 The SuperintendentPublic Works Director will inspect each FOG 
Generating Facility for compliance with requirements of its approved FOG Prevention Plan, for 
requirements regarding maintenance of Grease Interceptors and/or Grease Traps, for compliance 
regarding disposal of Captured Material and for implementation of the BMPs contained in the 
FOG Prevention Plan. 

970.11.04980.11.04 All FOG compliance inspections will be made pursuant to a checklist 
and the SuperintendentPublic Works Director will share the checklist with the User and identify a 
time and date for a follow-up inspection if necessary.    
 
970.12980.12 Action Upon Noncompliance. 

 
970.12.01980.12.01 Notice of Violation. In the event a FOG Generating Facility does 

not comply with the requirements of this Section 970980 or to an approved FOG Prevention Plan 
or to any instructions of the SuperintendentPublic Works Director, compliance may be ordered by 
written notice of violation to the User and/or to the Landowner. Failure to address a notice of 
violation in a timely manner may result in civil, criminal or monetary penalties in accordance with 
the enforcement measures authorized in this section. In the case of work for which there is a permit, 
the notice of violation shall be mailed by first class mail, postage pre-paid, to the address listed by 

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering



the permittee on the permit. In the case of work for which there is no permit, the notice of violation 
shall be mailed to the person(s) listed as the taxpayer and/or Landowner by the records of the St. 
Louis County Auditor and the User if the User is a different person than the Landowner. After a 
notice of violation is given, the Landowner, User, permittee or his or her contractor shall be 
required to make the corrections within the time period determined by the Superintendent.Public 
Works Director. If an imminent hazard exists, the SuperintendentPublic Works Director may 
require that the corrective work begin immediately. The notice of violation shall contain: 

970.12.01.1980.12.01.1 The name and address of the Landowner and/or the 
User/violator; 

970.12.01.2980.12.01.2 The address when available or a description of the 
building, structure or land upon which the violation is occurring; 

970.12.01.3980.12.01.3 A statement specifying the nature of the violation; 

970.12.01.4980.12.01.4 A description of the remedial measures necessary to 
achieve compliance with this section and a deadline for the completion of such remedial 
action; 

970.12.01.5980.12.01.5 A statement advising that, should the violation not be 
remedied or restored within the established deadline, the work may be done by the City or 
a contractor, and the expense thereof shall be charged to the land, Landowner and/or 
violator; and 

970.12.01.6980.12.01.6 A statement of the penalty or penalties that shall or 
may be imposed against the person to whom the notice of violation is directed or against 
the land upon which the violation is originating or occurring. 

970.12.02980.12.02 Stop Work Order. The Building Official may issue a stop work 
order for the entire project or any specified part thereof when an imminent hazard exists and/or for 
failure to comply with the requirements set forth in a notice of violation. Upon issuance of a stop 
work order, all work must stop immediately except that work which is required to attain 
compliance with Section 970980. A stop work order shall remain in effect until the Building 
Official confirms that the violation has been satisfactorily addressed and that the work is in 
accordance with the FOG Prevention Plan. 

970.12.02.1980.12.02.1 For the purposes of this section, a stop work order is 
validly posted by posting a copy of the stop work order on the site of the project in 
reasonable proximity to a location where the FOG Prevention Plan work is taking place. 
Additionally, a copy of the order, in the case of work for which there is a permit, shall be 
mailed by first class mail, postage pre-paid, to the address listed by the permittee on the 
permit. In the case of work for which there is no permit, a copy of the order shall be mailed 
to the person(s) listed as the taxpayer and/or Landowner by the records of the St. Louis 
County Auditor. 

970.12.03980.12.03 Enforcement Measures.  If a violation has not been corrected 
pursuant to the requirements set forth in the notice of violation and/or stop work order, then 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough



representatives of the City may take any and all measures necessary to abate the violation and/or 
cause compliance within this Section 970980 or the FOG Prevention Plan. It shall be unlawful for 
any person, Landowner, agent or person in possession of any land to refuse to allow the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director or Building Official to enter upon the land for the purposes 
set forth above. The remedies available to the City shall include: 

970.12.03.1980.12.03.1 Criminal prosecution; 

970.12.03.2980.12.03.2 Injunctive relief pursuant to Section 970980.12.05; 

970.12.03.3980.12.03.3 Collection of administrative and remediation costs, 
including attorney's fees, court costs, labor, use of equipment, sampling and monitoring 
costs and other expenses associated with enforcement of this section; 

970.12.03.4980.12.03.4 Imposition of costs of abatement pursuant to Section 
970980.12.04; 

970.12.03.5980.12.03.5 Immediate revocation of and/or suspension of the 
processing of any and all City permits for which the Landowner or violator has applied, 
even if the permits are not connected to the land where the violation is occurring; 

970.12.03.6980.12.03.6 Suspension of City sewer and water services at the 
property where the violation is occurring; 

970.12.03.7980.12.03.7 Withholding of the certificate of occupancy for the 
property where the violation is occurring; and 

970.12.03.8980.12.03.8 Taking whatever other action is necessary and 
appropriate to obtain compliance with the terms of this Section 970980. 

970.12.04980.12.04 Abatement of Violation.  If a violation continues for ten days 
beyond the deadline set forth in the notice of violation and/or stop work order, the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director may issue a notice of intent to the Landowner and/or violator 
of the City's intent to perform work necessary to comply with Section 970980. The City may go 
on the site and commence work 14 days after issuing the notice of intent. After abatement of the 
violation, the Landowner and/or violator will be notified of the cost of abatement, including 
attorney's fees and administrative costs. The Landowner and/or violator may file a written protest 
objecting to the amount of the amount charged for such work within ten calendar days with the 
City Clerk. The costs incurred by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director to perform the 
abatement work shall be paid by the Landowner out of the security referenced in Section 
970980.07.13, to the extent that the amount is covered thereby, with the remainder being directly 
due and owing to the City by the Landowner and/or violator. In the event no permit was issued or 
no security was posted, the cost, plus interest at the rate authorized by the SuperintendentPublic 
Works Director, plus a reasonable administrative fee shall be billed to the Landowner and/or 
violator. If in any event the amount due is not paid by the deadline set forth by the decision of the 
City Council, then the City Clerk shall enter the amount due on the tax roll as a charge for utility 
service against the property using the procedures contained in applicable City codes and state law 
or may collect such amount in whatever manner is allowed or permitted by law. 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough



970.12.05980.12.05 Injunctive Relief. It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any 
provision or fail to comply with a notice of violation, a stop work order or any requirement of this 
Section 970980. If a person has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this section, the 
City may petition for a preliminary or permanent injunction restraining the person from activities 
which would create further violations or compelling the person to perform abatement or 
remediation of the violation. 

970.12.06980.12.06 Violations Deemed a Public Nuisance. In addition to the 
enforcement processes and penalties provided, any condition caused or permitted to exist in 
violation of any of the provisions of this section is a threat to public health, safety and welfare, and 
is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be summarily abated or restored at the violator's 
and/or Landowner's expense, and/or a civil action to abate, enjoin or otherwise compel the 
cessation of such nuisance may be taken. 

970.12.07980.12.07 Criminal Prosecution.  Any person, firm, corporation or agency 
acting as principal, agent, employee or otherwise, who fails to comply with the provisions of 
Section 970980 shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. Each day there is a violation of any part of 
Section 970980 shall constitute a separate offense. 

970.12.08980.12.08 Remedies Not Exclusive. The remedies listed in this section are not 
exclusive of any other remedies available under any applicable federal, state or local law and it is 
within the discretion of the City of Hermantown to seek cumulative remedies. 
 
970.13980.13 Charges for Remedial Maintenance or Repair of City Sewer System.  
 

970.13.01980.13.01 In the event that the Landowner or User of an FOG Generating 
Facility or the Landowner or User of any structure in which a FOG Generating Facility is located 
is found to have contributed to the partial or complete obstruction of a City Sewer System resulting 
from the discharge of wastewater or waste containing FOG and that the City is required to act 
immediately to control a public health hazard because of such blockage, such Landowner or User 
shall be required to reimburse the City for all costs of abating such condition.    

 
970.13.02980.13.02 In situations where there are multiple persons identified as 

contributing to FOG that causes an obstruction referenced in Section 970980.13.01, the 
SuperintendentPublic Works Director will apportion the cost of the cleanup, maintenance or repair 
costs on a prorated basis, based on each Landowner’s or User’s percentage share of the average 
total sanitary sewer charges for all such owners.  Further, should inspection, testing or other 
sampling activity by the SuperintendentPublic Works Director confirm that any User or 
Landowner is contributing excessive FOG (including other harmful ingredients) and is causing the 
repair or extraordinary maintenance activity to maintain the integrity of the City Sewer System, 
the SuperintendentPublic Works Director may require a FOG Prevention Plan be prepared and 
submitted or if anyone is in place to be modified to provide a solution to the problem. 

970.13.03980.13.03 The costs for curing any private sewer lateral failures, including 
cleaning and other maintenance, caused in whole or in part by FOG introduced into the City Sewer 
System by any FOG Generating Facility, alone or in conjunction with any other party are the 
responsibility of the Landowner or User of the FOG Generating Facility and the Landowner or 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering



User of any structure in which the FOG Generating Facility contributing the FOG to the City Sewer 
System is located. 
 
970.14980.14 Sewer Service Surcharges for Failure to Implement BMPs 
 

970.14.01980.14.01 For failing to implement an employee training program as required 
by the BMPs a monthly sewer service surcharge in an amount set forth from time to time by 
resolution of the City Council will be imposed until compliance is documented. 

970.14.02980.14.02 For failing to implement BMPs for dish washing procedures a 
monthly sewer service surcharge in an amount set forth from time to time by resolution of the City 
Council will be imposed until compliance is documented. 

970.14.03980.14.03 For failing to implement BMPs for interceptor or grease trap 
maintenance a monthly sewer service surcharge in an amount set forth from time to time by 
resolution of the City Council will be imposed until compliance is documented. 

970.14.04980.14.04 For failing to implement BMPs for exhaust system cleaning and 
maintenance a monthly sewer service surcharge in an amount set forth from time to time by 
resolution of the City Council will be imposed until compliance is documented. 

970.14.05980.14.05 For failing to implement BMPs related to dish washing hot water 
temperatures in excess of 140 degrees F a monthly sewer service surcharge in an amount set forth 
from time to time by resolution of the City Council will be imposed until compliance is 
documented. 

970.14.06980.14.06 For refusing to allow access to Superintendentthe Public Works 
Director a monthly sewer service surcharge in an amount set forth from time to time by resolution 
of the City Council will be imposed until access is granted. 

970.14.07980.14.07 For improper outside storage of collected FOG a monthly sewer 
service surcharge in an amount set forth from time to time by resolution of the City Council will 
be imposed until compliance is achieved. 

 
970.14.08980.14.08 For failing to implement any other FOG BMPs a monthly sewer 

service surcharge in an amount set forth from time to time by resolution of the City Council will 
be imposed until compliance is achieved. 
 
970.15980.15 Records Retention 
 

970.15.01980.15.01 Records required to be maintained under this Section shall be 
retained for a minimum of seven years from the date of creation of the record. Records include 
written, photographic, recorded, electronic, or stored data of any kind. 
 
970.16980.16 User/Landowner Responsibility.   The Landowner and/or User, his or her agent, 
contractors and employees shall conduct the operation of a FOG Generating Facility in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 970980 and the approved FOG Prevention Plan at all times. The 

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering



design, testing, installation and maintenance of a FOG Generating Facility shall adhere at all times 
to the standards and specifications contained in the approved FOG Prevention Plan. 
 
970.16.01980.16.01 A copy of the approved FOG Prevention Plan, maintenance record and 
inspection records shall be on-site and available for inspection during all working hours. 

(Ord. 2011-06, passed 09-19-11) 

 

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt



Ordinance No. 2021-06 
 
The City Council of the City of Hermantown does ordain: 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 230.02, UTILITY COMMISSION, 
OF THE HERMANTOWN CITY CODE 

 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent. The purpose and intent of this ordinance is to amend the 

duties of the Utility Commission to include additional duties. 
 
Section 2. Amendment to Section 230.02.8. Section 230.02.8 is hereby amended to read 

as shown: 
 

“230.02.8 Jurisdiction and Duties. The Commission shall have the 
following jurisdiction and duties: 

 
230.02.8.1. To consider and make recommendations to the City 

Council with respect to improvements to be constructed and financed pursuant to 
M.S. Chapter 429, as it may be amended from time to time; 

 
230.02.8.2. To monitor the public utilities provided by the city; and 

 
230.02.8.3. To monitor the performance of the current companies, 

holding franchises for the conduct of business in the City or “companies” herein, 
under the cable television, electric, and gas franchises granted by the city. 

 
230.02.8.4. The Commission shall submit an annual report to the 

City Council assessing the companies performance according to the terms of 
franchise applicable to it and make recommendations to the City Council regarding 
the need for any modification to the applicable franchises. 

 
230.02.8.4. To hear and decide appeals under Chapter 9 of the 

Hermantown City Code of Ordinances; and 
 

230.02.8.5. To perform such other functions as may by resolution of 
the City Council be delegated to it.” 
 
Section 3. Amended and Inserted in the Code. After the amendment made by this ordinance 

becomes effective, it shall be inserted in the appropriate place in the Hermantown City Code. 
 
Section 4. Effective Date. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be effective after adoption 

and immediately upon publication once in the official newspaper of the City of Hermantown. 
  



 
Dated the ________ day of ________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________ 
         Mayor 
ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted: ______________________ 
 
Published: _____________________ 
 
Effective Date: __________________ 
 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-89 
August 2, 2021  Agenda Item: 12-A 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator 

DATE: July 28, 2021 
 

Meeting Date:  8/2/21 

SUBJECT: Session Laws – Sales Tax Agenda Item: 12-A Resolution 2021-89 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve a resolution approving the special laws related to the proposed 0.5% sales tax 

 
BACKGROUND 
The MN Legislature approved the City’s request for an additional 0.5% sales tax. If the City wishes to 
proceed to the next step of a referendum, the City must approve the special legislation by adopting this 
resolution.     
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 



Resolution No. 2021-89 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MINNESOTA  
APPROVING SESSION LAWS 2021 FIRST SPECIAL SESSION,  

CHAPTER 14, ARTICLE 8, SECTION 8 
 
 

WHEREAS, the 2021 first special session of the Minnesota State Legislature passed and the 
Governor of Minnesota signed Minnesota Laws 2021, First Special Session, Chapter 14, Article 8, Section 
8, which authorizes the City of Hermantown, Minnesota (“City”) to impose by Ordinance, subject to a 
referendum, a sales and use tax of one-half of one percent (0.5%) to pay the costs of collecting and 
administering the tax and paying for the following projects in the City related to community recreation 
initiative, including securing and paying debt service on bonds to finance all or part of the following 
projects: 

 
1. (1) $10,840,000 for an addition of a second ice sheet with locker rooms and other 

facilities and upgrades to the Hermantown Hockey Arena; 
 
2. (2) $4,570,000 for construction of the Hermantown-Proctor trail running from the 

Essentia Wellness Center to the border with Proctor and eventually connecting to the Munger Trail; 
and 

 
3. (3) $3,900,000 for improvements and upgrades to Fichtner Park. 

 
WHEREAS, such legislation requires local approval in accordance with Minnesota Statutes § 

645.021; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed this matter and determined it to be in the best interests 

of the City of Hermantown to have the law become effective.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Hermantown, Minnesota as follows: 

 
1. Minnesota Laws 2021, First Special Session, Chapter 14, Article 8, Section 8 is hereby 

approved. 
 
2. The City Administrator is hereby instructed to submit the appropriate certificate and a 

copy of this Resolution to the Secretary of State of the State of Minnesota.  
 

 
 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ___ and upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
Councilors 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted August 2, 2021.  



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-90 
August 2, 2021                                                                                                            Agenda Item: 12-B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 

DATE: July 26, 2021 Meeting Date:  8/2/21 
 

SUBJECT: Charles Johnson - Special Use 
Permit for greenhouse/nursery, 
sales and production in a R-1, 
Residential zoning district 

Agenda Item: 12-B Resolution 2021-90 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve a Special Use Permit for a greenhouse/nursery, sales and production at the 
applicants property in a R-1, Residential zoning district. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for operating a greenhouse/nursery along with 
retail sales and production at their property located at 4168 Lindahl Road. 
. 
SITE INFORMATION: 
Parcel Size:   18.85 acres total 
Legal Access:   4168 Lindahl Road 
Wetlands:   Yes, not affected by the proposed use 
Existing Zoning:  R-1, Residential 
Airport Overlay:  None 
Shoreland Overlay:  None 
Comprehensive Plan: Residential 
 
Development Details 
The applicant is proposing to utilize their existing property for a greenhouse/nursery, sales and 
production, which is a permitted use with a Special Use Permit in a R-1, Residential zoning 
district.  The applicant is proposing to have three greenhouse ranging from 10’ x 10’ to 12’ x 24’ 
in size on the property along with a separate gravel parking lot and sales building.  There will 
also be flower beds on the property used in the production of plant material.  The applicant will 
continue to use the existing home as a residence. 
 
The applicant is estimating 25 – 30 customers a day with their season being from late spring to 
early fall and their anticipated hours of operation being from 8:00 – 5:00.  The applicant will be 
seeking MN Department of Agriculture approval/licensing for the use as well. 
 
The property is located in a rural part of the City with one adjacent property owner to the south.  
The property is located approximately 1,800 feet north of Maple Grove Road. 
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-90 
August 2, 2021                                                                                                            Agenda Item: 12-B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

A public hearing was held on July 20, 2021 to discuss the application.  Other than the applicant 
there were no residents in attendance for the meeting.  The Planning Commission recommended 
the project to the City Council for their review and approval. 
 
Wetlands 
There are existing wetlands located on the south and western portions of the property.  The 
proposed use of the property does not impact the wetlands. 
 
Special Use Permit 
 
The Special Use Permit is for a greenhouse/nursery, sales and production.  There are general 
conditions for all SUPs.  Staff finds the following in regard to the criteria for Special Use Permits 
in the Zoning Ordinance:  
 
No special use permit shall be approved unless positive findings are made with respect to each 
and every one of the following criteria: 
 

1. The proposed development is likely to be compatible with development permitted 
under the general provisions of this chapter on substantially all land in the vicinity 
of the proposed development; 
 
The property with its proposed use is in a rural portion of the City on a large acreage 
property.  There is one residence immediately to the south with the other surrounding 
properties being undeveloped large acreage properties. Wetland impacts are not permitted 
as part of this Special Use Permit. 

. 
2. The proposed use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of the environment, 

or detrimental to the rightful use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity of the proposed development; 
 
The property with its proposed use is in a rural portion of the City on a large acreage 
property.  There is one residence immediately to the south with the other surrounding 
properties being undeveloped large acreage properties.  

 
 

3. The proposed use is consistent with the overall Hermantown Comprehensive Plan 
and with the spirit and intent of the provisions of this chapter; 
 
The property is within an area marked for residential development in the Hermantown 
Comprehensive Plan.  The property is located in a rural portion of the City with one 
adjacent neighbor to the south. 

 
 

4. The proposed use will not result in a random pattern of development with little 
contiguity to existing programmed development and will not cause negative fiscal 
and environmental effects upon the community. 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                      Resolution 2021-90 
August 2, 2021                                                                                                            Agenda Item: 12-B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
There is one residence immediately to the south with the other surrounding properties 
being undeveloped large acreage properties. 

 
5. Other criteria required to be considered under the provisions of this code for any 

special use permit.   
 
The applicant will utilize the existing upland area of the property for the 
greenhouse/nursery.  No wetland impacts are permitted as part of this approval. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit based on the findings set forth in the Staff 
report, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The approval is for a Special Use Permit for greenhouse/nursery, sales and production at 
the applicants property located at 4168 Lindahl Road. 

 
2. The applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval.  

 
3. The applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of 

this approval.   
 

4. The applicant shall apply for a separate sign permit in the event they wish to install 
signage on the property. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Site Location Map 
• Proposed Site Plan  
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

Resolution No. 2021-90 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A GREENHOUSE/NURSERY, 
SALES AND PRODUCTION AT 4168 LINDAHL ROAD 

 
 WHEREAS, Mr. Charles Johnson and Jacquelyn Waldriff-Johnson, a married couple 
(“Applicant”), owner of the property located at 4168 Lindahl Road, submitted an application for a Special 
Use Permit for a greenhouse/nursery, sales and production at 4168 Lindahl Road (“Project”), and legally 
described in Attachment A. 
 
 WHEREAS, The Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
Special Use Permit application at its meeting on July 20, 2021 and recommended approval of the Special 
Use Permit at such meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after due consideration of the entire City file, the testimony at the public hearing and 
all other relevant matters the City Council hereby makes the following findings related to the Special Use 
Permit. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 
1. The proposed development is likely to be compatible with development permitted under the 

general provisions of this chapter on substantially all land in the vicinity of the proposed 
development; 

The property with its proposed use is in a rural portion of the City on a large acreage 
property.  There is one residence immediately to the south with the other surrounding 
properties being undeveloped large acreage properties. Wetland impacts are not permitted 
as part of this Special Use Permit. 
 

2. The proposed use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of the environment, or 
detrimental to the rightful use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity of 
the proposed development; 

The property with its proposed use is in a rural portion of the City on a large acreage 
property.  There is one residence immediately to the south with the other surrounding 
properties being undeveloped large acreage properties.  
 

3. The proposed use is consistent with the overall Hermantown Comprehensive Plan and with 
the spirit and intent of the provisions of this chapter; 

The property is within an area marked for residential development in the Hermantown 
Comprehensive Plan.  The property is located in a rural portion of the City with one 
adjacent neighbor to the south. 
 

4. The proposed use will not result in a random pattern of development with little contiguity to 
existing programmed development and will not cause negative fiscal and environmental 
effects upon the community. 
 



 
 

There is one residence immediately to the south with the other surrounding properties 
being undeveloped large acreage properties. 
 

5. Other criteria required to be considered under the provisions of this code for any special 
use permit.   

The applicant will utilize the existing upland area of the property for the 
greenhouse/nursery.  No wetland impacts are permitted as part of this approval. 
 

CONCLUSION 
On the basis of the foregoing Findings of Fact, the City Council of the City of Hermantown is hereby 
resolved as follows: 
 

1. The approval is for a Special Use Permit for greenhouse/nursery, sales and production at 
the applicants property located at 4168 Lindahl Road. 
 

2. The applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval.  
 

3. The applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of this 
 approval.   

4. The applicant shall apply for a separate sign permit in the event they wish to install  
 signage on the property. 

 
 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 
WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted on August 2, 2021. 

 
 
  



 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 

 
 
Property ID: 395-0010-04520 
 
  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(TOP THREE INCHES RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
 

 Permission is hereby granted to Mr. Charles Johnson and Jacquelyn Waldriff-
Johnson, a married couple (“Applicant”), owner of the property located at 4168 Lindahl 
Road, submitted an application for a Special Use Permit for a greenhouse/nursery, sales 
and production at 4168 Lindahl Road (“Project”), and legally described in Attachment A. 
 
The permission hereby granted is expressly conditioned as follows: 
 

a. That the Project will be constructed as described in the plans accompanying the 
application and the conditions contained herein. 
 

b. The Zoning Officer of the City of Hermantown shall be notified at least five (5) days in 
advance of the commencement of the work authorized hereunder and shall be notified of 
its completion within (5) days thereafter. 
 

c. No change shall be made in the Project without written permission being previously 
obtained from the City of Hermantown. 
 

d. Applicant shall grant access to the site at all reasonable times during and after 
construction to authorized representatives of the City of Hermantown for inspection of 
the Project to see the terms of this permit are met. 
 

e. The permit is permissive only.  No liability shall be imposed upon or incurred by the City 
of Hermantown or any of its officers, agents or employees, officially or personally, on 
account of the granting hereof or on account of any damage to any person or property 
resulting from any act or omission of Applicant or any of Applicant’s agents, employees 
or contractors relating to any matter hereunder.  This permit shall not be construed as 
estopping or limiting any legal claims or right of action of any person against Applicant, 
its agents, employees of contractors, for any damage or injury resulting from any such act 
or omission, or as estopping or limiting any legal claim or right of action of the City of 



 
 

Hermantown against Developer, its agents, employees or contractors for violation of or 
failure to comply with the permit or applicable provisions of law. 
 

f. This permit may be terminated by the City of Hermantown at any time it deems 
necessary for the conservation of water resources, or in the interest of public health and 
welfare, or for violation of any of the provisions of this permit. 
 

g. Applicant is initially and continually in compliance with all of the ordinances and 
regulations of the City of Hermantown Building Code and the Hermantown Fire Code. 
 

h. All state licenses and other permits required for the Project have been obtained by the 
Applicant and copies are provided to the City of Hermantown.  
 

i. That Applicant pay all direct costs incurred by the City of Hermantown in connection 
with the enforcement and administration of this permit within fifteen (15) days of 
Applicant being invoiced by the City for such costs. 
 

j. The approval is for a Special Use Permit for greenhouse/nursery, sales and production at 
the applicants property located at 4168 Lindahl Road. 
 

k. The applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval.  
 

l. The applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of 
this approval.   
 

m. The applicant shall apply for a separate sign permit in the event they wish to install  
signage on the property. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and City Clerk have hereunto set their hands on behalf of 
the City of Hermantown on the ____ day of _______________, 2021. 

 

        CITY OF HERMANTOWN   

 

 

 By _________________________________ 

Its Mayor      

 

 

By _________________________________ 

Its Clerk      

 
 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
      )ss. 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 
2021, by ______________________, and ___________________, the Mayor and City Clerk 
respectively of the City of Hermantown on behalf of the City. 

 
 

       _________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 

 

 



 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF RESOLUTION 
 

 Mr. Charles Johnson and Jacquelyn Waldriff-Johnson, a married couple, (“Applicant”) hereby 
acknowledges and accepts the conditions specified on the foregoing Resolution and covenants and agrees to 
comply with each and every such condition. 
 
 Applicant acknowledges that the failure to comply with all of the modifications and conditions shall 
constitute a violation of the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance and that the City of Hermantown may, in such 
event, exercise and enforce its rights against the undersigned by instituting any appropriate action or 
proceeding to prevent, restrain, correct or abate the violation including, without limitation, exercising and 
enforcing its rights against any security that the undersigned may provide to the City to insure its compliance 
with the conditions contained in the foregoing Resolution. 
 
 Applicant acknowledges that this Resolution shall be recorded with the title to the property described 
in the text of the Resolution.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREAS, Charles Johnson and Jacquelyn Waldriff-Johnson, has executed this 
acceptance this ____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
_________________________________     
Charles Johnson 
 
 
 
_________________________________     
Jacquelyn Waldriff-Johnson 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA   ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 2021, by 
Charles Johnson and Jacquelyn Waldriff-Johnson. 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Notary Public   
 
 
       
 
 
  



 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 

 
 
Property ID: 395-0010-04520 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Location Map 

 

 

SITE 

LI
N

D
A

H
L 

 R
O

A
D

 

MAPLE GROVE ROAD 





City Council Agenda Report                                                                                 Resolution 2021-91 
August 2, 2021                                                                                                        Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 
 

DATE: July 26, 2021 Meeting Date:  8/2/21 
 

SUBJECT: Peyton Acres Phase 1B Final 
Plat of 10 lots and 1 outlot in 
an R-3 zoning district 

Agenda Item: 12-C Resolution 2021-91 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Council approval of a final plat with conditions for Peyton Acres Phase 1B, a 10 lot, 1 outlot single 
family phased residential subdivision in an R-3 zoning district.

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST 
Applicant is requesting approval of a Final Plat for Phase 1B for construction of a 10 lot, 1 outlot 
residential development at 3956 Stebner Road.  The property is located in an R-3, Residential zoning 
district. 
 
SITE INFORMATION: 
Parcel Size:  75.0 acres 
Legal Access:  3956 Stebner Road 
Wetlands:  Yes, delineation approved in 2019; Impacts approved in 2020 
Existing Zoning: R-3, Residential (1/2 acre minimum) 
Airport Overlay: None 
Shoreland Overlay: None 
Comprehensive Plan: Suburban 
 
Development Details 
JLG Enterprises (Applicant) is proposing to construct the second phase of the Peyton Acres development.  
In 2020, JLG proposed a preliminary plat of phase 1A and 1B for a total of 19 lots and 2 outlots.  In June 
2020, JLG submitted for a final plat for phase 1A which included six residential lots and 2 outlots over 
five existing parcels totaling 75.0 acres.  The initial preliminary plat and final plat were both 
recommended for approval by the Planning Commission and were ultimately approved by the City 
Council. 
 
The proposed phase 1B consists of 10 single family residential lots and one outlot which contains the 
remainder of the overall property.  The proposed phase 1B is consistent with the previously approved 
preliminary plat and meets the requirements associated with the R-3, Residential zoning district. 
 
Applicant proposes to plat the five parcels for residential development, starting with six single family 
residential lots an Outlot (A) containing stormwater treatment facilities on approximately 2 acres with a 
large Outlot (B) covering the remaining 67 acres to be reserved for future subdivision.  Phase 1 will have 
access from Stebner Road via a new City street to be constructed by the Applicant.  Future additions to 
the subdivision will require an additional road connection on the eastern portion of the property 
connecting to Oak Ridge Drive for public safety, road maintenance, and traffic improvements.   
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                 Resolution 2021-91 
August 2, 2021                                                                                                        Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

A public hearing was held on July 20, 2021 to discuss the application.  The property owners of 4841 Oak 
Ridge Drive were present to express their concerns relating to the proposed stormwater pond located to 
the north of their property.  In addition the developer was present as well.  The Planning Commission 
recommended the project to the City Council for their review and approval. 
 
Zoning Analysis: 
The three western parcels are zoned R-3, Residential.  The two eastern Parcels are zoned HM, 
Hermantown Marketplace.  Only the two southerly R-3, Residential Parcels are currently being proposed 
for subdivision as part of the final plat under consideration.  Development of Outlot B will be considered 
under future proposed plats, and likely, a Planned Unit Development to allow single- or two-family 
homes in the HM zoning district. 
 
Lot Size 
The proposed final plat meets the R-3, Residential dimensional standards for single-family homes 
connected to City water and sanitary sewer of ½ acre in area with 100 feet wide frontage at lot line and at 
the 50’ building setback line of lots on cul-de-sacs.   
 
Setbacks 
The proposed site plan shows the building setbacks associated with the R-3, Residential dimensional 
standards for single-family homes. 
 
Utilities 
The proposed phase will connect to water line constructed within the project to date.  In turn, this water 
line connects to the existing City water main in the right-of-way of Stebner Road. Sanitary sewer will 
connect to the existing sanity lines constructed by the developer which connect to an existing stub into the 
property.  The new sewer and water lines will be a City main constructed to City standards.  The applicant 
has submitted final engineering plans as part of the Final Plat. 
 
Stormwater 
The applicant is proposing to treat stormwater in a separate retention treatment pond on Block 2, Lot 5.  
There is a proposed stormwater easement associated with the pond in order to provide access to the pond.  
Final location, sizing, and design of permanent stormwater control will be subject to approval of final 
stormwater plans and MS4 Letter of Compliance by the City Engineer. 
 
Roadway 
The applicant will construct a +/-700’, 28’ wide curb face to curb face bituminous roadway with curb and 
gutter with a sidewalk on one side with a cul-de-sac in accordance with the City of Hermantown Urban 
Section design standards and City design speed standards as approved by the City Engineer.   
 
Wetlands 
There are 13.5 acres of wetlands on the 75 acre property.  This final plat for this phase proposes 4,290 
square feet of permanent wetland impacts as part of Phase 1B.  The developer has impacted 1,568 square 
feet of wetlands as part of Phase 1A. Total impacts to date are 5,858 square feet.  The TEP and City Staff 
are supporting a project de minimis exemption up to 10,000 square feet of wetland impacts over the 
whole 75 acres of the property for a 1.7% permanent wetland impact. 
 
Park Dedication Fees 
The Applicant will be required to pay park dedication fees consistent with the requirements of the City 
Zoning Ordinance. Park dedication fees will be paid according to the Hermantown Fee Schedule. Those 
fees currently are: 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                 Resolution 2021-91 
August 2, 2021                                                                                                        Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
 
 
Summary: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat based on the following findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed final plat meets the intent of the R-3, Residential Zoning District and the overall 
goals and policies of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 

2. The final plat is in accordance with and conformity to the Hermantown Comprehensive Plan and 
Hermantown Zoning Ordinance. 
 

3. The following conditions are imposed upon the final plat: 
a. Final plat approval will be void if: (1) a final plat is not recorded with St. Louis County 

within one calendar year of preliminary plat approval; and (2) the City has not received 
and approved a written request for a time extension within one calendar year of final plat 
approval. 

b. The title of the land underlying the plat shall be approved by the City Attorney. 
c. Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City that outlines 

development responsibilities and provide financial securities for site improvements and 
utility installation which includes: 

i. Letter of Credit or other financial surety acceptable to the City Attorney for 
125% of the construction value of the road and infrastructure improvements to 
be made at the time of approval of the Final Plat, or 

ii. Installation of road and infrastructure facilities prior to obtaining the Final Plat 
for the development. 

iii. Letter of Credit or other financial surety acceptable to the City Attorney for 
125% of the construction value of the stormwater facilities to be made at the 
time of approval of the Final Plat. 

d. Applicant agrees to construct, at their own expense, a connection between the proposed 
road and Oak Ridge Drive in a manner and time to be determined via development 
agreement with City in the event of further subdivision of Outlot B as generally shown on 
Exhibit B. 

e. Regardless of the impact on the number of approved lots, all lots will meet the minimum 
standards for lot area (1/2 acre) and width (100’), all other design standards of the 
Hermantown Zoning Ordinance, including but not limited to: 

i. Section 1020.02.2. Frontage. The entire required frontage of each lot must abut 
on a street that has been officially accepted by the City of Hermantown or other 
governmental body with jurisdiction over such street, except as provided for flag 
lots and cul-de-sacs; and 

ii. 1020.04.3. When a lot completely abuts a cul-de-sac, the required frontage may 
be measured at the building setback line provided that the frontage at the street 
line is at least 75% of the required frontage. 

Development Type Recommended 
Single Family, Two Family, Three Family Residential Parcel/CIC 
Unit $1,100/lot 
Per bedroom fee $150 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                 Resolution 2021-91 
August 2, 2021                                                                                                        Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

f. The applicant shall provide a plan to impact 10,000 square feet or less of wetland impacts 
or an application for wetland replacement plan. 

g. The applicant shall submit and receive approval from the City Engineer of a permanent 
stormwater treatment plan that meets the City standards codified in Sections 1080 and 
1060 of the City Code. 

h. The applicant shall submit and receive approval from the City Engineer a road design 
meeting the Hermantown Urban Section Road Standards with a 28’ wide curb face to 
curb face bituminous paved road with a sidewalk on at least one side and all other 
Hermantown road design standards including 30 mph speed design. 

i. The applicant shall submit and receive approval from the City Engineer a road design 
meeting the Hermantown Urban Section Road Standards with cul-de-sacs designed to 
R/W width of 130’ with a paved surface of 100’ paved surface. 

j. The applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval.  
k. The applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of 

this approval.   
 

4. The lots will be served by public water and sewer which will be constructed by the applicant.  
The new water and sewer main will be constructed by the applicant, reviewed and approved by 
the City Engineer then turned over to the City. 
 

5. A 5 foot wide sidewalk on one side of the roadway providing connection to Stebner Road and 
continuing along the proposed cul-de-sac. 
 

6. Prior to starting any site work, the Applicant shall hold a preconstruction meeting with the 
appropriate development, construction, and City representatives.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of a building permit: 
a. All necessary permits shall be obtained.   

 
8. Erosion control measures shall be utilized and remain in place throughout the construction period, 

and shall not be removed until vegetation is established on the site. 
 

9. Not conduct any on-site burning or burial of brush or other site debris on the Property. 

10. Prior to issuance of a building permit, all necessary permits shall be obtained, including, without 
limitation, any stormwater permits required by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.   
 

11. The Applicant shall comply with the following conditions during construction: 
 

a. Development activity shall comply with all City noise ordinances.  There shall be no 
construction activity between the hours of 10 p.m. and 7 a.m. 

b. Loud equipment shall be kept as far as possible from adjacent residences. 
c. The site shall be kept free of dust and debris that could blow onto neighboring properties. 
d. Public streets shall be maintained free of dirt and shall be cleaned as necessary. 
e. The City shall be contacted a minimum of 72 hours prior to any work in a public street or 

right-of-way.  Work in a public street shall take place only upon the determination by the 
Public Works Director that appropriate safety measures have been taken to ensure 
motorist and pedestrian safety.  

f. The Zoning Administrator may impose additional conditions if it becomes necessary in 
order to mitigate the impact of construction on surrounding properties. 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                                 Resolution 2021-91 
August 2, 2021                                                                                                        Agenda Item: 12-C 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
12. Prior to the issuance of any temporary or permanent occupancy permit the following shall be 

completed: 
 

a. All exterior building improvements shall be completed. 
b. All disturbed areas on the site shall be seeded or sodded. 

 
13. The Applicant shall pay a park dedication fee of $11,000 ($1,100/lot for 10 lots) in lieu of 

dedicated park land.  This fee will be paid at the time of plat approval.  The applicant/builder will 
be responsible for the $150/bedroom park dedication at the time of building permit. 
 

14. The Applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval. 
 

15. The Applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of this 
approval.   

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Location Map 
• Final Plat 
• Site Plan 
• Grading Plan 
• Master Site Plan 

 
 



Resolution No. 2021-91 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING FINAL PLAT OF PEYTON ACRES PHASE 1B AND IMPOSING 

CONDITIONS ON THE FINAL PLAT 
 
 WHEREAS, JLG Enterprises of Hermantown LLP (Applicant) has requested a final plat for Peyton 
Acres comprised of 10 single family lots on the overall property described in Exhibit A, in an R-3 zoning 
district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission recommended the approval of the 
preliminary plat following a public hearing on March 17, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hermantown City Council approved of the preliminary plat following a public 
hearing on April 6, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the approval 
of the final plat following a public hearing on July 20, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, upon the satisfaction of the conditions set forth herein, the final plat will satisfy the 
requirements of the Hermantown Zoning Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has duly considered this matter and believes that it is in the best 

interests of the City of Hermantown that the final plat be approved, subject to certain conditions being 
met. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 

Minnesota, as follows: 
 

1. The final plat is in accordance with and conformity to the Hermantown Comprehensive Plan and 
Hermantown Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. The final plat of Peyton Acres Phase 1B is hereby approved. 
 

3. The following conditions are imposed upon the final plat: 
 

a. Final plat approval will be void if: (1) a final plat is not recorded with St. Louis County 
within one calendar year of preliminary plat approval; and (2) the City has not received 
and approved a written request for a time extension within one calendar year of final plat 
approval. 

b. The title of the land underlying the plat shall be approved by the City Attorney. 
c. Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City that outlines 

development responsibilities and provide financial securities for site improvements and 
utility installation which includes: 
i. Letter of Credit or other financial surety acceptable to the City Attorney for 

125% of the construction value of the road and infrastructure improvements to be 
made at the time of approval of the Final Plat, or 

ii. Installation of road and infrastructure facilities prior to obtaining the Final Plat 
for the development. 

iii. Letter of Credit or other financial surety acceptable to the City Attorney for 
125% of the construction value of the stormwater facilities to be made at the time 
of approval of the Final Plat. 



d. Applicant agrees to construct, at their own expense, a connection between the proposed 
road and Oak Ridge Drive in a manner and time to be determined via development 
agreement with City in the event of further subdivision of the property as generally 
shown on Exhibit B. 

e. Regardless of the impact on the number of approved lots, all lots will meet the minimum 
standards for lot area (1/2 acre) and width (100’), all other design standards of the 
Hermantown Zoning Ordinance, including but not limited to: 

i. Section 1020.02.2. Frontage. The entire required frontage of each lot must abut 
on a street that has been officially accepted by the City of Hermantown or other 
governmental body with jurisdiction over such street, except as provided for flag 
lots and cul-de-sacs; and 

ii. 1020.04.3. When a lot completely abuts a cul-de-sac, the required frontage may 
be measured at the building setback line provided that the frontage at the street 
line is at least 75% of the required frontage. 

f. The applicant shall provide a plan to impact 10,000 square feet or less of wetland impacts 
or an application for wetland replacement plan. 

g. The applicant shall submit and receive approval from the City Engineer of a permanent 
stormwater treatment plan that meets the City standards codified in Sections 1080 and 
1060 of the City Code. 

h. The applicant shall submit and receive approval from the City Engineer a road design 
meeting the Hermantown Urban Section Road Standards with a 28’ wide curb face to 
curb face bituminous paved road with a sidewalk on at least one side and all other 
Hermantown road design standards including 30 mph speed design. 

i. The applicant shall submit and receive approval from the City Engineer a road design 
meeting the Hermantown Urban Section Road Standards with cul-de-sacs designed to 
R/W width of 130’ with a paved surface of 100’ paved surface. 

j. The applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval.  
k. The applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any 

condition of this approval.   
 

4. The lots will be served by public water and sewer which will be constructed by the 
applicant.  The new water and sewer main will be constructed by the applicant, reviewed 
and approved by the City Engineer then turned over to the City. 
 

5. A 5 foot wide sidewalk on one side of the roadway providing connection to Stebner Road and 
continuing along the proposed cul-de-sac. 
 

6. Prior to starting any site work, the Applicant shall hold a preconstruction meeting with the 
appropriate development, construction, and City representatives.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of a building permit: 
a. All necessary permits shall be obtained.   

 
8. Erosion control measures shall be utilized and remain in place throughout the construction period, 

and shall not be removed until vegetation is established on the site. 
 

9. Not conduct any on-site burning or burial of brush or other site debris on the Property. 

 



10. Prior to issuance of a building permit, all necessary permits shall be obtained, including, without 
limitation, any stormwater permits required by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.   
 

11. The Applicant shall comply with the following conditions during construction: 
 

a. Development activity shall comply with all City noise ordinances.  There shall be no 
construction activity between the hours of 10 p.m. and 7 a.m. 

b. Loud equipment shall be kept as far as possible from adjacent residences. 
c. The site shall be kept free of dust and debris that could blow onto neighboring properties. 
d. Public streets shall be maintained free of dirt and shall be cleaned as necessary. 
e. The City shall be contacted a minimum of 72 hours prior to any work in a public street or 

right-of-way.  Work in a public street shall take place only upon the determination by the 
Public Works Director that appropriate safety measures have been taken to ensure 
motorist and pedestrian safety.  

f. The Zoning Administrator may impose additional conditions if it becomes necessary in 
order to mitigate the impact of construction on surrounding properties. 
 

12. Prior to the issuance of any temporary or permanent occupancy permit the following shall be 
completed: 

 
a. All exterior building improvements shall be completed. 
b. All disturbed areas on the site shall be seeded or sodded. 

 
13. The Applicant shall pay a park dedication fee of $11,000 ($1,100/lot for 10 lots) in lieu of 

dedicated park land.  This fee will be paid at the time of plat approval.  The applicant/builder will 
be responsible for the $150/bedroom park dedication at the time of building permit. 
 

14. The Applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval. 
 

15. The Applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of this 
approval.   
 
 
Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 

 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolutions was seconded by Councilor ____and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors  
 
And the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
 
  
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted August 2, 2021. 
 
  



ACCEPTANCE OF RESOLUTION 
 

 JLG Enterprises of Hermantown LLP (“Applicant”) hereby acknowledges and accepts the 
conditions specified on the foregoing Resolution and covenants and agrees to comply with each and 
every such condition. 
 
 Applicant acknowledges that the failure to comply with all of the modifications and conditions 
shall constitute a violation of the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance and that the City of Hermantown 
may, in such event, exercise and enforce its rights against the undersigned by instituting any 
appropriate action or proceeding to prevent, restrain, correct or abate the violation including, without 
limitation, exercising and enforcing its rights against any security that the undersigned may provide 
to the City to insure its compliance with the conditions contained in the foregoing Resolution. 
 
 Applicant acknowledges that this Resolution shall be recorded with the title to the property 
described in the text of the Resolution.   
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREAS, JLG Enterprises of Hermantown LLP has executed this 
acceptance this ____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
_________________________________     
JLG Enterprises of Hermantown LLP    
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA   ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 2021, 
by JLG Enterprises of Hermantown LLP. 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Notary Public   
 

 
 
 

  



EXHIBIT A 

 

 

Parcel ID: 395-0010-06800, 395-0010-06780, 395-0010-06750 and 395-0010-06760 

  



Location Map 

 

 

SITE 

H
A

IN
E

S
  
R

O
A

D
 

MAPLE GROVE ROAD 

S
T

E
B

N
E

R
  
R

O
A

D
 

ANDERSON ROAD 



S 70°20'53" E23.77

S
T

E
B

N
E

R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R

O
A

D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S 89°36'44" E  692.06 

2
7

4
.
3

4

270.64

N
 
0

0
°
3

7
'
2

0
"
 
W

 
 

197.87
161.91

162.88
163.75

172.42

285.68

233.96

1

2
3

4

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

2

L=153.22R=433.00

Δ=20°16'27"

N 65°28'23" E

153.55

S 88°07'01" E

188.47

S 
21

°1
6'0

8" 
W

29
8.5

3 N 17°13'48" W

247.42

N 12°27'27" W
86.58

N 12°27'27" W

188.28

N
 
0

0
°
3

7
'
2

0
"
 
W

3
0

8
.
3

9

86.58

166.39

131.79

46.26
23.85

S 55°38'59" W

195.22

N 39°27'06" W

73.25

L=140.74
R=251.14

Δ=32°06'34"

L=95.81
Δ=17°18'33"

29.06

L=35.37
R=1033.00Δ=1°57'42"

L=202.43
R=967.00

Δ=11°59'39"

9

5

.
0

0

N
 
0
1
°
4
8
'
3
3
"
 
W

1
8
7
.
4
8

S

 

4

1

°

4

1

'

0

0

"

 

E

8

5

.

6

9

L=83.76

R=65.00
Δ=73°49'50"

L=
81

.18

Δ=
71

°3
3'3

3"

L=57.85

Δ=50°59'44" L=61.18
Δ=53°55'45"

L=
55

.21
Δ=

48
°3

9'5
4"

180.72

13
8.6

8
28

1.4
2

PEYTON
DRIVE

N
 
0

0
°
3

7
'
2
0

"
 
W

3
0

5
.
9

1

N
 
0

0
°
3

7
'
2

0
"
 
W

2
7

1
.
4

0

S
 
0
0
°
3
7
'
2
0
"
 
E

2
3
4
.
8
2

N 77°32'37" E  322.04

N 77°32'39" E  209.78

L=81.92
R=317.14

Δ=14°48'01"

L=129.86
R=367.00

Δ=20°16'27"

70.75

N 21°44'49" W

25.50
N 89°22'40" E

N
 
0

0
°
3

7
'
2

0
"
 
W

 
 
4

2
0

.
1

0

75.00

N 13°25'53" W

56.57N 58°25'53" W
40.00

S 76°34'07" W

S 3
1°

34
'07

" W
56

.57

S 76°34'07" W

40.00

1

5

5

.
0

0

9

5

.
3

5

S

 
1

3

°

2

5

'
5

3

"
 
E

 
 
3

4

5

.
3

5

10
.0 20.0

10
.0

UTILITY & DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

S 89°36'44" E  686.40

CH BRG.=N 82°57'24" ECH.=124.21

L=124.28Δ=6°53'36"

55 x 80 PAD

55 x 80 PAD

55 x 80 PAD

55 x 80 PAD

55 x 80 PAD

55
 x 

80
 PA

D

55 x 80 PAD

55 x 80 PAD

55 x 80 PAD

55 x 80 PAD

SHEET 2 OF 2 SHEETS

SCALE IN FEET

120600'

PEYTON ACRES PHASE 1B

LOCATED IN PART THE N 

1

2

 OF THE SW 

1

4

 OF SEC. 24, TWP.50, RGE. 15

ST. LOUIS  COUNTY MINNESOTA

RON KRUEGER
 Registered Land Surveyor, LLC.

OFFICIAL PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
BISHOP  WOODS  FIRST  ADD. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEYTON      DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEYTON     COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N E   1 / 4    O F  S W   1 / 4 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BISHOP WOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P E Y T O N     A C R E S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P E Y T O N     A C R E S

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLOT    A



4

5

6

OUTLOT  A

BLOCK       
    1

55944SQ. FT
1.3ACRES

1 2
3 4

1
2

3 4

5

6

1

2

51091SQ. FT
1.2ACRES

47211SQ. FT
1.1ACRES

41396SQ. FT
1.0ACRES

38734SQ. FT
0.9ACRES

43023SQ. FT
1.0ACRES

52178SQ. FT
1.2ACRES

68021SQ. FT
1.6ACRES

34027SQ. FT
0.8ACRES

28936SQ. FT
0.7ACRES

C1.0

Feet

80
40

0

SHEET:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB No:

RE
V

. B
Y:

RE
V

:
D

A
TE

:
D

ES
C

RI
PT

IO
N

CO
PY

RIG
HT

 ~ 
AM

I C
ON

SU
LTI

NG
 EN

GI
NE

ER
S P

.A
. : 

20
06

c

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TIF
Y 

TH
A

T 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

, S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TIO
N

,
O

R 
RE

PO
RT

 W
A

S 
PR

EP
A

RE
D

 B
Y 

M
E 

O
R 

UN
D

ER
 M

Y
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
RV

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 T
HA

T 
I A

M
 A

 D
UL

Y
LI

C
EN

SE
D

UN
D

ER
 T

HE
LA

W
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

ST
A

TE
 O

F

N
A

M
E:

SI
G

N
A

TU
RE

:

D
A

TE
:

LI
C

. N
o:

Co
ns

ul
tin

g 
En

gi
ne

er
s P

.A
.

36
40

 T
AL

M
AG

E 
CI

R.
 V

AD
N

AI
S 

HE
IG

HT
S

65
1.

34
4.

87
83

 - 
am

ie
ng

in
ee

rs
.c

om
SU

PE
RI

O
R 

- I
RO

N
 R

AN
GE

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
6/

25
/2

02
1

1
CI

TY
 SU

BM
ITT

AL
BP

K

39
56

 ST
EB

NE
R R

D
HE

RM
AN

TO
W

N,
 M

N

05/28/2021

BPK

191104

PE
YT

ON
 A

CR
ES

 - P
HA

SE
 1B

JL
G 

EN
TE

RP
RIS

ES

NPCT

12
/1

9/
20

18
 11

:37
 A

M  Z
:\2

01
9\

19
11

04
 G

ilb
er

t H
er

m
an

to
wn

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t\

Ci
vil

\3
_C

AD
\P

ha
se

 1B
\e

. P
lan

sh
ee

ts\
C1

.0 
Ex

ist
ing

 C
on

dit
ion

s.d
wg

KEY NOTES

EXISTING CONDITIONS LEGEND:

---
-

EX
IST

IN
G 

CO
ND

ITIO
NS

GENERAL SITE DEMOLITION AND CLEARING NOTES:



C4.0

Feet

80
40

0

SHEET:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB No:

RE
V

. B
Y:

RE
V

:
D

A
TE

:
D

ES
C

RI
PT

IO
N

CO
PY

RIG
HT

 ~ 
AM

I C
ON

SU
LTI

NG
 EN

GI
NE

ER
S P

.A
. : 

20
06

c

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TIF
Y 

TH
A

T 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

, S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TIO
N

,
O

R 
RE

PO
RT

 W
A

S 
PR

EP
A

RE
D

 B
Y 

M
E 

O
R 

UN
D

ER
 M

Y
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
RV

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 T
HA

T 
I A

M
 A

 D
UL

Y
LI

C
EN

SE
D

UN
D

ER
 T

HE
LA

W
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

ST
A

TE
 O

F

N
A

M
E:

SI
G

N
A

TU
RE

:

D
A

TE
:

LI
C

. N
o:

Co
ns

ul
tin

g 
En

gi
ne

er
s P

.A
.

36
40

 T
AL

M
AG

E 
CI

R.
 V

AD
N

AI
S 

HE
IG

HT
S

65
1.

34
4.

87
83

 - 
am

ie
ng

in
ee

rs
.c

om
SU

PE
RI

O
R 

- I
RO

N
 R

AN
GE

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R
6/

25
/2

02
1

1
CI

TY
 SU

BM
ITT

AL
BP

K

39
56

 ST
EB

NE
R R

D
HE

RM
AN

TO
W

N,
 M

N

05/28/2021

BPK

191104

PE
YT

ON
 A

CR
ES

 - P
HA

SE
 1B

JL
G 

EN
TE

RP
RIS

ES

NPCT

12
/1

9/
20

18
 11

:37
 A

M  Z
:\2

01
9\

19
11

04
 G

ilb
er

t H
er

m
an

to
wn

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t\

Ci
vil

\3
_C

AD
\P

ha
se

 1B
\e

. P
lan

sh
ee

ts\
C4

.0 
Gr

ad
ing

 Pl
an

.d
wg

---
-

GR
AD

IN
G 

PL
AN

GRADING LEGEND:

GENERAL GRADING AND DRAINAGE NOTES:





City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-92 
August 2, 2021  Agenda Item: 12-D 
 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  Paul Senst, Public Works 

Director 
DATE: July 28, 2021 

 
Meeting Date:  8/2/21 

SUBJECT:  Contract for Repairs on 
Arrowhead Road 

Agenda Item: 12-D Resolution 2021-92 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve contract for repairs on Arrowhead Road by 4865 W. Arrowhead Rd. and 5437 W. 
Arrowhead Rd.  

 
BACKGROUND 
This contract is to cover the following work: Removal of sidewalk, curb & gutter, asphalt and 
repair/replacement all of these items that have been damaged by freeze/thaw cycles and now do not allow 
for water to get from the driving lane to the curb/gutter flowline. The 4865 work area is approx. 221’ lf and 
the 5437 work area is approx. 126’ lf. 
 
Public Works solicited 2 quotes for the work, 2 contractors responded and we recommend the work be 
awarded to HMI Duluth. We recommend that the contract be awarded in the amount of $55,400.00 
 
The work is to be completed, weather permitting by September 3, 2021. 
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
603-441100-319 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Proposals from HMI Duluth and KTM 
 



 

Z:\Shared\CITY COUNCIL\RESOLUTIONS\2021\2021-92 Arrowhead Rd Rec Quotes and Award Contract.doc 

 Resolution No. 2021-92 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING QUOTE FROM HMI DULUTH FOR REPAIRS ON 
ARROWHEAD ROAD IN THE AMOUNT OF $55,400.00 

 
 WHEREAS, two sections of Arrowhead Road are in need of repairs related to stormwater; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the repairs are necessary to improve the road; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City had obtained two quotes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, HMI Duluth provided the low quote of $55,400.00, and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown as 
follows: 
 

1. The City Council awards the contract for Arrowhead Road repairs to HMI Duluth in the 
amount of $55,400.00. 

 
2. Prior to any work being competed, HMI Duluth shall provide a certificate of insurance 

acceptable to the City Administrator.  
 
3. The funds for the payment of the repairs will be expensed 100% to 603-441100-319.  

 
  
 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
  
 Councilors  
 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted August 2, 2021. 
 



HMI 
Home Menders, Inc. 

PO Box 16212 

Duluth, MN 55816 

Phone 218-722-6181  Fax 218-722-2191 

www.HMIduluth.com 

 

PROPOSAL 

Date: 6/21/2021 

To:  City of Hermantown 

  

From:  Greg Peterson 

218-722-6181 

 

Project: Hermantown city curb replacement 

Bids:  asap 

 

Division: 03300 Cast in Place Concrete 

 

Includes: 

 Curb area 1: 126’ 

 Curb area 2: 221’ 

 Sidewalk area 1: 504 sf 

 Sidewalk area 2: 884 sf 

 Demo/removal 

 6” class V base 

 Asphalt patching, 3 ft off curb 

 Topsoil/Seed at edges 

 Replacing catch basin (1) 

 Cones/Signs for traffic control 

 $1M Workers Comp insurance 

 $5M GL insurance 

 

 

Excludes: 

 Winter conditions 

 Joint sealants 

 Concrete/Soil Testing 

 Surveying 

 Bonds/Permits 

 Pollution insurance 

 DBE/EEO goals 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HMI agrees to do the above listed work for a lump sum price of  

Total - $ 55,400 

 

Other Notes 

The above work is quoted in accordance to the specifications for this project. All work will be done 

according to the drawings that were provided during the bid process. 

 HMI has received and acknowledged a total of __ addendums for this project.  

  

We are a Union Contractor. 

 

 If you have any questions or concerns with this proposal please feel free to contact me at anytime. 

 

Bubba McGregor Greg Peterson Accepted:   

Superintendent Estimator/Manager  

Email:  Bubba@HMIduluth.com Greg@HMIduluth.com Date:  

 

http://www.hmiduluth.com/
mailto:Bubba@HMIduluth.com
mailto:Greg@HMIduluth.com


5513 US Highway-2 Hermantown, M innesota 55810 
Phone: (218) 729-1446 Fax: (218) 729-9125 

Attn: Paul Senst 

Re: Remove and Replace Upset Curb and Sidewalk 

Thank you for receiving our proposal for work at two locations on Arrowhead rd in 
Hermantown, MN. No geotechnical report was provided. 
Our price for this work is shown below and includes the following: $55,746.00 

Mobilization 
Saw Cut 
Remove existing asphalt, concrete curb and sidewalk ( two locations 126' and 221') 
Reset the manhole covers 
Regrade the existing aggregate base 
New concrete sidewalk ( 4"Thick) and curb ( S5-24) 
3' Wide new asphalt 
Turf Establishment 

*we are a UNION contractor* 
*payment due upon completion* 

Exclude: Demolition, bonds, testing, mechanical or electrical work, permits, site fencing, 
rock excavation, private locates, import or export of fill, winter conditions, landscaping, 
topsoil stripping or re-spread, utility work, retaining walls, excavation or dirt work for 
retaining walls, precondition surveys, precast parking bumpers, utility relocation, 
Dewatering. 

If you have any questions please feel free to call me at 218-626-5815. Thank you again for 
this opportunity. 

Sincerely, 
KTM Paving, Inc. 

Noel Kohanski 

Page 1 of 1 

www.ktmpaving.com 



St. Louis County  M N

County Land Explorer
St. Louis County, Minnesota

Disclaimer

County Land Explorer

Printed: 7/27/2021

This is  a compilat ion  of  records as they ap pear in t he S aint  Lo uis County
Offices affecting the area shown. This drawing is  t o be used only f or ref erence

purposes and the County is not  responsible for  any inaccuracies herein

St. Louis County www.stlouiscountymn.gov/explorer Minnesota

default author

Map created using County Land Explorer
www.stlouiscountymn.gov/explorer

Road Repairs - 4865 W  Arrowhead
0 0.0 55 0.11 0.1 650.0 27 5

mi

N

Copyright St. Louis County Minnesota | All Rights Reserved©



St. Louis County  M N

County Land Explorer
St. Louis County, Minnesota

Disclaimer

County Land Explorer

Printed: 7/27/2021

This is  a compilat ion  of  records as they ap pear in t he S aint  Lo uis County
Offices affecting the area shown. This drawing is  t o be used only f or ref erence

purposes and the County is not  responsible for  any inaccuracies herein

St. Louis County www.stlouiscountymn.gov/explorer Minnesota

default author

Map created using County Land Explorer
www.stlouiscountymn.gov/explorer

Road Repairs - 5437 W  Arrowhead
0 0.0 25 0.0 5 0.0 750.0 12 5

mi

N

Copyright St. Louis County Minnesota | All Rights Reserved©



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-93 
August 2, 2021  Agenda Item: 12-E 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: July 28, 2021 
 

Meeting Date:  8/2/21 

SUBJECT: Road Improvement District 
No. 537 – Lavaque Jct Rd 

Agenda Item: 12-E Resolution 2021-93 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve Change Order #1 for Road Imp. 537 – Lavaque Junction Road 

 
BACKGROUND 
The contract documents do not allow for rock blasting. The contractor drilled holes in the rock and 
proceeded to hammer away at the rock. The mass and density of the rock did not allow this operation to 
be effective. NCE adjusted roadway profile in effort to minimize rock removal. In doing so, we added (2) 
sections of curb and gutter and a spillway. The contractor had to clean and fill the bore holes.  

 
The total cost of the time and materials for this effort is $40,614.01. 

 
Due to the hardness of the rock, we came up with an alternative plan to drill/core thru the ledge rock in 
order to install the water main. 

 
The total cost of the time and materials for this effort is $97,643.55. 

 
The total amount of this change order is $138,257.56. 
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
475-431150-530 Proj. 537 

ATTACHMENTS 
Change Order #1 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2021-93 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 1 FOR ROAD IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 537 (LAVAQUE JUNCTION ROAD) 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown has contracted with Ulland Brothers, Inc. for construction 
of Road Improvement District No. 537 (Lavaque Junction Road) (“Project:”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ulland Brothers, Inc. has submitted Change Order No. 1 for: 
  

1. The contract documents do not allow for rock blasting. The contractor drilled holes in the 
rock and proceeded to hammer away at the rock. The mass and density of the rock did not 
allow this operation to be effective. NCE adjusted roadway profile in effort to minimize rock 
removal. In doing so, we added (2) sections of curb and gutter and a spillway. The contractor 
had to clean and fill the bore holes.  
 
The total cost of the time and materials for this effort is $40,614.01. 
 

2. Due to the hardness of the rock, we came up with an alternative plan to drill/core thru the 
ledge rock in order to install the water main. 
 
The total cost of the time and materials for this effort is $97,643.55. 
 
The total amount of this change order is $138,257.56. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Ulland Brothers, Inc. has recommended such Change Order No. 1, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, Northland Consulting Engineers LLP has approved such Change Order No. 1. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 
 

1. Change Order No. 1 is hereby approved. 
 
 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution has been duly passed and adopted August 2, 2021. 



EJCDC _ 
EflOIMCEns JOINT CO,,TAAC T 
DOCUI.IErH S COMMITTEE 

Date of Issuance: 7/28/21 

Owner: City of Hermantown 
Contractor: Ulland Brothers, Inc. 
Engineer: Northland Consulting Engineers 
Project: Lavaque Junction 

Change Order No. 

Effective Date: 

Owner's Contract No.: 20-8014 

Contractor's Project No.: 

Engineer's Project No.: 20-8014 

SSID: 

The Contract is modified as follows upon execution of this Compensating Change Order: 

Description: This change order covers (2) items of work associated with the rock trench. 
1. The contract documents do not allow for rock blasting. The contractor drilled holes in the rock and 

proceeded to hammer away at the rock. The mass and density of the rock did not allow this operation to be 
effective. NCE adjusted roadway profile in effort to minimize rock removal. In doing so, we added (2) 
sections of curb and gutter and a spillway. The contractor had to clean and fill the bore holes. 

The total cost of the time and materials for this effort is= $40,614.01 

2. Due to the hardness of the rock, we came up with an alternate plan to drill/core thru the ledge rock in order 
to install the water main. 

The total cost of the time and materials for this effort is= $97,643.55 

Attachments: lJ Ulland Documentation 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE 

Original Contract Price: 
$ 1 353 290.00 

Total = $138,257.56 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES 

Increase from previously approved Change Orders: Extend Contract Time to 9/25/21 

$0 

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: 

$ 1 353 290.00 

Increase of this Change Order: 
$ 138 257.56 

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: 
$ 1,491,547.56 

~r By: . QBy: 
er ~ 

Title: City Engineer Title: 

Date: 7/28/21 Date: 

ACCEPTED: ~c$ By: 
Owner Co~ 

Title: 1//t,e ~ ~e siJ,. .. (-
Date : 7 - "">-i~JI 

EJcoc• C-941, Change Order. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee. 

Page 1 of 1 



UBI 10618 City of Hermantown Lavaque Junction Road 
FWO #6299 Rock Excavation at Station 43+00 in Road Area 

Date Description U/M Quantity Unit Price Amount 

5/14/2021 Darrin Hulegaard - Laborer ST 3.50 $ 94.00 $ 329.00 

5/14/2021 Darrin Hulegaard - Laborer OT 1.50 $ 124.00 $ 186.00 

5/14/2021 Cat 14 Motorgrader w/Operator St 1.00 $ 188.00 $ 188.00 

5/14/2021 Volvo 355 Backhoe w/Operator ST 5.00 $ 194.00 $ 970.00 

5/14/2021 Volvo 355 Backhoe w/Operator OT 1.00 $ 221.00 $ 221.00 Hammering 
5/14/2021 Cat CS563 Roller w/Operator OT 0.50 $ 157.00 $ 78.50 

May 14, 2021 Labor & EquipmentTotal $ 1,972.50 Rock 

5/24-27 /2041 Darrin Hulegaard - Laborer OT 7.00 $ 124.00 $ 868.00 

5/24-27 /2021 Volvo 355 Backhoe w/Operator ST 3.50 $ 194.00 $ 679.00 V 

5/24-27 /2021 Cat 335 Backhoe w/Operator ST 1.50 $ 194.00 $ 291.00 

5/24-27 /2021 Cat 335 Backhoe w/Operator OT 8.50 $ 221.00 $ 1,878.50 

May 24-27, 2021 Labor & Equipment Total $ 3,716.50 

6/11/2021 LinkBelt 355 Backhoe w/Operator OT 1.00 $ 221.00 $ 221.00 
June 11, 2021 Labor & Equipment Total $ 221.00 

6/14-18/2021 Jim Sta din - Supervision OT 6.00 $ 151.00 $ 906.00 

6/14-18/2021 Noah Paulson - Pipelayer/Laborer OT 4.50 $ 118.00 $ 531.00 

6/14-18/2021 Jacob Prijatel - Pipelayer/Laborer OT 7.00 $ 118.00 $ 826.00 Clean ar1d 
-

6/14-18/2021 Sam Swedberg - Operator/Laborer OT 2.00 $ 124.00 $ 248.00 ' - grout bore 
6/14-18/2021 Linkbelt 355 Backhoe w/Operator OT 2.50 $ 221.00 $ 552.50 holes 
6/14-18/2021 Cat 355 Backhoe w/Operator OT 4.00 $ 221.00 $ 884.00 
6/14-18/2021 Cat 924 Loader w/Operator OT 4.50 $ 168.00 $ 756.00 

6/14-18/2021 Mobilization ST 4.00 $ 208.00 $ 832.00 
June 14- 18, 2021 Labor & Equipment Total 

--;- $5,535.50 -' ----..,,-, .;;;;TJ • ...,v 

7/9/2021 Jim Stadin - Supervision OT 2.00 $ 151.00 $ 302.00 
7/9/2021 Noah Paulson - Pipelayer/Laborer OT 2.00 $ 118.00 $ 236.00 

7/9/2021 Cat 355 Backhoe w/Operator OT 2.00 $ 221.00 $ 442.00 
July 9, 2021 Labor & EquipmentTotal $ 980.00 

/ / 

7/13/2.021 Jim Stadin - Supervision ST 3.00 $ 151.00 $ 453.00 Watermain 
7/13/2021 Noah Paulson - Pipelayer/Laborer ST 3.00 $ 90.00 $ 270.00 ,~ thru rock 
7/13/2021 Jacob Prijatel - Pipelayer/Laborer ST 3.00 $ 90.00 $ 270.00 
7/13/2021 Cat 259 Skidsteer w/Operator ST 3.00 $ 137.00 $ 411.00 
7/13/2021 Cat 355 Backhoe w/Operator ST 3.00 $ 194.00 $ 582.00 

/ July 9, 2021 Labor & Equipment Total $ 1,986.00 

Hanco Utilities LS 1.00 $ 937.50 $ 937.50 -
Grout Pump LS 1.00 $ 275.00 $ 275.00 
Duluth Redi-Mix LS 1.00 $ 503.47 $ 503.47 
Falcon Bill HRS 11.00 $. 275.00 $ 3,025.00 
Curb ZbU LF IT i39.98 $ 54.80 $ ;i,H".ee $14,248.00 0 

Flume 2 EA 1 ---+-8& $ 1,680.00 $ a.,i89.88 $ 3,360.00 
Rip Rap Class 3 CV 1-. 6.00 $ 74.30 $ 445.80 

··-.. 
Bituminous TON 40.00 $ 54.00 $ 2,160.00 

L - $24,954.77 
- I • I 

5% Contractors Markup ..$ es;i.!'!" $ 1,247.74 
Total Amount Due c 1rn~n-,• $26,202.51 

Total Amount ---:a:- -- r""'llA nA $40,614.01 

https://ulland.sharepoint.com/teams/PMTeamNorth/Shared Documents/2021 Awarded Projects/10618 -City of Hermantown Lavaque Junction Road/Time & M;terial 
Summaries/FWO #6299 Rock X a Station 43 



UBI 10618 City of Hermantown Lavaque Junction Road 

Trench Rock 

Date Description 

5/27/2021 Jacob Prijatel - Pipelayer/Laboer 

5/27/2021 Dustin Nyquist - Pipelayer/Laborer 

5/27/2021 Darrin _Hulegaard - Pipelayer/Laborer 

5/27/2021 Cat 355 Backhoe w/Operator 

5/27/2021 Mobilization 

_ May 2_7,_ 2021 Labor & Equipment Total 

6/7-8/2021 LinkBelt 355 _Backhoe w/Operator ___ . 

June 7-8, 2021 Labor & Equipment Total 

1-----+------ ---·--·--·---·---- -
EBI Drilling Services 

EBI Mobilizaton 

Hanco Utllitie \ I ' • ' 

Grout Pump • I 

Duluth Redi M ' • I < / 

--
Core & Main (Link Seal) 

5% Contractors Markup 

Total Amount Due 

Total Amount 

U/M 

ST 

ST 

ST 

ST 

ST 

ST 

LF 

LS 

LS 

LS 

LS 

LS 

Quantity Unit Price 

1.00 $ 90.00 

1.00 $ 90.00 

1.00 $ 90.00 
5.00 $ 194.00 
4.00 $ 208.00 

2.00 $ 194.00 

180.70 $ 450.00 
1.00 $ 2,500.00 
1.00 $ 3,750.00 
1.00 .$ 275.00 
1.00 $ 1,215.00 
1.00 j_ ___ 1,596.00 

- - ---·-

Amount 

90.00 
90.00 
90.00 

970.00 
832.00 

2,072.00 

$ 388.00 

$ 388.00 

$ 81,315.00 

$ 2,500.00 

$ 3,750.00 

$ 275.00 

$ 1,215.00 

$ 1,596.00 

$ 90,651.00 

$ 4,532.55 

$ 95,183.55 

$ 97,643.55 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2021-94 
August 2, 2021  Agenda Item: 12-F 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: July 28, 2021 
 

Meeting Date:  8/2/21 

SUBJECT: Road Improvement District 
No. 537 (Lavaque Jct. Rd.) 

Agenda Item: 12-F Resolution 2021-94 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve Pay Application #4 to Ulland Brothers for the construction related to the Lavaque Jct Rd. 
project – Road Improvement District No. 537. 

 
BACKGROUND 
Attached is Pay Application #4 for the work associated with the Lavaque Jct. Rd. Project – Road 
Improvement District No. 537 from June 28, 2021 through July 24, 2021. NCE and Ulland Brothers, Inc. 
have reviewed the project progress thus far and agreed upon quantities of work completed. The amount of 
Pay Application #4 is $387,914.09. The City will hold a 5% retainage of the completed construction through 
the duration of the project. This retainage amount for pay application #4 is $47,463.53. 

NCE has reviewed the quantities through construction inspection and discussions with Ulland Brothers, 
Inc. representatives. I recommend payment in the amount of $387,914.09 be authorized at the August 2, 
2021 City Council Meeting.   

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
475-431150-530 Proj. 537 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Pay Application #4 



Resolution No. 2021-94 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PAY REQUEST NUMBER 4 FOR ROAD IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 537 (LAVAQUE JUNCTION ROAD) TO ULLAND BROTHERS, INC. IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $387,914.09 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown has contracted with Ulland Brothers, Inc. for construction 
of Road Improvement District No. 537 (Lavaque Junction Road) (“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ulland Brothers, Inc. has performed a portion of the agreed upon work in said 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ulland Brothers, Inc. has submitted Pay Request No. 4 in the amount of 
$387,914.09; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City will maintain an accumulated retainage as shown on the pay requests until 
the final work and documentation is completed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Northland Consulting Engineers LLP has approved such Pay Request No. 4 
provided that $47,463.53 accumulated as retainage of 5% be withheld pending final acceptance of the 
Project by the City of Hermantown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the necessary documentation for the pay request is on file and available for 
inspection. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota as follows: 
 
 1. Pay Request No. 4 is hereby approved. 
 
 2. The City is hereby authorized and directed to pay to Ulland Brothers, Inc. the sum of 
$387,914.09 which is the amount represented on Pay Request No. 4. 
 
 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
  
 WHEREUPON, such resolution has been duly passed and adopted August 2, 2021. 



EJCDC§ Contractor's Apphcation for Payment No. 4 

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT Application 'June 28, 2021 through July 
Application Date: 7/28/2021 DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE 24,2021 Period: 

Project Lavaque Junction From (Contractor): Via (Engineer): 
;

0 
r) City of Hennantown 

Owner: Street Impr. District #537 Ulland Brothers Inc. No11hland Consulting Engineers, LLP 

Owner's Contract Nwnber: Contractor's Project Number: Engineer Project Number: 

Street Improvement District #537 20-8014 

Application Fol' Payment Application For Pnyment 
Ch11nl!e O!'der Su111111a!'V Pl'evious Pav Application Summm·v 
Approved Chanl!e Orders Approved Pav Applications 

Number Additions Deductions Number Date Amount 

1 $ 138,257.56 1 4/27/2021 $38,462.73 

2 2 6/1/2021 $200,380.27 

3 3 7/6/2021 $275,049.98 

4 4 

TOTAL $138,257.56 8. TOTALS $513,892.98 

NET CHANGE BY CHANGE $138,257.56 
ORDER: 

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE .................................. .............................................................................................. . $ 1,353,290.00 

2. Net chm1ge by Change O!'de!'s .... ........................ .... .. ......................... ..... .................................................... ................... . $ 138,257.56 

3. CuITent Conh·act Price (Line 1 ± 2) ....... ..... ............. ........................... ....................................... ... .............. ..... ............ . $ 1,491,547.56 

4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE 
See 11tt11ched Pny Application SU1n11rnry ............ .................................. .... .. .................................................. ........ ..... ........ . $ 949,270.60 

5. RETAINAGE: 
11. 5% X $949,270.60 Work Completed .. .. ... .. ..... ............... ........................... ........ .. $ 47,463.53 
b. So/o X Stored J.\llaterlal.. .... ............................... ... ........................ . $ 

c. Total Retainnge (Line S.a + Line S.b) ........................................... ... .. ............. .............. ..................................... . $ 47,463.53 

6. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4 - Line S.c) ..... ........ ..... .. .................. .................. ............................ ............. . $ 901,807.07 

7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Line 8 ) .................................................................................... ......................... .. .... .. $ 513,892.98 

9. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION ............................................. ... ..................................... .................................. . $ 387,914.09 

10. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RET AINAGE 
(Line 3 - 4 + Line S.c above) .... ..... ... .. ... ................. ....... ................................................................................................... . $ 589,740.49 

Payment of: $ 387,914.09 
(Line 9 or 01her - atlacb explanation of the other amount) 

Contractor's Certification 
The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the 
following: 
(I) All previous progress payments received from Owner on accow1t of 
Work done under the Contract have been applied on account to discharge 
Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with the \Vork 
covered by prior Applications for Payment; 
(2) Title to nil Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work, 
or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment, will pass 
to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all Liens, security interests, 
and encun1brances ( except such as are covered by a bond acceptable to 
Owner indelllllifying Owner against any such Liens, security interest, or 
encumbrances); and 

Dnte: 

~'~1; . ~t:2 .... 
David Bolf, P.E. - City Engineer 

Approved by: 

John Mulder, City Administrator 

EJCDC® C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment 
<O 2013 National Society of Professionnl Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 

Page I of l 

7/28/2021 

(Date) 

(Date) 



.. Northland 
Pay Application #4 • July 28, 2021 

City of Hermantown f2:: Consulilng Engineers L.L.P. Lavaque Junction 
- - Strut11.1,ll, 0v,lo1naro,endcrnulnttitn9 Street Improvement District #537 

Spec, Contract Total Ulland Unit 
Total Profect 

Item No. Item Description Unit of Measure Completed Completed 
Number Quantities Price 

Quantities Cost 
.. ' ., . BASE BID , .. ' 

1 2021.501 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $24,174.lS 0.9 $21,7S6.74 

2 2101.501 CLEARING ANO GRUBBING LS 1 $16,000.00 1 $16,000.00 

3 2101.524 CLEARING TREE 35 $400.00 3S $14,000.00 

4 2101.524 GRUBBING TREE 35 $170.00 35 $5,950.00 

s 2104.502 REMOVE SIGN TYPE C EACH 38 $40.00 0 $0.00 

6 2104.502 REMOVE MAIL BOX SUPPORT EACH 35 $35,00 35 $1,225.00 

7 2104.502 REMOVE HYDRANT EACH 5 $BOO.CO 5 $4,000.00 

8 2104.502 SALVAGE HYDRANT EACH 1 $1,200.00 1 $1,200.00 

9 2104.502 SALVAGE PIPE APRON EACH 1 $200.00 1 $200.00 

10 2104.503 REMOVE PIPE CULVERTS LF 896 $11.00 848 $9,328.00 

11 2104.503 REMOVE WATER SERVICE PIPE LF 46 $9.00 0 $0.00 

12 2104.503 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LF 370 $2.00 370 $740.00 

13 2104°.503 SAWING CONCRETE PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) LF 12 $3.00 0 $0.00 

14 2104.504 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SY 9,852 $1.80 9852 $17,733.60 

15 2104.504 REMOVE BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 800 $6.00 800 $4,800.00 

16 2104.504 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 12 $39.00 0 $0.00 

17 2104.618 SALVAGE BRICK PAVERS SF 455 $8.30 455 $3,776.50 

18 2105.601 WETLAND RESTORATION LS 1 $2,500.00 0 $0.00 

19 2105.507 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW MOO 7% (CV) CY 8,143 $12.00 8143 $97,716.00 

20 2106.504 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TYPE 5 SY 22,429 $2.50 21744 $54,360.00 

21 2106.507 COMMON EXCAVATION CY 14,776 $10.80 10761 $116,218.80 

22 2106.507 MUCK EXCAVATION CY 5,500 $10.70 5240 $56,068.00 

23 2106.507 GRANULAR BORROW (CV) CY 5,500 $16.00 5240 $83,840.00 

24 2130.523 WATER MGAL 52 $35.00 45 $1,575.00 

25 2211.507 AGGREGAlE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 CY 3,910 $30.00 3128 $93,840.00 

26 2211 .507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 DRIVEWAY CY 164 $75.00 0 so.co 

27 2221,507 SHOULDER BASE AGGREGATE (CV) CLASS 5 CY 395 $45.00 0 $0.00 

28 2215.504 FULL DEPTH RECLAMATION sv 2,462 $4.20 2462 $10,340.40 

29 2360.509 TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3,B) TON 1,616 $60.00 0 $0.00 

30 2360.509 TYPE SP 12.5 NON-WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (3,BI TON 1,616 $58.00 0 $0.00 

31 2360.609 TYPE SP 9.5 BITUMINOUS MIXTURE FOR PATCHING TON 127 $185.00 0 $0.00 

32 2401.507 STRUCTURE EXCAVATION CLASS R CY 70 $300.00 49 $14,700.00 

33 2411.507 GRANULAR 81\CKFILL {CVI CY 140 $26,00 0 $0.00 

34 2451.507 COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE (CVI CY 82 $31.00 0 $0.00 

35 2501.502 24" RC PIPE APRON EACH 4 $BOO.DO 4 $3,200.00 

36 2501.503 36" RC PIPE APRON EACH 1 $200.00 1 $200.00 

37 2501,503 24" RC PIPE CULVERT LF 88 $90.00 80 $7,200.00 

38 2501.503 36" RC PIPE CULVERT LF 8 $72.00 8 $576.00 

39 2501.503 12" CS PIPE CULVERT LF 34 $31.00 0 $0.00 

40 2501.503 IS" CS PIPE CULVERT LF 1,258 $31.00 1070 $33,170.00 

41 2504.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING WATER MAIN EACH 2 $2,200.00 2 $4,400.00 

42 2504.602 RELOCATE HYDRANT EACH 1 $1,600.00 1 $1,600.00 

43 2504.602 HYDRANT EACH 9 $7,300.00 9 $65,700.00 

44 2504.602 8" GATE VALVE AND BOX EACH 3 $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00 

45 2504,602 1" CURB STOP AND BOX EACH I $400.00 1 $400.00 

46 2504.602 l" CORPORATION STOP EACH I $400.00 1 $400.00 

47 2504.603 1" TYPE K COPPER PIPE LF 54 $28.00 52 $1,456.00 

48 2504.603 HYDRANT RISER LF 10 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 

49 2504.603 6" WATERMAIN HOPE SDR-11 LF 30 $71 .00 30 $2,130.00 

50 2504.603 6" WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL-53 LF 49 $90.00 27 $2,430.00 

51 2504.603 8" WATERMAIN HOPE SOR-11 LF 1,289 $47.00 1289 $60,583.00 

52 2504.604 4" POLYSTYRENE INSULATION SY 67 $60.00 73 $4,380.0D 

53 2506.502 ADJUST FRAME AND RING CASTING EACH 11 $400.00 0 $0.00 

54 2506.502 MANHOLE FRAME SEAL (EXTERNALI EACH 11 $450,00 0 $0.00 

55 2511.507 RANDOM RIPRAP CLASS II CY 11 $68.00 0 $0.00 



56 2531.504 6' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 12 $145.00 0 $0.UO 

57 2540.602 MAIL BOX SUPPORT EACH 39 $125.00 0 $0.00 
58 2540.618 INSTALL BRICK PAVERS SF 300 $18.00 0 $0.00 

59 2563.601 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $2,000.00 0.8 $1,600.00 

60 2564.SOZ INSTALL SIGN PANEL TYPE°C EACH 45 $125.00 0 ·so.co 
61 2564.518 SIGN PANELS TYPE C SF 54 $36.00 0 $0.00 

62 2573.501 EROSION CONTROL SUPERVISOR LS 1 $2,000.00 0 $0.00 
63 2573.501 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT LS 2 $1,200.00 0 $0.00 
64 i573.50Z CULVERT END CONTROLS EACH 45 $235.00 0 $0.00 
65 2573.503 SILT FENCE, TYPE HI LF 1,095 $3.05 1792 $5,165.60 
66 2573.503 SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE WOOD FIBER LF 410 $2.90 0 $0.00 

67 2574.507 COMMON TOPSOIL BORROW CY 1,400 $26.00 0 $0.00 
68 2574.508 FERTIUZER TYPE I POUND 254 $1.00 0 $0.00 

69 2575.504 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET CATEGORY 3N SY 6,121 $1.60 0 $0.00 
70 2575.504 SODDING TYPE LAWN SY 12,366 $4.80 0 $0.00 
71 2575.505 SEEDING ACRE 1.27 $90.00 0 $0.00 
72 2575.508 SEED MIXTURE 25-131 (UPLAND) POUND 96 $3.10 0 $0.00 
73 2575.508 SEED MIXTURE 34-371 (WETLAND) POUND 57 $82.00 0 $0.00 

74 2582.503 4" SOLID UNE PAINT (WR) Lf 10,496 $0.25 0 $0.00 
75 2582.503 4" DOUBIE SOLID LINE PAINT {WR) LF 5,248 so.so 0 $0.00 
76 2582.503 24" SOLID LINE PAINf (WR) LF 30 $5.00 0 $0.00 

77 C/0111 ROCK REMOVAL AND FILL DORE HOLES LUMP SUM 1 $40,614.01 0.6 $24,368.41 
78 C/0#1 ROCK BORE LUMP SUM 1 $97,643.55 I $97,643.55 

TOTAL AMOUNT EARNED . $949,270.60 


	AGENDA COVER SHEET - August 2 Hermantown City Council Meeting - Remote Instructions  In-Person Expectations
	2021-08-02 agenda
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
	2021-87 - Ord Imp & Prep of Plans Richard-Lindgren
	2021-88 - Engineer - Richard Lindgren
	2021-08-02 Engineer Contract -Richard Lindgren
	2021-88 Engineering Agmt  Richard-Lindgren
	Richard & Lindgren Work Plan & Costs

	2021-08-02 Correspondence
	Correspondence Sheet
	Correspondence

	2021-07-19 minutes
	Ord 2021-04 - State Bldg Code
	2021-08-02 Ordinance Changes Bldg Code
	2021-04 FINAL Amending and Restating Chapter 10
	Section 1000 - State Building Code
	1000.02 Option Enforcement Provisions Adopted.



	Ord 2021-05 & Ord 2021-06 - Utility Amendments
	2021-08-02 Amend Utility Ordinances
	2021-05 Ord Amendment Chapter 9
	Section 905 - Water and Sewer Utility
	Section 906910 – Stormwater Utility
	Section 910920 - Wastewater System and Sewer Utility
	Section 920930 - Public Sewers and Private Disposal Systems
	Section 930 -940 – Water and Water Utility
	Section 940950 - Fire Hydrants, Mains and Valves
	Section 950960 - Street Lighting and Traffic Signal Utility
	Section 960970 – Locating Sewer and Water Laterals
	Section 970980 – Fats, Oils and Grease

	2021-06 Ord Amending Sec 230.02, Utility Commission

	2021-89 - Session Laws - Sales Tax
	2021-08-02 MN Session Laws - Sales Tax
	2021-89 MN Session Laws - Sales Tax

	2021-90 - Charles Johnson SUP
	2021-08-02 Charles Johnson SUP
	Charles Johnson SUP Location Map
	Charles Johnson SUP Site Plan
	2021-90 Charles Johnson SUP
	RESOLUTION APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A GREENHOUSE/NURSERY, SALES AND PRODUCTION AT 4168 LINDAHL ROAD
	UFINDINGS OF FACT


	2021-91 - Peyton Acres Final Plat
	2021-08-02 Peyton Acres Phase 1B Final Plat
	2021-91 Peyton Acres Final Plat Phase 1B
	Peyton Acres Location Map
	Peyton Acres FINAL PLAT 1B Setbacks 7-20-Layout1
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Peyton Acres Site Plan
	Peyton Acres Grading Plan
	Peyton Acres Master Plan

	2021-92 - Arrowhead Road
	2021-08-02 Arrowhead Road Work
	2021-92 Arrowhead Rd Rec Quotes and Award Contract
	Arrowhead Rd Proposal - HMI Duluth
	Arrowhead Rd Proposal - KTM
	Arrowhead Rd Repair - 4865 Arrrowhead 2021-07-27
	Arrowhead Road Repair - 5437 Arrowhead 202-07-27

	2021-93 - Lav Jct Change Order 1
	2021-08-02 Lav Jct Change Order #1
	2021-93 Change Order #1 - Lav Jct

	2021-94 - Lav Jct Pay App 4
	2021-08-02 Lav Jct Pay App #4
	2021-94 Pay App  #4- Lav Jct




